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Touch America Holdings, Inc. | A message from the chalrman

Dear Shareholder:

ast year we told you there was a new
lcompany on the horizon; this year, | am proud

to tell you that day has dawned. Welcome to
the first Annual Report of Touch America
Holdings, Inc. — a growing fiberoptic network and
broadband products and services company that
provides high-value converged data, voice and
video transport services to large enterprise
customers.

Touch America is distinguished from other long-
haul broadband network operators and service
providers by its responsible growth and proven
performance during nearly 20 years as a part of
The Montana Power Company. A corporate
restructuring, completed in February 2002,
resulted in Touch America Holdings becoming a
stand-alone telecommunications company traded
on the New York and Pacific stock exchanges
under the symbol TAA. Touch America has
valuable assets, no debt, cash in the bank and a
solid customer base.

Being totally focused on telecom means we can
devote all of our resources and energy in one
direction — providing targeted customers with
proven, leading-edge telecommunications
services on one common platform. Cur “sweet
spot” is services that allow customers to easily
scale their information transport capacity and to
use our state-of-the-art network to carry

additional information. Our tested products are
backed by a motivated, efficient and experienced
workforce whose members are, above all,
customer advocates. Buiiding and maintaining
customer relationships through superior service is
our top priority. ' :

Our work reflects our commitment to finding the
right solutions for our customers’ information
transport needs. In 2001, we enhanced,
expanded, and simplified our Customer Care
Center, Network Operations Center and
Operating Support Systems to provide the latest
in around-the-clock service solutions.

At the same time, we grew our sophisticated
network by 4,000 route miles and increased our
points of presence and metro offerings so that
our services are in close proximity to our
customers. Touch America's network now stands
at approximately 22,000 route miles of which
more than 60 percent is lit and carrying traffic.
We expect to complete our 26,000-route-mile
network by early 2003 and will continue to
activate network as business dictates.

The network supports Touch America’s dedicated
private line, ATM (asynchronous transfer mode),
Frame Relay and advanced IP (internet Protocol)
products, which cover a broad range of
information transport services and managed
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security solutions. Our uniquely designed IP
network layer maximizes direct connections to
support a variety of applications, such as video
conferencing, voice over IR computer file
transfers and private networks for our clients to
share information with their employees, suppliers
and customers.

During the year, the economy in general and
telecommunications in particular experienced a
severe downturn. Touch America managed to stay
the course with its business plan in this difficult
environment — something that few of our peers
could match. However, earnings for the year were
not what we had anticipated nor what we
wanted, eroding during the first half of the year
and becoming negative in the third and fourth
quarters and for the year as expenses exceeded
revenues.

Nevertheless, our continuing progress — in
network expansion and improvement, operations
support systems, and product and service
offerings — better positions us for a more
successful future, which should be reflected in
our financial performance for 2002 and beyond. A
detailed account of our results for 2001 is found
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, which follows
this letter.

For 2001, telecommunications income was some
$42 million lower than 2000, attributed in part to
lowerthan-anticipated broadband prices and
unrealized expectations in two
telecommunications investments. Meanwhile, we
invested in our network and our support systems
to meet our company’s and our customers'
needs. We expect our recent business process
improvements will help reduce network costs
from 2001 levels by about $30 million in 2002.
We are dedicated to improving our performance
by increasing revenues and reducing expenses.

We have substantial operational and billing
disputes with Qwest Communications. The

operational disputes stem from what we believe
are illegal, unreasonable, anticompetitive and
discriminatory practices Qwest entered into after
Touch America purchased Qwest's long-distance
voice and data business in its 14-state regulated
region in 2000. We have filed complaints against
Qwest with the Federal Communications
Commission in Washington, D.C., and are in
arbitration and litigation to resolve the disputes.

Our vigorous analysis and documentation to date
show that Qwest owes Touch America at least
$70 million and possibly more, though Qwest
says certain amounts are owed it from Touch
America.

The transition from a diversified energy company
to Touch America Holdings, Inc., culminated on
February 15, 2002, when the MPC Utility
business was sold to NorthWestern Corporation
for approximately $1.1 billion — $602 million in
cash and $488 miillion in assumed debt. Cash
proceeds from the utility transaction flowed to
Touch America and have been used to repay the
$254 million outstanding on its five-year secured
credit facility, eliminating the facility and assuring
Touch America has no long-term debt.

| remain convinced that our mission to provide
high-value broadband telecommunications

~ services to customers offers Touch America

tremendous opportunities. Our company is
looking forward to a bright future with a great
organization, a committed Board of Directors,
dedicated employees, and new and
technologically advanced infrastructure and
support systems. Our job is to execute
successfully on this strong platform, which will
result in continued improvement in the years to
come.

IEN W

Robert . Gannomn
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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PART 1

When we use the terms “Registrant,” “Company,”
"Touch America,” “we,” “us,” or "our” in this Form 10-K,
we mean Touch America Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corpora-
tion, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Entech, LLC, Tetra-
genics Company, and Touch America, Inc. When we use the
terms “Montana Power"” or “MPC,“ we mean our prede-
cessor company, The Montana Power Company.

"o

" ou

WARNINGS ABQOUT FORWARD-LOCKING
STATEMERNTS

We are including cautionary statements herein to make
applicable and take advantage of the safe-harbor provisions
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for
any forward-locking statements made by us, or on our
behalf, in this Form 10-K. Forward-looking statements
include statements concerning plans, objectives, goals,
strategies, future events or performance and underlying
assumptions, and other statements, which are statements
other than those of historical fact. These forward-looking
statements include, among others, statements concerning
our strategy and transition to a telecommunications com-
pany, revenue and cost trends, expense reduction strate-
gies, pricing strategies, planned capital expenditures,
financing needs and availability, and changes in the telecom-
munications industry. Forward-looking statements may be
identified, without limitation, by the use of the words “antic-
ipates,” "estimates,” "expects,” “intends,” "believes,” and
similar expressions. We disclaim any obligation to update
any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circum-
stances after the date that we file this Form 10-K.

Forward-looking statements that we make are subject to
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results or
events to differ materially from those expressed in, or
implied by, the forward-looking statements. Investors and
other readers of the forward-looking statements are cau-
tioned that these statements are not a guarantee of future
performance and that the forward-looking statements are
subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those expressed in, or
implied by, the statements. Some, but not all, of the risks
and uncertainties are included under “Challenges Facing the
Telecommunications Industry and Our Company” in Item 1,
“Business.”

uon

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS

Touch America Holdings, Inc., was incorporated on Sep-
tember 27, 2000 under the laws of the state of Delaware.
We are the publicly traded successor to The Montana
Power Company {MPC), which prior to the reorganization
discussed below, provided telecommunications and energy
products and services. With our transition to Touch America
Holdings, Inc., we are now a national broadband telecom-
munications company, providing services including cus-

tomized voice, data and video transport through our principal
operating subsidiary, Touch America, Inc.

On March 28, 2000, MPC's Board of Directors
announced its decision to divest its multiple energy busi-
nesses, separating them from Touch America, Inc. The
Board of Directors decided to divest the energy businesses
based on a belief that the divestiture would allow the com-
pany to focus on Touch America, Inc.'s telecommunications
business, while enabling the energy businesses to continue
under new ownership. The Board of Directors concluded
that the existing structure, which had been created to be
responsive to the demands of a regulated utility business,
could not continue to meet the demands and ensure the
success of the different energy and telecommunications
businesses.

Consequently, MPC implemented a restructuring plan to
transform from an energy and telecommunications business
to Touch America Holdings, Inc., a telecommunications busi-
ness. MPC sold its oil and natural gas operations on October
31, 2000, Continental Energy Services, Inc. (Continental
Energy), on February 21, 2001, and its coal operations on
April 30, 2001. Also, as part of the restructuring plan, on
February 13, 2002, MPC merged with The Montana Power,
L.L.C. (MPLLC), a Montana limited liability company and
wholly owned subsidiary of Touch America Holdings, Inc.
Pursuant to the related merger agreement, shareholders of
MPC then became shareholders of Touch America Holdings,
inc. On February 15, 2002, we soid the utility operations to
NorthWestern Corporation (NorthWestern), a South Dakota-
based energy company. With this sale, all of the energy
businesses were divested and we became a stand-alone
telecommunications company.

As Touch America Holdings, Inc. (Touch America), we
develop, own, and operate a 22,000-mile high-speed fiber
optic network through our subsidiary, Touch Americg, Inc., a
national broadband telecommunications operating company.
We expect our network will span 26,000 route miles and 40
states by early 2003.

In addition to MPC's restructuring, another important
step in becoming the company we are today was our June
30, 2000 acquisition, which we refer to as the Qwest acqui-
sition, of the wholesale, private line, long-distance, and
other telecommunications services in the former U S
WEST's fourteen-state region from Qwest Communications
International, Inc. (Qwest) for approximately $206,000,000.
As part of this acquisition, we also gained approximately
1,800 route miles.

TELECOMIMUNICATIONS OPERATIONS

OSTRATEGY

Our objectives are to complete our fiber optic network
and become a profitable, nationally recognized provider of
telecommunications transport services. Currently, we serve
more than 300,000 customer accounts, including other com-
munications services providers, banks, retail chains and gov-
ernmental agencies.

To achieve our objectives, we seek to provide excellent
customer service, increase our wholesale and commercial
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customer base, target product lines with the highest mar-
gins, and reduce network costs. Some of the steps we are
taking to meet our objectives and strengthen our position
include:

¢ Completing our fiber optic network. This will allow us
to decrease our reliance on other telecommunications
services providers to carry our customers” traffic,
thereby decreasing network costs;

¢ Focusing on wholesale and large regional and national
commercial accounts within the reach of our network.
We are targeting these market segments, combined
with emphasizing the sale of data products, particularly
private line and Asynchronous Transfer Mode
(ATM)/Frame Relay and Internet Protocol (IP) products;

® Renegotiating carrier agreements. We are seeking to
negotiate lower cost carrier agreements as we
increase the number of our customers and the scope
of our services;

¢ Implementing Touch America Business Solutions
(TABS). TABS is our new integrated order entry,
provisioning, and billing system, which we are
currently implementing. The TABS system brings our
customer information into one system, improving
customer service and increasing efficiency;

e Expanding our Customer Care Center in Missoula,
Montana. All customer service can now be handled in-
house, which enables us to improve response time
and customer service; and

¢ Reducing network costs. We are focused on reducing
our network costs and increasing our efficiency.

U OUR NETWORK/PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Our fiber optic network spans approximately 22,000
route miles with coverage from Chicago to Dallas and most
areas to the west of that route. With the completion of our
currently planned construction and through exchanges, we
expect to have 26,000 route miles and extend our coverage
from Texas to Florida and up the east coast into New York.

Our fiber optic network is designed to ensure reliability
by automatically rerouting traffic to prevent interruptions.
We use current technology to optimize network perform-
ance and utilization. This is accomplished through Synchro-
nous Optical Network {(SONET) ring technology and a
“one-for-one” design. A SONET ring is used to instanta-
neously reroute traffic in the opposite direction on the ring
in the event of a fiber cut or other service interruption. The
“one-for-one” design ensures reliability, because it requires
one extra lit fiber for every lit fiber carrying traffic. In the
event of an interruption on the traffic-carrying fiber, traffic is
immediately switched to the extra lit fiber. Our network also
allows voice, data, video, and Internet services to be pro-
vided on a single fiber optic backbone. We are also installing
Sonus Networks’ softswitch and media gateway systems,
which will allow us to carry our voice traffic on our Voice
over |P {VolP) network.

The management of our network is based at our primary
Network Operations Center {(NOC) located in Butte, Mon-
tana, which is the control center for our entire telecommuni-

cations operation, the fiber optic network, the ATM, Frame
Relay and IP networks, and voice and dedicated lines. From
the NOC, we constantly monitor our system to safeguard
against service interruption. Our secondary NOC, which can
assume network management responsibilities, is located in
Denver, Colorado.

We provide a variety of telecommunications services and
products to meet our customers’ needs. These products
and services include: ‘

» Private Line Services — This service provides dedicated
telecommunications connections between end user
locations. It provides our customers with fixed
amounts of point-to-point capacity across our fiber
optic network to transport voice and data;

e ATM/Frame Relay Services - ATM is a highly scalable
transport technology that represents the first
worldwide standard to be embraced by the computer
and communications industries. Our ATM service
enables our customers to prioritize their
communication needs through a single, all-
encompassing network service that offers substantial
network capacity and universal, flexible connectivity.
ATM'’s switching transmission technology controls and
shapes traffic, making it useful for video, voice,
Internet, and other delay-sensitive traffic. ATM also
provides an alternative to private lines for bulk
transmission of voice and data traffic. Frame Relay is a
streamlined, highly scalable, high-speed data packet
technology for exchanging data, video, voice, and
Internet communications among various locations. This
service allows customers to transmit digital
information quickly and efficiently to multiple locations;

s Internet Services — We provide two types of Internet
service. Qur Diat Internet Access product line offers
business and residential customers unlimited, locak-
number access to the Internet from almost anywhere
in the country. Our Dedicated Internet Access offers
continuous connectivity to the Internet with the ability
to scale large bandwidth needs at competitive prices;

¢ Voice Services - We provide voice-switching capability,
including calling card and conferencing services,
allowing customers to originate and terminate both
wholesale and retail long-distance traffic on our
network. In 2001, we introduced VolP switching. This
technology provides greater efficiency, because it uses
the same backbone as our IP Network and readies us
for the next generation of VolP telephony;

o Managed Security Services — We have partnered with
a third party to offer flexible and scalable security
options to customers. Services and products offered
range from firewall protection and secure data
transport to virus protection for customers’ networks;

¢ Broadband Capacity - We lease capacity on our
network as an inexpensive and quick-growth solution
for large businesses, Internet Service Providers (ISPs),
and other telecommunications service carriers; and

e Dark Fiber and Conduit Rights — We lease rights to use
dark fiber, which are fiber strands not connected to
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any electronic equipment or related services. We allow
lessees of dark-fiber rights to install their own
electronic equipment. In addition, when we build a
new segment of the network, we generally install
spare, empty conduits that we lease to others.

T CONSTRUCTION PROJECT

In October 1999, we entered into a contract to construct
a high-speed, fiber optic network for AT&T Corp (AT&T). The
contract allows us to install our own fiber optic network at
the same time and along the same routes we are construct-
ing for AT&T. The contract contains capped performance
incentives if we meet, and capped penalties if we do not
meet, aggressive completion targets. AT&T reimburses us
for costs associated with their portion of the build. The reim-
bursements are paid at various stages of the construction
project. We expect all routes to be completed within the tar-
geted dates, for a scheduled completion by early 2003.

1 SALES AND MARKETING

We have recently decreased our sales force, concentrat-
ing our resources on maintaining a highly qualified and expe-
rienced sales and marketing team. We are targeting
wholesale and large commercial accounts with a focus on
the sale of data products.

- COMPETITION

The telecommunications industry is highly competitive.
Some competitors in the markets of carrier services and
fiber optic network providers may have personnel, financial,
and other competitive advantages. In the market for
telecommunication services providers, we compete prima-
rily with other coast-to-coast and regional fiber optic net-
work providers, such as Williams Communications, Qwest,
Level 3, Global Crossing, and Broadwing. We also compete
with numerous other service providers that focus either on
a specific product or set of products or within a geographic
region. We compete primarily on the basis of pricing, quality
of service, network reliability, and customer service and sup-
port. We have only recently begun to offer some new serv-
ices and products and, as a result, we may have fewer and
less well established customer relationships than some of
our competitors.

(1 CUSTOMERS

Our customers currently include regional Bell operating
companies (RBOCs), ISPs, long-distance carriers, and other
communications services providers as well as banks, super-
market and drugstore chains, airlines, and the U.S. Govern-
ment.

Sales to one customer accounted for 24 percent of our
2001 revenues. We derive a portion of our revenues from
services provided to other telecommunications companies,
and have some concentration of credit risk among our cus-
tomer base. For further information, see Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies” in the “Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant
Customers” section.

O INVESTMENTS

To expand our network and increase our revenues, we
maintain ownership interests in the following unconsoli-
dated investments:

e 49.9 percent interest in TW Wireless, L.L.C. (TWW),
which owns and operates a Personal Communications
Services (PCS) wireless network and sells wireless
service;

o 25 percent interest in Minnesota PCS, L.P. (MPCS),
which owns and operates a PCS wireless network and
sells wireless service through its subsidiary, Wireless
North (WN);

e 50 percent interest in American Fiber Touch, L.L.C.
{AFT), which we established with AEP
Communications, L.L.C., a subsidiary of American
Electric Power, to jointly construct one.segment of our
4,300-mile AT&T construction project;

e 50 percent interest in Sierra Touch America, L.L.C.
(STA), which we established with Sierra Pacific
Communications, Inc., a subsidiary of Sierra Pacific, to
jointly construct another segment of the AT&T
construction project;

© 33.3 percent interest in FTV Communications (FTV),
which primarily provides operating, maintenance, and
colocation services; and

e 50 percent interest in Northern Colorado
Telecommunications, L.L.C., which owns and operates
a 240-mile fiber optic ring surrounding the Denver
metropolitan area.

We record our initial investments at cost and have
accounted for these investments under the equity method
because we maintain 20 to 50 percent ownership interests,
and we have the ability to exercise significant influence, but
not control, over the financial and operating policies of these
investments. For mere information regarding our unconsoli-
dated investments, see Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 4, “Unconsolidated Investments,” and Note 13, “Com-
mitments,” in the “Unconsolidated Investments” section.

O REGULATION

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 provides for signifi-
cant deregulation of the United States telecommunications
industry, including the local exchange and long-distance
industries. This Act remains subject to judicial review and
additional Federal Communications Commission (FCC) rule-
making and, therefore, we are unable to predict the ultimate
effect of this regulation on our business.

Telecommunications services are subject to regulation at
the local, state, federal, and foreign levels. In addition, many
regulatory actions are underway or being contemplated by
federal, state, and local governmental authorities. Future leg-
islative, judicial, and regulatory agency actions could
increase our costs, causing the loss of customers and rev-
enues, in addition to impeding or prohibiting our growth.
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CRALLENGES FACING THE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY AND
OUR COMIPANY

We discuss below the challenges and risks associated
with the telecommunications industry in which we operate,
as well as other challenges and risks that relate specifically
1o our company.

_ CHALLENGES FACING THE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY
Some or all of the following challenges and risks may
have a material impact on our business and operations.

Current Economic Conditions Affect the Financial
Position of Telecommunications Services
Providers _

The duration and extent of the current U.S. economic
downturn directly affects the telecommunications industry
in which we operate, decreasing demand for products and

. services and diminishing the financial stability of some of
our customers. The economic downturn has especially
impacted the sector of the telecommunications industry in
which we operate, the sector reliant upon selling fiber optic
capacity. Service providers face significant financial chal-
lenges resulting directly from lower prices for products and
services, increased difficulty collecting revenue from cus-
tomers, perceptions of an overbuilding of fiber optic net-
work capacity, and difficulty in accessing the capital markets
that previously provided a readily available source of working
capital. During 2001 and early 2002, a number of fiber optic
network providers filed for bankruptcy protection, while oth-
ers began exploring restructuring options.

Intense Competition Exists among
Telecommunicatiocns Services Providers

The current economic slowdown, together with less than
expected demand for fiber optic network capacity and
related services, has resulted in intense price competition.
Price competition affects sales as well as profitability. While
prices appear to be stabilizing, we expect to continue to
experience price competition due to these conditions.

In addition to price competition, telecommunications
service providers compete on the basis of network availabil-
ity, service quality and reliability, customer service, and loca-
tion. Also, customer perception of the quality and terms
offered by competing providers is important, as is the rela-
tive strength of a competitor's balance sheet.

Finally, not all telecommunications service providers have
equal resources and capabilities. Competitive advantages
such as greater name recognition, greater financial, technical
and marketing resources, larger customer and revenue
bases, well-established relationships with current and poten-
tial customers, and more sophisticated industry knowledge
are disproportionately distributed across the telecommunica-
tions industry. We expect to continue to face competition
from providers who may have greater resources than we do
in some areas.

Technology Changes Quickiy and Could Make
Our Technoiogy Obsoclete or Require Additional
Investment to Update it

The telecommunications industry is affected by rapid
technological change. Future technology advances may
decrease prices and operating margins. New technologies
may be superior to, and render obsolete, current technolo-
gies, including the technologies we currently employ. Future
success for telecommunications service providers therefore
depends in part on the ability to anticipate and adapt to tech-
nological change in a timely manner.

Changes in Local, State, and Federal Regulation
May Have Material Impacts on Service Providers

As noted above, the telecommunications industry is sub-
ject to local, state, federal and foreign regulation, affecting
the day-to-day conduct of business, as well as the longer-
term prospects of the telecommunications industry.
Changes in the current structure of regulation may materi-
ally impact telecommmunications service providers, including
us. For example, RBOCs are currently prohibited from pro-
viding certain long-distance related services within the
region where they domipate the local access service com-
ponent. If the law or regulation is changed to allow the
RBOCs to compete in the long-distance business, their mar-
ket position may give them a competitive advantage. Thus,
our business will continue to be affected by changes in the
regulatory environment in which we operate.

[ CHALLENGES FACING OUR BUSINESS AND
OPERATIONS

Network Service Provisioning and Delivery Delay
Will Adversely Affect Our Operations

Like all telecommunications service providers, we some-
times experience delay in provisioning and delivering net-
work services. This can be caused by a delay in obtaining
capacity from other providers, inadequate local connectivity,
delayed receipt of equipment from vendors, and inefficient
operating systems and controls. Provisioning and delivery
delay adversely impacts revenue collection and customer
perception of our service quality. Because all telecommuni-
cations service providers' networks must rely on other carri-
ers, some service delivery delays will continue for the
foreseeable future to be part of the telecommunications
business. While we cannot guarantee our systems will meet
our provisioning and service delivery goals, we are striving
to distinguish our service delivery through the use of a
highly efficient and unique operating system, which we
believe will facilitate higher-than-standard performance.

Network Service interruptions Could Expose Us

~ to Liability or Cause Us to Lose Customers

While we have designed and constructed our network
first, to avoid, and second, to minimize service interruptions,
we cannot guarantee network service will never be inter-
rupted. Like every telecommunications service provider, our
operations depend on our ability to avoid and minimize any
damages from power losses, excessive sustained or peak
user demand, equipment failures, network software flaws,
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fiber optic cable cuts, or natural disasters. Any failure of
equipment or network facilities could result in interruption of
customer service until repairs are made or until equipment
replacements are installed. Similarly, if a carrier or other
service provider upon whom we are dependent fails to pro-
vide service to us, the service to our customers could be
interrupted. If service is not restored in a timely manner,
agreements with customers may obligate us to provide
credit or other remedies, which would reduce our revenues.
Service disruptions could also damage our reputation with
customers, causing us to lose existing customers or have
difficulty attracting new ones. Many customers’ communica-
tions needs are extremely time-sensitive, and service deliv-
ery interruption may cause these customers significant
losses.

Traffic Volume on Qur Network Must increase to
Improve Qur Profitability

We must substantially increase the volume of data, Inter-
net, video transmission, and dedicated private line services
on our network to realize our anticipated revenues, cash
flow, operating efficiencies and cost benefits. To do this, we
will need to develop commitments with new large-volume
customers, as well as increase commitments from our cur-
rent customers. If we are unable to increase dedicated and
data traffic on our network, our ability to realize profits and
earnings growth will be adversely affected.

Qwest Dispute Resolution is Complex and
Results Could Be Unsatisfactory

As described in Item 3, “Legal Proceedings,” and Con-
solidated Financial Statements Note 12, “Contingencies,”
we are disputing a number of complex and important mat-
ters with Qwest, including Qwest's failure to allow us to
obtain the economic benefits of our June 2000 acquisition
from Qwest of numerous customers, facilities, and service
contracts. These disputes are subject to separate proceed-
ings before an arbitrator, the FCC, and a federal court. The
outcomes of these disputes are materially important. While
we are confident of our ability to preserve our interests in
these proceedings, we cannot guarantee we will attain our
desired results.

Our disputes with Qwest have also affected the services
and revenues each party provides the other. We have miti-
gated potential adverse consequences by becoming less
dependent on Qwest-provided systems and networks.
Implementation of our order entry, provisioning and billing
system, for example, will permit us to limit our exposure to
potential adverse consequences of these disputes so that
the exposure no longer continues to grow. By year-end
2002, we plan to migrate all traffic that can physically be
migrated from Qwest's network to our own network or the
network of other providers. At the same time, Qwest pur-
chased a significant amount of services from us in 2001. In
the context of these disputes, Qwest has ceased to pur-
chase a material portion of the services that it previously
purchased from us. Qwest's termination of these purchases
has reduced our revenue-in 2001 and we expect may
reduce our annual pre-tax income in 2002.

I We Need Financing and Are Unable to Obtain
it on Reasonable Terms, Qur Ability to Conduct
Our Business and Meet Our Commitments Could
Be Adversely Affected

We are committed to maintaining and expanding our
fiber optic network in accordance with our plans and com-
mitments and believe we have a competitive advantage
over many of our competitors because we currently have no
outstanding short- or long-term debt. If, however, we do not
adeguately reduce our expenses and generate sufficient
cash flow to maintain our network and meet our build-out
commitments, we may be required to seek financing by
incurring debt or otherwise. We cannot predict with cer-
tainty whether we will need financing in 2002 or, if we do,
whether financing will be available at that time on accept-
able terms. An inability to raise funds when needed could
have an adverse effect on our operations and the ability to
maintain and increase our business. Further, if we decide to
raise funds through the incurrence of debt, we may become
subject to restrictive financial covenants and ratios, which
could otherwise limit our operations.

Our ability to arrange future financing and the costs of
financing depend upon many factors, including but not lim-
ited to:

General economic and capital markets conditions;

Conditions in the telecommunications market;

Regulatory developments;

Credit availability from banks or other lenders;

Investor confidence in the telecommunications

industry and in us;

Our business prospects;

o QOur ability to limit our expenses and other
expenditures; and

o Provisions of tax and securities laws that are

conducive to raising capital.

o 0 0 0 o

o

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On December 28, 2001, MPC, NorthWestern, the Mon-
tana Consumer Council, and the Montana Large Customer
Group filed a settlement agreement with The Montana Pub-
lic Service Commission (PSC) resolving issues related to the
sale of the utility. On January 29, 2002, the PSC approved
the utility operations under NorthWestern as a fit, willing,
and able provider of adequate service and facilities at just
and reasonable rates. This was the last remaining regulatory
approval required for the sale of the utility operations to
NorthWestern. MPC received approval for the utility sale
from its shareholders at a special meeting in September
2001, having received regulatory approval from the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission {FERC) in February 2001.

MPC sold its oil and natural gas operations on October
31, 2000, Continental Energy on February 21, 2001, and its
coal operations on April 30, 2001, With the sale of the utility
operations on February 15, 2002, all of the energy busi-
nesses were divested and Touch America was established
as a stand-alone company.
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Prior to the sale of the former utility operations, MPC
operated a regulated electric utility, consisting principally of
electric transmission and distribution systems, and a natural
gas transmission and distribution utility that purchased,
transported, distributed, and stored natural gas. In addition,
through its former unregulated Colstrip Unit 4 Lease Man-
agement Division, MPC sold electric energy from its Colstrip
Unit 4 operation. .

Pursuant to the provisions of the September 29, 2000
Unit Purchase Agreement with NorthWestern, under which
the utility operations were sold to NorthWestern, we have
agreed to indemnify NorthWestern for certain adverse con-
sequences which may arise following the sale. For addi-
tional information on the indemnification, see Consolidated
Financial Statements Note 12, “Contingencies” in the “Sale
of MPLLC/Utility Business - Indemnity Obligations” section.

For additional information on the sales of the energy
businesses and the application of discontinued operations
accounting treatment, see Consolidated Financial State-
ments Note 2, “Decision to Sell Energy Businesses.” For
additional information on how our business plan affects lig-
uidity and capital resources, see Item 7, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” (MD&A), in the “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” section.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT INDUSTRY
SEGWIENTS

We are a national provider of voice, data, and video
broadband services. We have one reportable segment,
telecommunications services. Executive management
reviews the revenue streams of the various products and
geographic locations; however; financial performance is eval-
uated based on delivery of products on a single network.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
We are subject to numerous local, state, and federal
environmental laws and regulations. We do not expect envi-
ronmental costs to have a material effect on our consoli-
dated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.
For additional information on environmental issues, see
Consolidated Financial Statements Note 12, “Contingen-
cies,” in the “Sale of MPLLC/Utility Business - Indemnity
* Obligations” and “Sale of Oil and Natural Gas Operations”
sections.

EMPLOYEES
At December 31, 2001, 838 of MPC's 2,112 employees
were associated with its telecommunications operations.

FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC OPERATIONS

We have no foreign operations.

ITER 2. PROPERTIES

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Our fiber optic network and its component assets, which
we own, lease, or hold pursuant to licenses, are our primary
telecommunications properties. We either hold title to, or
have proprietary rights in, the route miles constituting our
fiber optic network. Those route miles 1o which we do not
have legal title are held principally through Indefeasible
Rights-of-Use (IRU) agreements that extend for an eco-
nomic life of twenty to twenty-five years.

We believe that we have obtained the necessary
licenses, permits, easements, leases, and other rights and
interests from third-party landowners and governmental
authorities and have completed particular regulatory filings
to permit us to install conduit and fiber. These rights and
interests generally are nonexclusive and, when possible, we
hold them under multi-year agreements with renewal
options.

We own a general office building in Butte, Montana,
where our executive and administrative offices and primary
network operating center are located. We also lease twenty-
one offices in thirteen states located throughout the west-
ern United States and Washington, DC.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

CELECTRIC UTIITY

At December 31, 2001, MPC owned and operated 6,923
miles of electric transmission lines and 16,460 miles of elec-
tric distribution lines. MPC's electric transmission system
extended through the western two thirds of Montana.

CICOLSTRIP UNIT 4

MPC's former unregulated Colstrip Unit 4 Lease Manage-
ment Division leased a 30-percent share of Colstrip Unit 4,
an 805 MW (gross capacity) coal-fired power plant located in
southeastern Montana. A long-term coal supply contract
with Western Energy Company provided the coal necessary
to run the plant. :

CONATURAL GAS UTILITY

MPC'’s natural gas utility, at December 31, 2001, owned
and operated 2,039 miles of natural gas transmission lines
and 3,884 miles of natural gas distribution mains. MPC
served natural gas customers from its transportation sys-
tem, which extended through the western two thirds of
Montana. MPC also had four natural gas storage fields that
enabled it to store natural gas in excess of system load
requirements.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On August 10, 2001, Qwest Communications Corpora-
tion (Qwest) filed a lawsuit in Denver County, Colorado Dis-
trict Court. In this lawsuit, Qwest is seeking damages, in an
amount to be proven at trial, resulting from two agreements
entered into between the parties as a result of our June 30,
2000 acquisition from Qwest. On August 27, 2001, we
moved the Colorado State Court action to the United States
District Court for the District of Colorado. On September 7,
2001, we filed an answer to Qwest’'s complaint, generally
denying Qwest's accusations, and filed a counterclaim
against Qwest. We disagree with the assertions in Qwest's
filing, believe that the claims lack merit, and are vigorously
defending this action.

On August 18, 2001, eight individuals filed a lawsuit in
Montana State District Court, naming MPC, eleven mem:-
bers of the MPC Board of Directors, three officers of both
Touch America and MPC, and PPL Montana as defendants.
In their complaint, the plaintiffs allege that MPC and its
directors and officers had a legal obligation and a fiduciary
duty to obtain shareholder approval before the sale of the
former electric generation assets to PPL Montana. On Sep-
tember 14, 2001, the complaint was amended to add one
other current officer of Touch America, one other current
officer of MPC, and our investment banking consultants as
additional defendants. We believe that MPC and its direc-
tors and officers, and the Touch America officers, have fully
complied with their statutory and fiduciary duties. Accord-
ingly, we are defending the suit vigorously.

For additional information regarding these and other legal
proceedings, see Consoclidated Financial Statements Note
12, "Contingencies.”

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF
MATTERS TO A VOTE OF
SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders
during the quarter ended December 31, 2001.

PART I

ITEMI 5. MARKET FOR THE
REGISTRANT'S COMRMON

EQUITY AND RELATED
ETOCKHOLD

ER MATTERS

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION

The following table presents the high and low sale prices
of MPC's common stock for the years 20071 and 2000, as
well as dividends declared for the year 2000. In conjunction
with the transition to a telecommunications enterprise, the
MPC Board of Directors voted in October 2000 to eliminate
the dividend payment on common stock, effective the first
quarter 2001. The final quarterly dividend on MPC’s com-
mon stock was $0.20 per share, payable on November 1,
2000. MPC had 28,048 common shareholders of record on
December 31, 2001.

On February 14, 2002, Touch America Holdings, Inc.
common stock began trading on the New York Stock
Exchange and Pacific Exchange, Inc. under the symbol TAA.

Teble Commaon stock information:

Dividends

Declared

2001 : High Low Per Share
1st Quarter $26.50 $13.05 $ -
2nd Quarter 16.75 9.65 ~
3rd Quarter 11.48 5.07 -
4th Quarter 7.46 3.95 ~

Dividends

Declared

2000 High Low Per Share
1st Quarter $65.75 $34.63 $0.20
2nd Quarter 64.63 35.31 0.20
3rd Quarter 39.94 28.50 0.20
4th Quarter 37.38 18.50 -

10
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ITEM 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA, 2001-1997

For additional information on the divestiture of the energy businesses and our application of discontinued operations
accounting, see Consolidated Financial Statements Note 2, “Decision to Sell Energy Businesses,” and the “Resuits of Opera-

tions” section of MD&A.

Table Balance Sheet ltems
2001 2000 1998 1398 1997
{Thousands of Dollars)
ASSETS:
Telecommunications property .......... $ 1,081,559 $ 771,893 $ - 237,881 $ 114,027 $ 97457
Less: accumulated depreciation
and amortization ......... ........ 81,240 41,977 21,617 13,489 16,610
Net telecommunications
property .. ... . 1,000,319 729,916 216,264 100,538 80,847
Energy business properties ... ......... - 1,643,151 2,279,918 2,999,451 2,902,075
Less: accumulated depreciation
and amortization ................. - 563,821 791,447 1,018,883 931,375
Net energy business
properties ................. - 1,089,330 1,488,471 1,980,562 1,970,700
Total net plant and property ...... 1,000,319 1,819,246 1,704,735 2,081,100 2,051,547
Otherassets ....................... 538,107 903,679 1,344,008 846,995 754,349
Assets of discontinued operations ... ... 1,621,054 282,350 - - -
TOTALASSETS .................... $ 3,059,480 $ 3,005,275 $ 3,048,743 $ 2 928,095 $ 2,805,886
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common shareholders’ equity ......... $1,131,703 $ 1,123,685 $ 1,029,217 $1,112,103 $ 1,037,534
Unallocated stock held by
trustee for retirement
savingsplan .................... (12,762} (17,227} (20,401) (23,298) (25,945)
Preferredstock ..................... 57,654 57,654 57,654 57,654 57,654
Company obligated mandatorily
redeemable preferred
securities of subsidiary
trust - 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000
longtermdebt .......... ... ... ... - 309,463 618,512 698,329 653,168
Other liabilities . ................ .. .. 767,646 1,278,320 1,298,761 1,018,307 1,018,485
Liabilities of discontinued
operations ...................... 1,115,239 188,480 - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY.. ..... ... $ 3,059,480 $ 3,005,275 $ 3,048,743 $ 2,928,095 $ 2,805,896
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iTERG 6. CSELECTED FIRANCIAL BATA, 2001-1997 (Continued)

Table Income Statement items

200 208D 1293 1838 1397

{Thousands of Dollars)
(except per-share amounts)

REVENUES ... ... ... ... .. .......... $ 549,932 $ 323,327 $ 85,850 $ 88,945 $ 47379
EXPENSES:
Operations and maintenance .. ... ...... 378,728 179,672 34,978 26,877 22,265
Selling, general, and administrative . ... .. 118,585 79,657 23,861 26,981 21,398
Taxes other than income taxes ......... 11,742 5,363 3,802 3,849 2,293
Depreciation and amortization .......... 44,790 22,423 9,037 7,130 2,987
553,843 287,015 71,678 64,837 48,943
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) . ... ... (3,911) 36,312 14,172 24,108 (1,564)
INTEREST EXPENSE AND OTHER INCOME: '
Interestexpense . ................... 2,880 3,810 2,702 8,755 6,044
Other (income) deductions—net . ... .. .. 26,468 (3,963) {17,613) (12,349) {16,149
29,348 (153) {14,911 (3,594) (10,105)

INCOME (LOSS} FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

BEFORE INCOME TAXES . ... .... (33,259) 36,465 29,083 27,702 8,541
INCOME TAXES (BENEFIT) ............. {13,412) 14,134 12,315 9,743 6,035
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING ,
OPERATIONS . ........... ... .. ..... (19,847 22,331 16,768 17,959 2,506
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income taxes . .. . .. (18,452) 115,154 133,578 147,661 126,126
Gain on sale of discontinued operations,
net of incometaxes . . ............. 53,693 62,006 - - -
INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS . ......... ... ..... .. .. 35,241 177,160 133,578 147,661 126,126
NETINCOME ........................ 15,394 199,491 150,346 165,620 128,632
DIVIDENDS ON PREFERRED STOCK . ... .. 3,770 3,690 3,690 3,690 3,690
NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR
COMMON STOCK .................. $ 11,624 $ 185,801 $ 146,656 $§ 161,930 $ 124942
BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
OF CCMMON STOCK:
Continuing operations . ............... $ (023 $ 0.18 $ 0.12 $ 0.13 $ (.0
Discontinued operations . ............. 0.34 1.68 1.22 1.34 1.15
$ 0.11 3 1.86 $ 1.34 $ 1.47 $ 1.14
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SKARE OF .
COMMONSTOCK .................. $ 0.11 ) 1.84 $ 1.33 3 1.47 $ 1.4
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE
OF COMMON STOCK ............... $ - $ 0.60 $ 0.80 3 0.80 $ 0.80
AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING - BASIC {000) ........ 103,768 105,451 109,795 109,962 109,298
EARNINGS COVERAGE OF FIXED
CHARGES, SEC METHOD®™ ... ........ - 1.62x 1.49x 1.38x 1.11x

@ For the year ended December 31, 2001, earnings were inadequate to cover fixed charges by approximately
$45,500,000.

12
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINARICIAL
CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OUR TRANSITION TO A STAND-ALONE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY

We are a telecommunications holding company and the
parent of Touch America, Inc., a national broadband fiber
optic telecommunications operating company. As Touch
America Holdings, Inc., we are successor to MPC, which
implemented a restructuring plan to transform from an
energy-focused business into a telecommunications busi-
ness. MPC decided to transform into a stand-alone telecom-
munications company after its telecommunications
operating subsidiary, Touch America, Inc. experienced sub-
stantial growth. Based on MPC's restructuring plan, on Feb-
ruary 13, 2002, MPC merged into MPLLC, a Montana
limited liability company, which became our wholly owned
subsidiary. Pursuant to the merger agreement, shareholders
of MPC became shareholders in our company, Touch Amer-

ica Holdings, Inc. On February 15, 2002, MPLLC, constitut-

ing MPC's utility operations, was sold to NorthWestern.
Prior to the sale of the utility, MPC had also sold its energy
businesses. As a result of these transactions, we became
the owner of a stand-alone telecommunications business.

CHALLENGES FACING THE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS AND
QUR COMPARNY

During 2001, our company was not profitable, partly as a
result of the same challenges that the telecommunications
industry as a whole has faced and continues to confront.
Our future results will continue to depend largely on our
ability to meet these challenges. These challenges include,
among others:

Economic slowdown;

Fiber optic capacity supply and demand imbalances;
Declining prices for services;

Uncertain and diminished demand for fiber optic
network capacity and related services; and

e Competition.

We believe our strategy, together with more favorable
economic conditions, will allow us to improve our profitabil-
ity and prospects. However, industry-wide challenges are
continuing to put pressure on our ability to produce the
results we desire and will affect our 2002 results. At this
time, we do not expect to show a profit during the first two
quarters of 2002. Our ability to become profitabte during the
latter haif of 2002 will depend on our ability to address the
economic and industry-wide challenges mentioned above.
Additional challenges specific to our company, include,
among others, our ability to:

¢ Reduce our costs of doing business;
e Maintain current customers and add new customers;
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e Complete the fiber optic network build-outs we have
been hired to construct and receive payment for that
work;

s Upgrade our network technology, as needed;

¢ Increase revenues through increasing the volume of
traffic on our network;

o Resolve our disputes with other carriers on terms we
believe are reasonable; and

o Obtain financing, if advisable or necessary.

For further discussion relating to these challenges, see
ltem 1, "Business, Challenges Facing the Telecommunica-
tions Industry and Qur Company.”

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING PQLICIES

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of operations are based upon our consolidated finan-
cial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. The preparation of these financial statements is
based on our critical accounting policies. These policies have
the potential to have a significant impact on our financial
statements, either because of the significance of the finan-
cial statement item to which they relate or because they
require the use of estimates and judgments, the results of
which could differ from actual results. Our significant
accounting policies include:

Revenue Recognition — We record revenues monthly as
service is rendered or products are delivered. To match rev-
enues with associated expenses, we accrue unbilled rev-
enues for telecommunications services delivered to
customers but not yet billed at month-end. In accordance
with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Inter-
pretation No. 43, effective July 1, 1999, we recognize rev-
enues on fiber-use rights, or IRU agreements on it or dark
fiber, or similar agreements, over the period of the agree-
ment rather than at the time of execution. Therefore, in
granting fiber-use rights, we record these transactions as
operating leases and recognize revenues over the term of
the agreement.

Deferred Revenue — We defer revenues to account for
the timing differences between cash received and revenues
earned, primarily under capacity lease contracts, non-recur-
ring charges, and services that are billed in advance. We
reflect these amounts as deferred revenue on our Consoli-
dated Balance Sheet. As discussed previously, we recognize
revenue from capacity contracts over the term of the con-
tract. In instances in which we receive payment at the
beginning of the agreement, we record those amounts as
deferred revenue until earned. Non-recurring charges are
recognized as revenue over the life of the sales agreement
and amounts billed in advance are recognized in revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

Asset Impairment — Long-lived assets, consisting of prop-
erty, plant, and equipment and intangibles, comprise the
majority of our total assets. We review long-lived assets for
impairment annually, or whenever events or changes in cir-
cumstances indicate that we may not recover the carrying
amount of an asset. In performing our analysis of asset
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recoverability, we estimate future cash flows expected to
result from the use of our assets and their eventual disposi-
tion. Our estimates of future cash flows, based on reason-
able and supportable assumptions and projections, requires
us to make subjective judgments. The time periods for esti-
mating future cash flows is often lengthy, which increases
the sensitivity to the assumptions made. Depending on the
assumptions and estimates used, the estimated future cash
flows projected in the evaluation of the long-lived assets can
vary within a wide range of cutcomes. We consider the like-
lihood of possible outcomes in determining the best
estimate of future cash flows.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Credits — We
evaluate and maintain allowances for doubtful accounts and
sales credits. Periodically, we perform a formal analysis of
our allowances to determine whether or not they accurately
reflect our best estimates of customer account balances
that will not be collected. Our analysis considers current
customer balances, the composition of our customer base,
recent economic conditions, historical collection results, and -
other factors. Our analysis requires us to make subjective
judgments, based upon what we believe are reasonable and
supportable assumptions, of those customer balances that
will not be collected. Depending upon our actual collection
results, our allowances for doubtful accounts and sales cred-
its might not be sufficient to adequately provide for uncol-
lectible customer balances requiring us to increase our
allowance in future periods.

Unconsolidated Investments — We currently hold invest-
ments of approximately $50,000,000 and notes receivable
of approximately $17,000,000 from our unconsolidated
investments. In accordance with the appropriate accounting
regulations, because we exercise significant influence, but
not control, over the financial and operating policies of these
investments, we recognize income or losses from these
investments based on the equity method of accounting and
reflect this income or loss in “Other (income) deductions-
net” on our Consolidated Statement of Income. Accordingly,
we do not consolidate the assets and liabilities of these
investments on our Consolidated Balance Sheet or the oper-
ating results of these investments on our Consolidated
Statement of Income.

We continually review our individual ownership percent-
ages, our ability to exercise significant influence over our
unconsolidated investments, and the financial strength of
the remaining owners, to determine whether or not we
should be consolidating those investments’ operating
results with our own. It is possible that in future periods we
may have to consolidate the operating results of an uncon-
solidated investment if we increase our ownership interest
or if current investors exit the investment due to financial
difficulties or changes in business strategy. If in the future
we determine that it is appropriate to consolidate one or
more of our investments, our operating results could be sig-
nificantly impacted depending upon the financial perform-
ance of those investments.
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Similar to our asset impairment analysis, we perform an
analysis of the future recoverability, using expected cash
flows, of our investment balances and amounts loaned to
these investments. Our analysis requires us to make subjec-
tive judgments, based upon what we believe are reasonable
and supportable assumptions, as to the estimated future
recoverability of our investment balances. If circumstances
change and as a result we believe that we will be unable to
recover our invested amounts, we will write-down our
investment balances to estimated recoverable amounts.
Depending on the assumptions and estimates used, the
estimated future recoverability of our investment balances
can vary within a wide range of outcomes.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

With the sale of the energy businesses, we have applied
discontinued operations accounting treatment to utility oper-
ations (inctuding Colstrip Unit 4), coal operations, Continental
Energy, and oil and natural gas operations, resulting in the
following:

o Separately reported income (loss), net of income taxes
from these discontinued operations in “Income from
discontinued operations” on the Consolidated
Statement of Income for all periods presented to
reflect the reclassification of these operations as
discontinued;

o Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are
reported in “Current assets” and "Current liabilities”
under “Assets of discontinued operations” and
“Liabilities of discontinued operations,” respectively,
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The 2001 amounts
represent discontinued utility operations and the 2000
amounts represent discontinued coal operations;

o Reported cash flows of discontinued operations as
“Net cash provided by (used for) discontinued
operations,” segregated by operating, investing, and
financing activities on the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows; and

e Reported general corporate overhead expenses
associated with, but not directly attributable to, our
discontinued operations remained in our continuing
operations’ selling, general, and administrative (SG&A)
expenses.

For additional information on the sales of our energy
businesses and our application of discontinued operations
accounting, see Consolidated Financial Statements Note 2,
"Decision to Sell Energy Businesses.”

ONET INCOME PER SHARE OF COMMON
STOCK
Consolidated net income available for common stock
was $11,624,000 in 2001, compared with $195,801,000 in
2000, and $146,656,000 in 1999.
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Table | The following table shows the sources of consoli-
dated net income on a per-share (basic) basis.
Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Continuing
operations ....... $(0.23) $0.18 $0.12
Discontinued
operations ....... 0.34 1.68 1.22
Consolidated . ... ... $0.11 $1.86 $1.34

2007 COVIPARED WITH 2000

TJRESULTS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Operating income decreased in 2001 by $40,200,000 as
compared to 2000, resulting in a loss from operations for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2001 of approxi-
mately $3,900,000. While 2001 revenues increased by 70
percent as compared to 2000, expenses increased more
than 93 percent due to the factors discussed below.

Revenues

Revenues increased by $226,600,000, or 70 percent,
from $323,300,000 in 2000 to $549,900,000 in 2001. In
2001, we reflected a full year of revenue associated with
the Qwest acquisition. Revenues for the comparative period
in 2000 reflected only six months of activity from this acqui-
sition. In the fourth quarter 2001, our revenues declined
because of a decrease in voice sales across all customer
segments of approximately $38,000,000, which was partially
offset by a $10,000,000 increase in wholesale and commer- .
cial data services sales.

We expect revenues to decrease slightly in the first quar-
ter 2002 and show modest growth during the second half of
2002.

Table The following table shows the year-to-year
changes in our telecommunications revenues.
Percent
2001 2000 Change
(Thousands of Dollars)
REVENUES:
Network services . . . $392,182 $219,620 79%
Retail sales . ... ... 136,549 82,451 66%
Other ........... 21,201 21,256 -
$549,932 $323,327 70%

Network services revenues include wholesale and dedi-
cated business line revenues and comprise approximately
71 percent of our total 2001 revenues. Retail sales revenues
include commercial and consumer long-distance revenues
and account for 25 percent of total revenues. Both of these
revenue categories increased largely due to an increase in
customer traffic associated with the Qwest acquisition.
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Expenses

Total expenses increased $266,800,000, or 93 percent,
from $287,000,000 in 2000 to $553,800,000 in 2001. As dis-
cussed above, 2001 was the first full year of operations that
included the Qwest acquisition. Therefore, all expense cate-
gories showed significant increases.

Operations and maintenance {O&M) expenses include
costs associated with our network, third party network
charges, and other operating expenses. These expenses
increased by approximately $199,100,000 primarily due to
costs incurred to access other carriers’ networks.

SG&A expenses are comprised of sales, customer serv-
ice, and administrative expenses. These expenses increased
$39,000,000 primarily due to the additional sales force
related to the acquisition, increased sales and marketing
efforts, and the related infrastructure required for this effort.

Taxes other than income taxes increased approximately
$6,400,000 because of increased property taxes associated
with our network expansion and payroll taxes associated
with the additional workforce as a result of the Qwest acqui-
sition. Depreciation and amortization expense increased
$22,400,000 primarily due to the Qwest acquisition and con-
tinuing construction of our fiber optic network.

Other (Income) Deductions ‘

Other (income) deductions — net decreased approxi-
mately $30,400,000 in 2001, primarily because of two
items. The first item was a write-down of two unconsoli-
dated investments totaling $15,700,000. The second item
was an increase in losses from unconsolidated investments
of approximately $14,600,000, as described below.

In July 2001, we invested $4,000,000 for a minority inter-
est in preferred shares of iBEAM Broadcasting Corporation
(iBEAM), a Delaware corporation. in October 2001, iBEAM
filed a petition for reorganization with the Bankruptcy Court
for the District of Delaware pursuant to Chapter 11 of the
United States Bankruptcy Code. We do not expect to
recover our $4,000,000 investment because of our status as
a preferred shareholder in bankruptcy proceedings. There-
fore, we wrote off the $4,000,000 investment in the third
guarter 2001.

In January 2000, we signed a purchase agreement with
MPCS to acquire a 25 percent interest in MPCS’ wireless
communications business. In accordance with the agree-
ment, we made an initial equity investment. We also loaned
and advanced funds to MPCS and guaranteed the payment
of a note. MPCS defaulted on the note we guaranteed, and
subsequently the creditor withdrew the proceeds from our
collateral account. The partners of MPCS unanimously
decided to offer the assets of MPCS for sale. Because the
expected proceeds from the sales of MPCS’ assets would
not be sufficient to repay the withdrawn collateral and
MPCS' loan obligations to us, we recorded a loss of
$11,700,000 related to our MPCS investment and the
MPCS note receivable in 2001. For more information on the
write-down of this unconsolidated investment, see Consoli-
dated Financial Statements Note 13, “Commitments,” in
the “Unconsolidated Investments” section.
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Increased losses from unconsolidated investments
resulted primarily from losses of approximately $14,500,000
associated with TWW in 2001. To date, TWW has experi-
enced losses consistent with expectations. We expect
TWW to continue to incur operating losses of approximately
$9,000,000 in 2002.

For further information regarding unconsolidated invest-
ments and related party transactions, see Consolidated
Financial Statements Note 4, “Unconsolidated Invest-
ments,” Note 10, “Related Party Transactions,” and Note
13, “Commitments,” in the "Unconsoclidated Investments”
section.

[T RESULTS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Table | The following table presents the results of discon-
tinued operations for the three years ended

December 31, 2001.

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1989

(Thousands of Dollars)

DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS:
Income (loss) from
discontinued utility
operations, net of
income taxes
Income from
discontinued coal
operations, net of
income taxes
Income from
Continental Energy,
net of income
taxes
Income from
discontinued oil
and natural gas
operations, net of
income taxes . .... -
Gain on sale of
discontinued coal
operations, net of
income taxes
Gain on sale of
Continental Energy,
net of income
taxes
Gain (gain
adjustment)} on sale
of discontinued oil
and natural gas
operations, net of
income taxes

$(28,736) $ 16,259 $ 63,720

31,897 37,400

37,603 17,933

29,395 14,525

{9,236) 62,006 -

- NET INCOME FROM
DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS $35,241 $177,160 $133,5678

Former Utility Operations

The sale of the utility operations closed on February 15,
2002. Income from utility operations for 2001 decreased
$45,000,000, from income of $16,300,000 in 2000 to a loss of
$28,700,000 in 2001. This decrease was caused primarily by
two factors. The first factor was the effect of the costs to
serve and terminate a power supply contract with an indus-
trial customer, in which MPC made a one-time payment of
$62,500,000 to buy out the remaining term of the power sup-
ply contract. The second factor was decreased rates charged
to general business customers as a result of a sharing of pro-
ceeds from the sale of gathering and production properties
previously included in the natural gas utility’s rate base.

Former Coal Operations

Income from MPC'’s former coal operations decreased
approximately $24,900,000 primarily because of its April 30,
2001 sale to Westmoreland Coal Company (Westmoreland),
which resulted in only four months of operations during
2001. In addition, the coal operations had a loss of approxi-
mately $2,400,000 in April 2001 primarily due to a change in
cost estimates associated with postretirement health bene-
fits. As a result of the sale, MPC recorded an after-tax gain,
subject to purchase price adjustments, of approximately
$31,400,000.

Continental Energy

MPC closed the sale of Continental Energy on February
21, 2001. Income from Continental Energy decreased
approximately $34,300,000 during 2001 compared to 2000
primarily because of the sale, which resulted in less than
two months of operations for 2001. As a result of the sale,
MPC recorded an after-tax gain of approximately
$31,600,000.

Former Oil and Natural Gas Operations

MPC closed the sale of its former oil and natural gas oper-
ations on October 31, 2000. in the third quarter 2001, MPC
recorded a $14,400,000 decrease in the gain on sale of the
former oil and natural gas operations related to the increased
sharing of sale proceeds with the utility’s natural gas cus-
tomers. This decrease was partially offset by a $5,200,000
adjustment to income tax associated with the gain on the
sale, which was recorded in the fourth quarter 2001.

2000 COWIPARED WITH 1899

O RESULTS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Income from our telecommunications operations mare
than doubled in 2000 when compared with 1999, increasing
approximately $22,100,000, from $14,200,000 in 1999 to
$36,300,000 in 2000. These significant increases resulted

primarily from the Qwest acquisition.

Revenues

Revenues increased by $237,500,000, or 277 percent,
from $85,800,000 in 1999 to $323,300,000 in 2000. Rev-
enues for 2000 reflect six months of activity from the
Qwest acquisition. Network services revenues include
wholesale and dedicated business line revenues and
increased largely due to an increased customer base. Retail
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sales revenues include commercial and consumer long-dis-
tance revenues and increased for the same reason. Other
revenues, including equipment sales, engineering, and con-
struction services, increased primarily as a result of sales of
these services to TW Wireless.

Table | The following table shows the year-to-year
changes in our telecommunications revenues.
Percent
20380 1883 Change
(Thousands of Dollars) ‘
REVENUES:
Network services ... $219,620 $43,170 409%
Retail sales . ...... 82,451 24,724 234%
Other . ........... 21,256 17,956 18%
$323,327  $85,850 277%
Expenses

Total expenses for telecommunications operations
increased approximately $215,300,000, from $71,700,000 in
1999 to $287,000,000 in 2000. O&M expenses increased
approximately $144,700,000 due primarily to higher off-net-
work charges for access to other telecommunications com-
panies’ systems to carry the increased traffic discussed
above. SG&A expenses increased approximately
$55,700,000 as a result of customer growth and the
increased costs of expanding our infrastructure and sales
and marketing efforts. Sales and sales-support staff
increased from approximately 50 at the beginning of the
year to approximately 300 by the end of the year. Taxes
other than income taxes increased approximately
$1,600,000 and depreciation and amortization expense
increased approximately $13,400,000, mainly due to contin-
uing expansion of our fiber optic network and the additional
assets acquired in 2000.

Prior to the Qwest acquisition, much of our telecommu-
nications service was provided on our network. The increase
in customer numbers and geographic distribution of cus-
tomers resulted in a significant percentage increase in our
use of other telecommunications companies’ fiber optic net-
works. These off-network charges represented the single
largest operating expense for our tefecommunications oper-
ations for 2000.

Interest Expense and Cther Income

Interest expense was approximately $1,100,000 higher in
2000 compared to 1999 primarily because borrowings from
discontinued utility operations were higher in 2000.

Other income — net decreased $13,700,000 principally
due to a loss of approximately $1,500,000 from unconsoli-
dated investments, as compared with approximately
$9,800,000 of earnings for 1999. The decrease results pri-
marily from losses in two unconsolidated investments.

0 RESULTS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Former Utility Operations

Income from the utility operations decreased approxi-
mately $47,500,000 compared with 1999, primarily due to
the December 1999 generation assets sale. As expected,
MPC experienced a decline in electric utility earnings
because assets included in the generation sale were
removed from the rate base and, therefore, no longer
earned a return. An increase in natural gas rates, a weather-
related increase in volumes sold, and customer growth par-
tially offset this decrease.

Former Coal Operations

Income from MPC's discontinued coal operations
decreased mainly because of reduced revenues resulting
from lower prices due to contract amendments, negotiated
in 1998 that took effect in mid-2000, relating to the coal sup-
ply agreement between Western Energy and the owners of
Colstrip Units 3 and 4. Lower sales volumes because of
scheduled maintenance and unplanned outages at Colstrip
also contributed to the decrease.

Continental Energy

Income from Continental Energy increased, primarily due
to an after-tax gain of approximately $20,800,000 on the
sale of the equity interest in the Brazos project recorded in
the second quarter 2000,

Former Oil and Natural Gas Operations

Income from discontinued oil and natural gas operations
increased, despite only ten months of operation in 2000, pri-
marily because of higher commodity prices. Another factor
was the absence of write-downs in 2000 compared to the
write-downs of Canadian natural gas properties in 1999.
MPC recorded a gain on the sale of the oil and natural gas
operations of approximately $62,000,000, net of income
taxes, in the fourth quarter 2000.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

[ OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash used for continuing operations was
$95,5636,000 in 2001, compared to net cash provided by
continuing operations of $78,733,000 in 2000 and
$230,915,000 in 1999. The current year decrease of
$174,269,000 resulted primarily from taxes paid on pro-
ceeds received from the October 31, 2000 sale of MPC's oil
and natural gas operations along with additional increased
working capital requirements relating to our telecommunica-
tions operations.
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O INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash used for investing activities of our continuing
operations was $128,098,000 in 2001, compared to
$51,918,000 in 2000 and $135,294,000 in 1999, The current
year increase of $76,180,000 was attributable mainly to the
following:

o A decrease in proceeds received from the sales of
discontinued operations, having received in 2001
approximately $84,500,000 from the sale of
Continental Energy and approximately $138,000,000
from the sale of MPC's coal operations, as compared
10 2000, when MPC received approximately
$474,393,000 from the sale of MPC's oil and natural
gas operations;

o A decrease in capital expenditures of $2356,830,000
mainly because we made no acquisitions in 2001 but
completed the Qwest acquisition in 2000;

© An increase in capital contributions to unconsolidated
investments of $35,971,000 in 2001; and

e A decrease in proceeds from sales of property and
investments of $23,850,000.

Capital expenditures were $310,408,000 in 2001, relating
primarily to the expansion of our fiber optic network. This
compares with capital expenditures of $546,238,000 in 2000
and $127,476,000 in 1999. The 2000 capital expenditures
include approximately $206,000,000 associated with the
Qwest acquisition.

Our capital expenditures for 2002 are estimated to be
approximately $105,000,000, net of AT&T reimbursements.
We expect to fund $65,000,000 from operations and the
remaining $40,000,000 from a portion of the utility sale
proceeds.

O FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by financing activities of continuing
operations was $150,594,000 in 2001, compared to net
cash used for financing activities of continuing operations of
$23,973,000 in 2000 and $304,843,000 in 1999. During
2001, we borrowed an additional $154,100,000 under our
5-Year Senior Secured Credit Facility (Credit Facility).

Dividends paid on preferred stock were $3,690,000 in
2001. Dividends paid on common and preferred stock were
$67,053,000 in 2000. As discussed in Item 5, “Market for

the Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters,” the MPC Board of Directors voted in October
2000 to eliminate the dividend payment on common stock
effective the first quarter 2001. The final quarterly dividend
on MPC's common stock was $0.20 per share, payable on
November 1, 2000. The Board’s decision did not affect divi-
dends on preferred stock. For the foreseeable future, we do
not expect to pay dividends on our common stock.

On February 15, 2002, we utilized a portion of the pro-
ceeds from the sale of the utility operations to repay the
entire $254,100,000 balance outstanding under the Credit
Facility, which was then cancelled. Based on financial per-
formance for the twelve-month period ending September
30, 2001, we were not in compliance with certain financial
covenants under the Credit Facility. On November 14, 2001,
we received a 30-day waiver of the requirement to comply
with the financial covenants from the lending banks under
the Credit Facility. On December 14, 2001, we received an
additional waiver through February 15, 2002. Our obligations
under the Credit Facility terminated with the repayment of
the Credit Facility on February 15, 2002, in connection with
the completion of the restructuring and the sale of MPLLC
to NorthWestern. Currently, we do not have any short- or
long-term debt facilities in place.

For further information on our financing activities, see
Consolidated Financial Statements Note 8, “Long-Term
Debt,” and Note 9, "Short-Term Borrowing.”

O LIQUIDITY

2802 Fund Reguirements

We expect to have three primary requirements for funds
during the remainder of 2002, including (1) taxes related to
the sale of MPLLC to NorthWestern; (2) capital require-
ments of approximately $217,000,000 (before AT&T reim-
bursements) relating to our contract to build-out fiber optic
routes for AT&T and further build-out of our own network;
and (3) operating capital.

The $217,000,000 includes $20,300,000 of capital contri-
butions to our unconsolidated investments in accordance
with the agreements governing these relationships. It also
includes other contractual obligations in 2002 for construc-
tion projects (including the AT&T construction project) of
approximately $164,200,000, and capital lease commit-
ments of approximately $14,400,000.

Table | Our contractual obligations, including commitments for future payments under non-cancelable lease arrangements

and short- and Jong-term debt arrangements are summarized below.

Payments Bue by Pericd
Less
than 1 1-3 4-5 After B
Total Year Years Years Years
(Thousands of Dollars)
Longtermdebt ............ ... ... .. $ 254,100 $ 254,100 $ - $ - $ -
Operatingleases . ................... 39,829 5,580 13,288 6,144 14,817
Unconditional purchase obligations ... ... 216,971 198,871 18,100 - -
Total contractual obligations . . ... .... $ 510,900 $ 458,651 $ 31,388 $ 6,144 $ 14,817
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On February 15, 2002, we utilized a portion of the.pro-
ceeds from the sale of the utility operations to repay the
entire $254,100,000 balance outstanding under the Credit
Facility, which was then cancelled.

2002 Sources of Funds

We believe we have funds available, or will be able to
put in place sufficient sources of funds for our various
required expenditures during 2002. in addition, we will seek
to preserve our cash position by completing our network
construction by early 2003, and lighting new routes on the
network only when we have sales in place to justify the cap-
ital expenditure. As discussed under ltem 1, “Business,”
part of our strategy in 2002 is to reduce our costs of operat-
ing activities and thereby decrease our funding require-
ments for the year to a level below what they would have
otherwise been. ‘

During 2002, we expect to have three primary sources of
funds: (1) the net proceeds we received on February 15,
2002 from the sale of MPLLC to NorthWestern; (2) cash
flow from operations; and (3) payments from AT&T for our
build-out of its new fiber optic routes.

The cash consideration for the sale of our utility opera-
tions was $602,000,000. As of March 1, 2002, after repay-
ing our $254,100,000 Credit Facility, paying closing
adjustments and transaction costs, and redeeming preferred
stock, we had approximately $275,000,000 in cash from the
utility sale. We estimate that income taxes related to the
sale will amount to approximately $100,000,000, which
would leave approximately $175,000,000 for operating and
capital expenditures during 2002.

We expect to increase our cash flow from operations for
2002 based on a number of factors, including the competi-
tive advantages we believe we have, an improving eco-
nomic environment, and industry developments suggesting
a leveling of prices for network-related services. However,
we can give no assurance that we will be successful in
increasing our cash flow.

We are uncertain what impact, if any, our disputes with
Qwest will have on our revenues and cash flow during 2002.
For example, our revenues will decline if Qwest terminates
services it currently receives from us. During 2001, the rev-
enues we received from Qwest decreased as the result of
its cancellation of services it had purchased from us.

Our capital expenditures for 2002 are estimated to be
approximately $105,000,000. We expect to fund
$65,000,000 of our estimated 2002 capital expenditures
from operations and the remaining $40,000,000 from a por-
tion of the utility sale proceeds. The AT&T construction con-
tract, which represents $40,000,000 of our 2002 capital
expenditures, requires that we expend approximately
$151,900,000 and then receive reimbursements of
$111,900,000 from AT&T. We currently anticipate receiving
these reimbursements during 2002. Any delay in receiving
the AT&T reimbursements or other anticipated sources of
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funds would impact our liquidity position during 2002 and
could require us to seek outside financing during the period
of delay.

Currently, we do not have any short- or long-term debt
facilities in place. Depending on our actual requirements for
funds during 2002, the timing of those requirements and
the amount and timing of our receipt of revenues during the
year, we may consider establishing an asset-based or other
credit facility during 2002.

Based upon the current level of operations, our manage-
ment believes that our cash flows from operations will be
adequate to meet our anticipated requirements for working
capital, capital expenditures, and other necessary costs in
2002. There can be no assurance, however, that our busi-
ness will continue to generate cash flow at or above current
levels. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow to
meet our capital requirements, we will be required to seek
outside financing, reduce capital expenditures, terminate cer-
tain aspects of our operations, or otherwise not fulfill our var-
ious commitments. We cannot assure that outside financing
will be available to us in the future at acceptable rates.

Neither we nor our subsidiaries participate in, or secure
financing for, any unconsolidated, limited purpose entity. For
additional information on our unconsolidated investments,
see Consolidated Financial Statements Note 4, “Unconsoli-
dated Investments” and Note 13, “Commitments” in the
“Unconsolidated Investments” section.

SEC RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

For the year ended December 31, 2001, earnings were
inadequate o cover fixed charges by approximately
$45,500,000. The ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the
years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 were 1.62 times
and 1.49 times, respectively. We used net income and
income taxes from continuing operations to calculate earn-
ings. Fixed charges include interest from continuing and dis-
continued operations, the implicit interest of Colstrip Unit 4
rentals, and one third of all other rental payments.

INFLATION
We believe that, at currently anticipated levels, inflation
will not materially affect our results of operations.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

For additional information on environmental issues, see
Consolidated Financial Statements Note 12, “Contingen-
cies,” in the "Sale of MPLLC/Utility Business - Indemnity
Obligations” and “Sale of Oil and Natural Gas Operations”
sections.

NEW ACCQUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For information on new accounting pronouncements and
how they affect us, see Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 14, “New Accounting Pronouncements.”
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ITERE 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND
QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RISK

(NTEREST RATE RISK

We were exposed to market risk associated with interest
rate fluctuations, because at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
Touch America had debt of $254,100,000 and $100,000,000
respectively, which accrued interest based either on certain
benchmark rates of interest, the London Interbank Offered
Rate, or our bank’s base rate. We did not use derivative
financial instruments to manage our exposure to interest
rate fluctuations.

On February 15, 2002, we repaid the entire outstanding
loan and cancelled the Credit Facility.

We do not currently use any derivative financial instru-
ments.

SUMMARY OF 2000 AND COMPARISON OF 2001
WITH 2000

In 2000, our discontinued utility operations were exposed
to commodity price risk in the following ways:

o A portion of the electric energy MPC was required to
sell to large industrial customers at fixed rates was
purchased at rates indexed to a wholesale market,
which had been and continued to be higher than the
fixed sales rate. MPC managed its exposure to losses
from these agreements with financial derivatives called
“price swaps" and offsetting electric energy purchase
and sales agreements;
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o Colstrip Unit 4 faced the possibility that if it could not
generate sufficient electric energy to meet its supply
obligations, it would have to purchase electric energy
at wholesale rates that could be higher than its
scheduled sale rates or that, even with sufficient
capacity, Colstrip Unit 4's operating and fuel costs
could exceed the revenues allowable under its rate
schedules; and

o MPC contracted to sell some natural gas from storage
to a large industrial customer at a wholesale rate,
which could have been higher than the historical costs
of the storage gas. MPC managed its exposure o
potential losses from that sale with a “variable for
fixed" price swap agreement.

In 2001, the electric energy supply agreement with a
large industrial customer was terminated, the natural gas
sale from storage completed, and the related derivative
instruments settled. Thus, only Colstrip Unit 4 was exposed
to commodity price risk at December 31, 2001.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the discontinued utility
operations had long-term debt, including the portion due in
one year, and mandatorily redeemable preferred securities,
all accruing interest at fixed rates. Thus, these businesses
were exposed to interest rate risk, in that a possible adverse
change in interest rates could have resulted in a decrease of
the fair value of these debt instruments. MPC did not use
derivative financial instruments to manage its interest rate
risk.
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WIANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Touch America Holdings, Inc. is
responsible for the preparation and integrity of the consoli-
dated financial statements of the Company. These financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles, which are consistently
applied, and appropriate in the circumstances. in preparing
the financial statements, management makes appropriate
estimates and judgments based upon available informa-
tion. Management also prepared the other financial infor-
mation in the annual report on Form 10-K and is
responsible for its accuracy and consistency with the
financial statements.

Management maintains systems of internal accounting
control, which are adequate to provide reasonable assur-
ance that the financial statements are accurate, in all mate-
rial respects. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that there are inherent limitations in all systems
of internal control in that the costs of such systems should
not exceed the benefits to be derived. Management
believes the Company's systems provide this appropriate
balance.

The Company maintains an internal audit function that
independently assesses the effectiveness of the systems
and recommends possible improvements. Pricewaterhouse-
Coopers LLP, the Company’s independent accountants, also
considered the systems in connection with its audit. Man-
agement has considered recommendations of the internal
auditors and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP concerning the

systems and has taken cost-effective actions to respond
appropriately to these recommendations.

The Board of Directors, acting through an Audit Commit-
tee composed entirely of directors who are not employees
of the Company, is responsible for determining that man-
agement fulfills its responsibilities in the preparation of the
financial statements. The Audit Committee recommends,
and the Board of Directors appoints, the independent
accountants. The independent accountants and internal audi-
tors are assured of full and free access to the Audit Com-
mittee and meet with it to discuss their audit work, the
Company'’s internal controls, financial reporting, and other
matters. The Committee is also responsible for determining
adherence to the Company’s Code of Business Conduct
{Code). The Code addresses, among other things, potential
conflicts of interests and compliance with laws, including
those relating to financial disclosure and the confidentiality
of proprietary information.

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, which is responsible for
conducting its examination in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards.

Rl /@//L&M/v

Robert P. Gannon
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

J.P. Pederson
Vice Chairman and
Chief Financial Officer
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REPORY OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

ORICEVATERHOUSE! COPERS (@

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Touch America Holdings, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Touch America Holdings,
Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our
opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the
accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein when read in conjunction
with the related consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of
these statements in accordance with auditing standards
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generally accepted in the United States of America, which
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements, assessing the account-
ing principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reason-
able basis for our opinion.

As more fully discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, as of July 1, 1999, the Company
changed its method of accounting for revenues relating to
certain agreements to grant and exchange fiber-use rights.
In addition, as discussed in Note 15, the Company changed
its method of accounting for derivative financial instruments
as of January 1, 2001.

PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP
Portland, Oregon

February 26, 2002
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INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS .. ... ... ... .. ..

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:

Income (loss) from discontinued operations (less applicable

income taxes of $3,351, $45,638 and $31,750) . ..................
Gain on sale of discontinued operations (less applicable

income taxes of $35,989 for 2001 and $42,769 for 2000} . .. .........

INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED CPERATIONS .. ....................
NETINCOME ... ... .. . . .

DIVIDENDS ON PREFERRED STOCK . ...... ... ... ... .. ... ... . ...

NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR COMMON STOCK . .. ... ..... ... ... .
AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMWMON SHARES

OUTSTANDING -BASIC(000) ...... ... ...... ... .. ... .........

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK . . . .. ... ... ... .. .
AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES

OUTSTANDING -DILUTED (000) ... . ... ... ... ... .. ... .......

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK . . ... ... ... ..

Year Ended December 31,

2001

2000

1989

(Thousands of Dollars)
(except per-share amounts)

$ 549,932 $ 323,327 $ 85,850
378,726 179,672 34,978

© 118,585 79,657 23,861
11,742 5,363 3,802
44,790 22,423 9,037
553,843 287,015 71,678
(3.911) 36,312 14,172
2,880 3,810 2,702
26,468 (3,963) (17,613}
29,348 {153) (14,911}
(33,259) 36,465 29,083
{13,412) 14,134 12,315
(19,847 22,331 16,768
(18,452) 115,154 133,578
53,693 62,006 -
35,241 177,160 133,578
16,394 199,491 150,346
3,770 3,690 3,680

$ 11624 $ 195,801 $ 146,656
103,768 105,451 108,795

$ 0.11 $ 1.86 $ 1.34
103,770 106,353 110,553

$ 0.11 $ 1.84 $ 1.33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOUCH AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents . ........ . . . i e
Accounts receivable:
Trade, netof allowances . ... ... ..
Related parties . . ............ e e
Materials and supplies {principally at average cost) ............ .. ... ..o,
Prepayments and otherassets ........ ... . i e
Prepaid iINCOME 1aXES . o oo v oot e
Deferred inCOMeE taXeS . .. ...
Assets of discontinued operations .. ... ... ..

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT:
Telecommunications properties, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization . . ... . e
Utility plant, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization .. .................

OTHER ASSETS:
Intangibles, net of accumulated amortization ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... L
Unconsolidated investments . . .. . . ...
Other INVESIMENTS . .. e e
Regulatory assets related toincometaxes . ... ... .. ... . i
Regulatory assets —other . ... ... . . e
Deferred inCome taxes . . ... oot
0 {01

TOTAL ASSETS .. ..o

December 31,

2001

2070

(Thousands of Dollars)

$ 45307 $ 118417
239,572 272,398
35,415 27,900
947 16,446
8,420 71,806
24,711 -
6,198 17,738
1,521,054 282,350
1,881,624 807,055
1,000,319 729,916
- 1,089,330
1,000,319 1,819,246
16,866 29,949
50,426 30,448
7,377 66,495

- 60,423

- 142,434

76,269 21,419
26,599 27,806
177,537 378,974

$ 3,058,480

$ 3,005,275

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOUCH AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable . ... .. . ... e
Dividends payable . . . ... . .. ... e
Income taxes payable . . ... ...
Other taxes payable . ... .. ... e
Regulatory liability — oil and natural gas sale . ....... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ...
Current portion of deferred revenue . ... .. .. . e
Short-term bormrowing . . .. ... ..
Long-term debt due withinoneyear . . .. ....... ... . ... . .. ... e
Interest acorued . . ... .. ...
Other current fiabilities . . . . .. . . e
Liabilities of discontinued operations . ......... ... ... .

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Investment tax credits . .. ...
Deferred revenue . . ... ... . .
Regulatory liability — net proceeds from the generation sale in excess of book value . ..
Otherdeferred credits .. ... . .

LONG-TERM DEBT:
Long-term debt . . . ...
Company obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of
subsidiary trust which holds solely company junior subordinated debentures . . .. ..

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Preferred stock . . . ..o
Common stock (240,000,000 shares without par value authorized;

110,390,500 and 110,358,934 shares issued) ............. ...,
Treasury stock (6,616,000 and 6,616,000 shares authorized,

issued, and repurchased by the Company) ........... ... ... ... ... . ......
Unallocated stock held by trustee for retirement savingsplan . ..................
Retained  arnings . . . . .. .o
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . ... ... ... . ...

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Notes 12 and 13)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS  EQUITY ....... . ... ..ot

Becember 31,

2001

2080

(Thousands of Dollars)

$ 270,895 $ 206,925
- 1,456

- 104,093

13,201 41,054

- 32,549

30,297 45,771

- 75,000
255,200 169,054
1,363 5,679
14,344 38,422
1,115,239 188,480
1,700,539 908,483
- 13,163

171,901 235,578
- 214,887

10,445 94,689
182,346 568,317
- 309,463

- 65,000

- 374,463

57,654 57,654
705,600 705,157
{205,656) {205,656)
(12,762) {17,227
633,913 624,118
(2,154) (34)
1,176,595 1,164,012

$ 3,059,480

$ 3,005,275

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOUCH AMERICA HOLDINGS, [NC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1599

(Thousands of Dollars}
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NEt INCOME . et e e $ 15394 $ 199,491 $ 150,346
Deduct:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations .. .................... (18,452) 115,154 133,578
Gain on sale of discontinued operations ........ ... ... i 53,693 62,006 -
Income (loss) from continuing operations ... ....................... (19,847) 22,331 16,768

Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization .. ... .. .. ... . e 44,790 22,423 9,037
Deferred iNCOME TaXES . . . o ot it v et e e e 20,593 {1,135) {93,254}
Noncash losses (earnings) and write-downs associated
with unconsolidated investments . ............. .. i 31,758 1,473 {9,839)
Losses on sales of property and investments ..................... 648 1,194 148
Other noncash charges tonetincome—net ...................... 209 241 (811)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts and notesreceivable .. ........... ... . ... .. ... .. (118,229) (139,082) 11,965
Prepayments and otherassets . ............. ... ..., 6,087 (19,021) 10,549
Income taxes payable ... ...... .. ... ... ... (108,201) 77,870 16,521
Accounts payable . . ... .. ... 136,089 90,825 31,931
Deferredrevenue . . ... .. . ... . . . ... (24,121) (22,629} 224,489
Otherdeferredcredits ... ... .. ... i i, (16,431) 16,989 (2,296)
Prepaid INCOME taxes ... .. e e e (24,711) 979 -
Other assets and liabilities—net .. ........ ... .. ... .. ... ..... (24,170) 26,275 15,707
Net cash provided by (used for) continuing operations . ............. {95,636) 78,733 230,915
Net cash provided by {used for) discontinued operations ............ 426 (134,610) 429,268
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities . ............... (95,110) {55,877) 660,183
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures .. ... . . e {310,408) (546,238) (127,476)
Capital contributions to unconsolidated investments .. ................ (43,852) (7,881) (26,141)
Proceeds from sales of property and investments . ................... 4,012 27,862 19,169
Proceeds from sales of discontinued operations .. ................... 222,500 474,993 -
Additional investments . ... ... L e (350) (654) (846)
Net cash used for continuing investing activities . . .. ............... (128,098) (51,918) (135,294)
Net cash provided by (used for) discontinued investing activities . ... .. (3,094) (81,959) 441,798
Net cash provided by {(used for) investing activities . . ............... (131,192) (133,877) 306,504
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid . . ... .. . .. (3,690) (67,053) (90,902)
Salesof common stock ... ... .. 423 2,525 751
Purchase of treasury stock ... ... ... ~ (60,784) (144,872)
Issuance of long-termdebt . ... ... .. ... 246,000 101,339 -
Retirement of long-termdebt .. .. ... .. . . . ... .. .. {(92,139) - -
Net change in short-term borrowing .. ... .. oo - - (69,820)
Net cash provided by (used for) continuing financing activities . ....... 150,594 (23,973} (304,843)
Net cash provided by (used for) discontinued financing activities ... ... 2,598 (222,263) (117,553)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities . . . .............. 153,192 (246,236) (422,396)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASK EQUIVALENTS .......... (73,110) (435,990) 544,291
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR .............. 118,417 554,407 10,1186
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR .................... $ 45307 $ 118417 $§ 554,407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOUCH AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

COMMON STOCK:
Balance at beginningof year . ...... .. . . . ...
Issuances (32,984, 149,834, and 100,857 shares) ....................
Reacquired capital stock (1,933,900 shares for 2000 :
and 4,682,100 shares for 1999) ... ... ... ... . ... . .. .
Premium on capital Stock . ... ... . . . ...
Balance atendofyear .. ... ... ... . . ... ...

RETAINED EARNINGS AND CTHER SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Balance at beginningofyear ... ... ... ... . ... ..

Net income

Dividends on common stock ($0.60 per share for
2000 and $0.80 per share for 1999) . ... ... . ... ... ... ...
Dividends on preferred stock . ......... ... ... . ... ... ...

Other .. ...

Balance atend ofyear ... .. . . . . ...

ACCUMULATED CTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS:
Balance at beginningof year . ... ... . ... .
Other comprehensive income {loss) .............. ... . . ... ........
Balance atendofyear ..... ... .. ... . . .. ...

UNALLOCATED STOCK HELD BY TRUSTEE FOR RETIREMENT
SAVINGS PLAN: ‘
Balance at beginningof year . ... .. .. . ...

Distributions

Balance atend of year .. ... . ... . . . . . ...

PREFERRED STOCK . ... .. ...

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ATENDOFYEAR . ............... ..

December 31,
2001 2000 1993
(Thousands of Doilars)

$ 499501 $ 557,901 $ 702,511
443 2,384 357
- (60,784) (144,872)
— - (95)
499,844 499,501 557,901
624,118 488,975 430,309
15,394 199,491 150,346
- (62,426) (88,155)
(3,770) (3,690) (3,690)
(1,829} 1,768 165
633,913 624,118 488,975
(34) (17,659) (20,717)
(2,120) 17,625 3,058
(2,154) (34) (17,659)
(17.227) {20,401) (23,298)
4,465 3,174 2,897
(12,762) (17,227) (20,401)
57,654 57,654 57,654

$ 1,176,595

$ 1,164,012 ¢ 1,066,470

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOUCH AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 7339

(Thousands of Dollars)
NET INCORME . . ... e $ 15,394 $ 199,491 $ 150,346

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX:
SFAS No. 133 cumulative transition adjustment —

unrealized gain (net of income taxes of $7,348) ................... 11,304 - -
Decrease in unrealized gain on derivative transactions . ............... (2,724) - -
Realized gain on derivative transactions reclassified to income .......... (7,200) - -
Realized loss on derivative transactions reclassified
toregulatory liability .. ... ... ... . (1,380) - -
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net of income
tax benefit of $1,305) . . ... ... . .. {2,008) - -
Foreign currency translation adjustment .. .......... ... .. ... L (112) 17,625 3,058
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ... oo (2,120 17,625 3,058
COMPRERENSIVE INCOME . ... ... ... .. i i, $ 13,274 $ 217,116 $ 153,404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CIBASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Our accounting policies and preparation of our financial
statements conform with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

TJUSE OF ESTIMATES

Preparing financial statements requires the use of esti-
mates based on information available. Actual results may
differ from our accounting estimates as new events occur
or we obtain additional information.

TJRECLASSIFICATIONS

We have made reclassifications to certain prior-year
amounts to make them comparable to the 2001 presenta-
tion. These reclassifications had no material effect on our
previously reported consolidated financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

TJCONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES

The consolidated financial statements include accounts
and results of our wholly owned subsidiaries. We have elim-
inated significant intercompany balances and transactions.
We account for our unconsolidated investments using the
equity method, because we maintain 20 to 50 percent own-
ership interests and have the ability to exercise significant
influence, but not control, over the financial and operating
policies of these investments.

CJCASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS
We consider all liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less to be cash equivalents, and invest-
ments with original maturities more than three months and
up to one year as temporary investments. We had no tempo-
rary investments at December 31, 2001 or 2000.

OSUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH
FLOW INFORMATION

Table | The following table provides the cash paid for
income taxes, net of refunds and interest, net of
capitalized interest, related to our continuing and

discontinued operations.

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

{Thousands of Dollars)
Income taxes, net of refunds:

Continuing operations . .. $ -~ $ 24473 $ 88545
Discontinued
operations ......... 115,706 173,809 124,817
$115,706  $198,282 $213,362
Interest:
Continuing operations ... $ 2,930 $ 3,457 $§ 3,081
Discontinued
operations ......... 41,448 43,252 50,192
$ 44378 § 46,709 §$ 63,273
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OACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are presented net of allowance for
doubtful accounts and sales credits of approximately
$21,973,000 in 2001. This allowance is related to our
telecommunications operations. The former utility operations’
2001 allowance of $1,224,000 is included in “Assets of dis-
continued operations” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Accounts receivable at December 31, 2000 are presented net
of allowance for doubtful accounts and sales credits of
$11,456,000 consisting of $10,292,000 for telecommunica-
tions operations and $1,164,000 for former utility operations.

DINVESTMENT IN DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS

Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are
reported in “Current assets” and “Current liabilities” under
“Assets of discontinued operations” and “Liabilities of dis-
continued operations,” respectively, on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. The 2001 amounts represent discontinued
utility operations and the 2000 amounts represent discontin-
ued coal operations. For more information on the sales of
these operations, and application of discontinued operations
accounting treatment to these operations, see Note 2,
“Decision to Sell Energy Businesses,” and Note 15, "Dis-
continued Operations.”

CPROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Talble | The following table provides year-end balances of
the major classifications of our property, plant, and

equipment, which we record at cost:

December 31,
2001 2000

(Thousands of Dollars)

Property, Plant, and Equipment:
Telecommunications:

Buildings and structures . . ... $ 1208 $ 8382
Fiber optic network . ... ..... 330,100 220,530
Communications
equipment ........ .. ... 251,341 172,509
Construction work-in-progress 452,252 352,445
Other .................... 35,780 18,027
Total telecommunications . . . 1,081,559 771,893
Less: Accumulated
depreciation . . ............. 81,240 41977
Net telecommunications
plant ... ... 1,000,319 729,916
Net utility plant .............. - 1,089,330

$1,000319 $1.819 246

We classify costs associated with uncompleted portions
of our fiber optic network as construction work in progress
and, upon completion, classify the costs as fiber optic net-
work. For joint-build construction contracts, we record the
total costs of construction reduced by reimbursements
received, resulting in a net cost of the asset constructed.
We record exchanges of fiber-use rights as the cost of the
asset transferred plus any cash paid or, alternatively, as the
cost of the asset transferred less any cash received.
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At December 31, 2001 and 2000, $185,100,000 and
$144,400,000, respectively, relate to Indefeasible Rights-of-
Use (IRU) agreements that were granted to us, which have
been included in “Fiber optic network” in the schedule above.

We capitalize interest associated with our network con-
struction. Capitalized interest totaled $12,241,000 in 2001,
$4,317,000 in 2000, and $0 in 1399.

Table | We depreciate and amortize our telecommunica-
tions property, plant, and equipment on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives

of the assets as follows:

Classification Years
Buildings and structures .......... ... . ....... 30

Fiberopticnetwork . ......... ... .. ... .. ..... 20

Communications equipment ................... 10

Other. ... ... .. . . . . 3-b

DINTANGIBLES

Table | The following table provides year-end balances of

the major classifications of intangibles:

December 31,
2001 2000

(Thousands of Dollars)

Intangibles:
Telecommunications:

Assembled workforce . ... ... $ 1,940 $ 1,940
Customer base - Wholesale . . .. 15,304 15,304
Customer base - Commercial . . . 3,205 3,205
Other .................... 3,925 3,956
Less: Accumulated
amortization............... 7,608 2,445
16,866 21,960
Utility Operations:
Goodwill ................. - 8,659
Less: Accumulated
amortization . .............. - 570
- 7,989
$16,866 $29,949
Table | We amortize our telecommunications intangibles

on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Classification Years
Assembled workforce ... ... ... . .. ... L. 5
Customerbase ........... . .. i 3-b
Other .. ... 35

C REVENUE RECOGNITION

We record revenues monthly as service is rendered or
products are delivered. To match revenues with associated
expenses, we accrue unbilled revenues for telecommunica-
tions services delivered to customers but not yet billed at

30

month-end. Our telecommunications service revenues are
comprised of netwark services, which include wholesale and
dedicated business line revenues, and retail sales, which
include commercial and consumer long-distance revenues. in
conjunction with our efforts to expand our fiber optic net-
work, we entered into agreements to grant and exchange
fiber-use rights, principally through [RU agreements. Prior to
July 1, 1999, we recognized revenues of fiber-use rights that
qualified for sales-type lease accounting at the time of deliv-
ery and acceptance of the dark fiber by the customer.

On July 8, 1999, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 43, “Real Estate
Sales,” which is an interpretation of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 66, “Accounting for Sales
of Real Estate.” Effective July 1, 1999, therefore, we
changed our revenue recognition policy. This interpretation
was effective for transactions entered into after June 30,
1999, and requires entities to recognize revenues on fiber-
use right agreements, or similar agreements, over the
period of the agreement, rather than at the time of execu-
tion, if title to the fiber does not transfer to the customer by
the end of the agreement term. Accordingly, in granting
fiber-use rights, we record these transactions as operating
leases and recognize revenues over the term of the agree-
ment. The effect of this change in accounting resulted in
approximately $7,000,000 of revenues that we did not
record in 1999 from fiber-use right transactions entered into
after June 30, 1999. Net income for 1999 would have been
approximately $4,200,000 higher and both basic and diluted
earnings per share would have been $0.03 higher if we
were not required to make this accounting change.

O DEFERRED REVENUES

We defer revenues to account for the timing differences
between cash received and revenues earned and reflect
these amounts on the Consolidated Balance Sheet in
“Deferred revenue.” We reflect the current portion of
these amounts in “Current portion of deferred revenue” on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. We are recognizing the
prepayment received in January 1999 from a telecommuni-
cations customer in revenues over the original term of the
agreement, approximately 11 years.

O OTHER ((NCOWME) DEDUCTIONS - NET

The following table provides the components of
other {income} deductions - net from our continu-
ing operations:

Table

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(Thousands of Dollars)

Interest income . ... .. $(6,039) $(6,440) $ (6,090)
Write-down of

unconsoclidated

investments . ... .. 15,708 - -
(Earnings) loss from

unconsoclidated

investments . ..... 16,050 1,473 (9,839)
Other ............. 749 1,004 (1,684)

$26,468  $(3,963) ${17,613)
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The equity losses from unconsolidated investments
resulted primarily from two joint ventures offering wireless
telecommunications services as discussed below.

In July 2001, we invested $4,000,000 for a minority inter-
est in preferred shares of iBEAM Broadcasting Corporation
(iBEAM), a Delaware corporation. In October 2001, iBEAM
filed a petition for reorganization with the Bankruptcy Court for
the District of Delaware pursuant to Chapter 11 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code. We do not expect to recover our
$4,000,000 investment because of our status as a preferred
shareholder in bankruptcy proceedings. Therefore, we wrote
off the $4,000,000 investment in the third quarter 2001.

In January 2000, we signed a purchase agreement with
Minnesota PCS, LP (MPCS) to acquire a 25 percent interest in
MPCS' wireless telephone business. In accordance with the
agreement, we made an initial equity investment. During
2000 and 2001, we also loaned and advanced funds to MPCS
and guaranteed the payment of a note. MPCS defaulted on
the note we guaranteed, and subseqguently the creditor with-
drew the proceeds from our collateral account. The partners
of MPCS unanimously decided to offer the assets of MPCS
for sale. Because the expected proceeds from the sales of
MPCS’ assets would not be sufficient to repay the withdrawn
collateral and MPCS’ loan obligations to us, we recorded a
$11,700,000 loss related to our MPCS investment and the
MPCS note receivable. For more information on the write-
down of this unconsolidated investment, see Note 13, “Com-
mitments,” in the “Unconsolidated Investments” section.

For more information on earnings and loss associated
with our unconsolidated investments, see Note 4, “Uncon-
solidated Investments.”

O INCOME TAXES

We and our United States subsidiaries file a consclidated
United States income tax return. We defer income taxes to pro-
vide for the temporary differences between the financial reporting
basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities. For further
information on income taxes, see Note 5, “Income Tax Expense.”

O NET INCOME PER SHARE OF COMIMION STGCK
We compute basic net income per share of common stock
for each year based on the weighted average number of com-

O FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

mon shares outstanding during that year. In accordance with
SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” diluted net income per
share of commeon stock reflects the potential dilution that
would occur if securities or other contracts to issue common
stock were exercised or converted into common stock or
resulted in the issuance of common stock that shared in our
earnings. Although we have approximately 3,027,000 out-
standing options for the three years ended December 31,
2001, only the following options impact the computation of
diluted earnings per share; 2,621 options in 2001, 901,878
options in 2000 and 758,472 options in 1999.

Table For comparative purposes, the following table shows
consolidated basic and diluted net income per share.
Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(Thousands of Dollars)

Basic:

Continuing operations . ... $(0.23) $0.18 $0.12

Discontinued operations ... __0.34 1.68 1.22

Consolidated . ... ... ... $0.11 $1.86 $1.34

Diiuted:

Continuing operations . ... $(0.23) $0.17 $0.12

Discontinued operations . .. _0.34 1.67 1.21

Consolidated . ... ...... $0.11 $1.84 $1.33

M 2001 "Discontinued Operations” figures include gain
on sales of discontinued coal operations, Continental
Energy and the gain adjustment on the sale of the oil
and natural gas operations.

2 2000 “Discontinued Operations” figures include the gain
on sale of discontinued oil and natural gas operations.

0 ASSET IMPAIRMENT

In accordance with SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to
be Disposed Of,” we review long-lived assets for impairment
annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indi-
cate that we may not recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Based on the analysis of our assets, we have concluded that
presently we have no impaired long-lived assets.

Table The following table provides the carrying amount and fair value of financia! instruments at December 31, 2001 and 2000.
December 31,
2031 2000
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Yalue Amount Value
(Thousands of Dollars)
ASSETS:
Otherinvestments . ... ..., $ 7349 $ 7,349 $ 695 $ 6955
Utility o - - 29,008 27,588
$§ 7343 § 7348 $§ 35963 $ 34543
LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (including portion due within one year) .......... $ 255200 $ 255,200 $ 101,338 $ 101,338
Utility . - - 442179 442 563
$ 265200 $ 255,200 3 543,517 $ 543,901
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The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate fair value:

o QOther significant investments — The carrying value of
most of the investments approximates fair value as
the investments have short maturities or the carrying
value equals their cash surrender value. Other
significant investments consist mainly of the cash
value of insurance policies associated with an
unfunded, nonqualified benefit plan for senior
management; and

o Long-term debt — Long-term debt consists mainly of
the balance outstanding under our 5-Year Senior
Secured Credit Facility {Credit Facility) discussed in
Note 8, “Long-Term Debt.” Since this is a variable
interest rate facility, fair value is considered to be equal
to the carrying amount. On February 15, 2002, we
repaid the entire outstanding loan balance and
cancelled the Credit Facility.

C CONCENTRATION OF CREDRIT RISK AND

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

Because we derive a portion of our revenues from serv-
ices provided to other telecommunications companies, we
have some concentration of credit risk among our customer
base. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of the financial
condition of our larger customers, but we have not required
significant collateral to support our receivables.

A small number of customers account for a significant
amount of our total revenues. For the year ended December
31, 2001, one customer accounted for approximately 24 per-
cent of our total revenues. For the year ended December
31, 2000, two customers accounted for approximately 24
percent of our total revenues and for the year ended
December 31, 1999, we had cne significant customer,
which represented 24 percent of our total revenues.

NOTE 2 - DECISION TO SELL ENERGY
BUSINESSES

On March 28, 2000, after a review of options and strate-
gies, the Montana Power Company (MPC) Board of Direc-
tors announced that MPC would begin the process of
divesting its multiple energy businesses, separating them
from Touch America, Inc. From October 2000 through Feb-
ruary 2002, proceeds of approximately $1,300,000,000 were
received from the sale of the former energy businesses,
and we are using these proceeds in our telecommunications
business.

CSALE OF UTILITY OPERATIONS

On February 15, 2002, we sold our utility operations to
NorthWestern Corporation (NorthWestern), a South Dakota-
based energy company, for $602,000,000 in cash and the
assumption of $488,000,000 of debt. Pursuant to the provi-
sions of the September 29, 2000 Unit Purchase Agreement
with NorthWestern, we have agreed to indemnify North-
Western for certain adverse consequences which may arise
following the sale. For more information on indemnification
obligations associated with the sale of the utility operations,
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see Note 12, “Contingencies,” in the “Sale of MPLLC/Utility
Business ~ Indemnity Obligations” section.

C SALE OF COAL OPERATIONS

On April 30, 2001, MPC sold its coal operations to West-
moreland Coal Company {(Westmoreland) for $138,000,000,
subject to contractual purchase price adjustments. As a
result of this transaction, MPC recorded a gain in the sec-
ond quarter 2001 of approximately $31,400,000, net of
income taxes. Westmoreland has disagreed with our pro-
posed post-closing adjustments, and we are currently
involved in litigation and arbitration to resolve these matters.
For more information on the sale of the coal operations, see
Note 12, “Contingencies,” in the "Sale of Coal Operations”
section.

O SALE OF CONTINENTAL ENERGY

On February 21, 2001, MPC sold Continental Energy Ser-
vices (Continental Energy), the independent power produc-
tion business, to CES Acquisitions Corp. for $84,500,000,
subject to post-closing adjustments. As a result of the trans-
action, MPC recorded a gain in the first quarter 2001 of
approximately $31,200,000, net of income taxes, and a
$400,000 gain adjustment, net of income taxes, in the
fourth quarter 2001. For more information on the sale of
Continental Energy, see Note 12, “Contingencies,” in the
"Sale of Continental Energy” section.

D SALE OF OlL AND NATURAL GAS

OPERATIONS

On October 31, 2000, MPC sold its oil and natural gas
operations for $475,000,000, subject to post-closing adjust-
ments. As a result of the transaction, MPC recorded a gain
in the fourth quarter 2000 of approximately $62,000,000, net
of income taxes. In the third quarter 2001, we recorded a
$14,400,000 decrease on the gain on sale of the former oil
and natural gas operations. This decrease relates to the
increased sharing of sale proceeds with the utility’s natural
gas customers and was partially offset by a $5,200,000
adjustrnent to income tax associated with the gain on the
sale, which was recorded in the fourth quarter 2001. For
more information on the sale of MPC's il and natural gas
operations, see Note 12, “Contingencies,” in the “Sale of
Oil and Natural Gas Operations” section.

C CONTINUING/DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
As a resuit of the MPC Board of Directors’ approval to
enter into definitive agreements with respect to the sale of
the former energy businesses, and subsequent shareholder
and regulatory approvals necessary for the sale of our former
utility operations, we have applied discontinued operations
accounting treatment to the utility operations and Continental
Energy effective December 28, 2001. We have also applied
discontinued operations accounting treatment effective
August 22, 2000 for MPC’s former oil and natural gas opera-
tions and effective September 14, 2000 for the former coal
operations. The results of this treatment are the following:

o \We have separately reported income, net of income
taxes from the utility operations, coal operations,
Continental Energy, and oil and natural gas operations
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in "Income from discontinued operations” on the
Consolidated Statement of Income for all periods
presented to reflect the reclassification of these
operations as discontinued;

Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are
included in "Current assets” under “Assets of
discontinued operations” and "Current liabilities"”
under “Liabilities of discontinued operations” on our
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The December 31, 2001
balances represent the discontinued utility operations
and the December 31, 2000 balances reflect the
discontinued coal operations;

We have reported cash flows of discontinued
operations as “Net cash provided by {used for)
discontinued operations,” segregated by operating,
investing, and financing activities on the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows: and

Reported general corporate overhead expenses
associated with, but not directly attributable to, our
discontinued operations remained in continuing
operations’ selling, general, and administrative (SG&A)
expenses.

Table | The following table shows summarized revenues
for the discontinued utility operations, coal
operations, Continental Energy, and oil and natural
gas operations:

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

{Thousands of Dallars)

Revenues:
Utility

operations $686,872 $ 666,068 % 657,851
Coal operations . .. 78,176 224515 236,782
Continental

Energy 143 1,000 1,310
Oil and natural gas '

operations . ... — 348,698 355532

$766,191 $1,240,281 $1,251,475

NOTE 3 ~ ACQUISITION OF QWEST PROPERTIES
On June 30, 2000, in accordance with a previously exe-
cuted stock purchase agreement, we acquired wholesale, pri-

vate line, long-distance, and other telecommunications *
services in the former U S WEST fourteen-state region from

Qwest Communications (nternational, Inc. (Qwest) for approxi-

mately $206,000,000. We refer to this acquisition as the
Qwest acquisition. We also acquired a fiber optic network, of
approximately 1,800 route miles and associated electranics
and switches that connects to our existing fiber optic network.
As a result of this acquisition, 173 sales and sales-support per-
sonnel in the fourteen-state region became our employees.
We accounted for the acquisition using the purchase
method of accounting. As a result, we have allocated our

cost of the acquisition to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on an independent third party appraisal. We
are amortizing the acquired property and equipment and
intangible assets over their estimated useful lives on the
straight-line basis in accordance with our stated policies.

Table | The balances refiected on our Consolidated Balance
Sheet at December 31, 2001 and related deprecia-
tion or amortization periods are as follows:

Depreciation or
Asset Amoriizaiion
Balances Periods

(Thousands
of Dollars) (Years)

Tangible Assets:
Fiber optic network $139,000 20 vyears
Communications equipment . . . . 46,300 10years
300 3-5years
$185,600
Intangible Assets:
Assembled workforce $ 1,940 b5years
Customer base ~ Wholesale . . . . 15,304  Byears
Customer base ~ Commercial .. 3205  3years
$ 20,449

The accounts of this acquisition have been included in
our consolidated accounts since June 30, 2000.

Table | The following table shows the summarized consol-
idated results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 1999 on an unaudited, pro
forma basis as though this June 30, 2000 acquisi-
tion had occurred as of January 1, 1999:

Pro Forma Consolidated
Resuits of Dperations
{Unaudited)

Year Ended December 31,

2060 1998

(Thousands of Dollars)
{except per-share
amounts)

Revenues $478,354 $377,103
Net income from continuing

operations 36,929 43,888
Net income available for

common stock 214,089 177,466
Earnings per share:

$ 203 $ 1862
$ 200 $ 18
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NOTE 4 ~ UNCONSOLIDATED INVESTMENTS

We record our initial investments at cost and have
accounted for these investments under the equity method
because we maintain 20 to 50 percent ownership interests,
and we have the ability to exercise significant influence, but
not control, over the financial and operating policies of these
investments.

Our unconsolidated investments consist of the
following:

Table

December 31,

200 2000

{Thousands of Dollars}
TW Wireless, L.L.C. ............ $20,892 $16,075
American Fiber Touch, L.L.C. ..... 11,737 509
Sierra Touch America, LL.C. ..... 10,719 2,681

Northern Colorado

Telecommunications, L.L.C. .. .. 5,031 3,643
FTV Communications, L.L.C. ... .. 1,548 7.063
Otherinvestments ............. 499 477
Minnesota PCS,L.P. ............ - -
$50,426 $30,448

We own a 49.9 percent interest in TW Wireless, L.L.C.
{TWW), a joint venture with Qwest Wireless. TWW owns
and operates a PCS wireless network and sells wireless
service primarity in Washington, Idaho, Montana, Utah, Col-
orado, South Dakota and Wyoming. At December 31, 2001,
TWW had no third-party debt or debt with either of the part-
ners. As a relatively new provider in this business environ-
ment, to date, TWW has experienced losses consistent with
expectations. We recognized losses of approximately
$14,500,000 from TWW in 2001, and we expect TWW to
incur operating losses in 2002.

American Fiber Touch, L.L.C. (AFT) was established with
AEP Communications, L.L.C., a subsidiary of American Electric
Power, for the purpose of jointly constructing one segment of
the 4,300-mile AT&T Corp {AT&T) construction project. For
more information regarding the AT&T construction project, see
Note 13, "Commitments.” Sierra Touch America, L.L.C. (STA)
was established with Sierra Pacific Communications, a sub-
sidiary of Sierra Pacific, for the purpose of jointly constructing
another segment of the AT&T construction project. We own a
50 percent interest in AFT and a 50 percent interest in STA.
Neither AFT nor STA has any third-party debt as of December
31, 2001. Qur share of the losses from these two investments
during 2001 was not material.

We own a 33.3 percent interest in FTV Communications
(FTV), along with Enron Broadband Services, Inc. and
Williams Communications L.L.C., which primarily provides
operating, maintenance, and colocation services on a 1,600-
mile fiber route from Portland, Oregon to Los Angeles, Cali-
fornia. We also own a 50 percent interest, along with New
Centuries Energy (NCE), in Northern Colorado Telecommuni-
cations, L.L.C., which owns and operates a 240-mile fiber
optic ring surrounding the Denver metropolitan area. Ser-
vices provided consist primarily of local loop, private line,
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and frame relay. Neither FTV nor Northern Colorado
Telecommunications, L.L.C. has any third-party debt as of
December 31, 2001.

FTV is considering the impact of Enron’s recent bank-
ruptey filing on FTV's future operating performance and
structure. FTV is also evaluating the financial stability of its
existing customer base, given the current status of the
telecommunications industry.

We are currently in the process of selling our 25 percent
interest in MPCS and expect the sale to be completed by
the end of the second quarter 2002. We are partners with
various Minnesota and Wisconsin telephone cooperatives.
MPCS owns and operates a PCS wireless network and sells
wireless service primarily in Minnesota and North Dakota,
through its operating company, Wireless North (WN). At
December 31, 2001, WN had third-party debt in the amount
of $18,900,000 as well as notes payable to us of approxi-
mately $21,000,000. WN has incurred losses in excess of
expectations and we conseguently recognized a loss of
$14,600,000 in 2001. Because the expected proceeds from
the sales of MPCS' assets would not be sufficient to repay
the withdrawn collateral and MPCS' loan obligations to us,
we recorded a loss of $11,700,000 related to our MPCS
investment and the MPCS note receivable, which is
included in the $14,600,000 loss. We anticipate additional
funding requirements prior to exiting this investment.

For further information regarding related party transac-
tions and our investments, see Note 10, “Related Party
Transactions,” and Note 13, “"Commitments,” in the
“Unconsolidated Investments” section.

Table | The following is summarized financial information
for the unconsolidated investments in which we
hold ownership, excluding TWW.

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1989
{Thousands of Dollars)

Operations:

Revenues . . ... $14,288 $15,374  $18,921
Expenses ... .. 19,452 19,821 19,053
Netloss ...... (7,348) (5,736) 2,389

December 31,
2001 2000

{Thousands of Dollars}

Financial Position:

Currentassets ............... $ 20,013 ¢ 35334
Noncurrentassets. ........... 233,483 138,595
$253,496  $173,929

Current liabilities . ............ $137.455 § 73,196
Long-term ligbilities .. .. ....... 64,410 77,334
201,865 150,530

Commonequity ............. 51,631 23,399
$253496  $173,929
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CEARNINGS/LOSS FROM UNCONSOLIDATED

INVESTMENTS

For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, our
equity losses and write-downs from unconsolidated invest-
ments, including TWW, totaled approximately $31,800,000
and $1,500,000 respectively. At December 31, 1999, earn-
ings from unconsoclidated investments were $9,800,000. For
further detail regarding equity earnings and losses from
unconsolidated investments, see Note 1, “Summary of Sig-
nificant Accounting Policies,” in the “Other (Income) Deduc-
tions — Net" section.

NOTE 5 - INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Table | Income before income taxes was as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(Thousands of Dollars)
Income {loss)
from continuing
operations:
United States . . . $(33,259) $ 36,465 $ 29,083
Canada........ - - -
Other
countries . ... - ~ -
(33,259) 36,465 29,083
Income from
discontinued
operations .. ... 80,581 265,567 165,328
$47,322 $302,032 $194,411
Table | The provision for income taxes differs from the

amount of income tax that would result by
applying the applicable United States statutory fed-
eral income tax rate to pretax income, because of
the following differences:

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(Thousands of Dollars)
Computed "“expected”
income tax
expense . ...... $16,5563 $105,712  $68,043
Adjustments for tax
effects of:
Statutory
depletion . (985) (2,535) (3,440)
Tax credits ... .. (1,135) (4,792) (25,775)
State income
tax, net ..... 4,707 6,178 4,545
Reversal of utility
book/tax
depreciation . . 5,026 4,119 5318
Other ......... 7,762 6,141 4,626)
Actual income
tax expense . ... $31,928 $102,541 $ 44,065

Table | Income tax expense {benefit) as shown on the Con-
solidated Statement of Income consists of the fol-
lowing components:

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
{Thousands of Dollars}
Current:
United States . . . $(40,149) $136,938 $ 293,319
Canada ....... 38 13,669 1,710

Other
countries . . .. - - 30
State . ........ 2,229 15,755 53,858
(37,882) 166,362 348917

Deferred:

United States . . . 66,345 (49,174) (267,956)
Canada ....... - (7,509) 9,930
Other
countries . . . . - {18} -
State ......... 3,465 (7,120}  (46,826)
69,810 (63,821) (304,852)
31,928 102,641 44,065
Less:
Income tax
expense
associated with
discontinued
operations . .. 45,340 88,407 31,750
Income tax
expense (benefit)
associated with
continuing
operations ... _$(13,412) § 14134 $ 12,315
Table | Deferred tax (assets) liabilities are comprised of

the following:

December 31,

2001 2000
{Thousands of Dollars)

Plantrelated .................. $ 17,032 $229,080
Investment in nonutility

generation projects ........... - 3,442
Other ... ... . ... ...... ... 4,775 42,834

Gross deferred tax liabilities . . .. 21,807 275356
Amortization of gain

onsalefleaseback ............ - {(10,969)
Deferredrevenues ............. (95,334) (99,319}
Investment tax credit

amortization . ................ - (8,653)
Other ...... ... ... ...t (8,940) (196,783}

Gross deferred tax assets . . .. .. (104,274)  (315,624)

Net deferred tax assets ....... {82,467)  (39,157)

Less: current deferred

taxassets—net ............ (6,198)  (17,738)

Total noncurrent deferred '

1axassels ... $ (76,269) $ (21,419)
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Table | The change in net deferred tax {assets) liabilities
differs from current year deferred tax expense as a

result of the following:

Thousands

of Dollars

Change in net deferred tax assets ......... $(43,310)
Regulatory assets related to income taxes . . . 27,6513
Sale of discontinued coal operations . .. ... .. 37,162
Other ... .. e (5,541)
15,824

Discontinued operations deferred taxes .. ... 53,986
Deferred tax expense ................. $ 69,810

NOTE 6 - COMMON STOCK

(0 SHAREHOLDER PROTECTION RIGHTS PLAN
Our Board of Directors has adopted a Shareholder Pro-
tection Rights Plan (SPRP), which we expect to enter into in

April 2002. The SPRP provides one preferred share pur-
chase right for each share of our common stock. Under this
plan, each purchase right entitles the registered holder,
upon the occurrence of events described in the SPRP, to
purchase one one-hundredth of a share of our Participating
Preferred Shares, A Series, without par value. if exercisable,
each purchase right would have economic terms similar to
one share of our common stock. The purchase rights are to
trade with the underlying shares and, except under certain
circumstances described in the SPRP, will expire in April
2012, unless they are redeemed or exchanged by us before
that date.

O OPTIONAL STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Our Optional Stock Purchase Plan, which is the succes-
sor to MPC's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase
Plan, permits participants to: (a) acquire additional shares of
common stock through optional cash payments of up to
$60,000 per year; and (b) deposit common and preferred
stock certificates into their Optional Stock Purchase Plan
accounts for safekeeping. It also allows for other interested
investors (residents of certain states) to make initial pur-
chases of common shares with a minimum of $100 and a
maximum of $60,000 per year.

O RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLARN

MPC maintained a 401(k) pian, the MPC Employees
Retirement Savings Plan (MPC Savings Plan), pursuant to
which employee contributions were matched in MPC com-
mon stock through a leveraged Employee Stock Ownership
Plan (ESOP). The ESOP was leveraged pursuant to a Loan
Agreement dated as of January 22, 1990 between MPC and
The Northern Trust Company of lllinois as trustee of the
ESOP (ESOP Loan), and MPC entered into a similar loan as
of the same date with various institutional lenders (Outside
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Loan). In anticipation of the restructuring of MPC and the
sale of the utility operations to NorthWestern, effective
November 1, 2001 the ESOP component of the MPC Sav-
ings Plan and the ESOP Loan were transferred to the Touch
America, Inc. Employee Retirement Savings Plan (Touch
America Savings Plan) and its trustee, respectively. As of
November 1, 2001 Touch America withdrew from the MPC
Savings Plan, and all participant account balances attributa-
ble to the employees of the withdrawing employers, as well
as the unallocated shares in the ESOP, were transferred to
the Touch America Savings Plan. On February 13, 2002 the
shares of MPC common stock held in the ESOP became
shares of common stock of Touch America Holdings, Inc.
On February 15, 2002, MPC retired the Outside Loan.

The unallocated shares acquired with the proceeds of the
ESOP Loan continue to be allocated monthly to help meet
our matching obligations under the Touch America Savings
Plan, with further shares being bought on the open market
as necessary.

The ESOP loan, which is reflected in “Liabilities of dis-
continued operations” on the Consclidated Balance Sheet,
is offset by a similar amount in "Unallocated stock” on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. Our contributions are used to
meet principal and interest payments on the ESOP loan with
the Touch America Savings Plan Trustee. At December 31,
2001, 3,076,642 shares had been allocated to the partici-
pants’ accounts. We recognize expense for the Touch Amer-
ica Savings Plan using the Shares Allocated Method, and
the pretax expense was $4,464,000, $4,267,000, and
$4,890,000 for 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

O LONG-TERM INGCENTIVE PLAN

We have also adopted MPC's Long-Term Incentive Plan,
under which MPC issued options to its employees. Option
holders now include only employees of Touch America.
Options issued to employees are not reflected in balance
sheet accounts until exercised, at which time: (1) author-
ized but unissued shares are issued to the employee; (2) the
capital stock account is credited with the proceeds; and (3)
no charges or credits to income are made.

Options were granted at the average of the high and low
prices as reported on the New York Stock Exchange com-
posite tape on the date granted and expire ten years from
that date. Generally, these options vest over a two to three
year period from the date of grant.

During 1999, a grant of 12,000 shares of restricted stock
was issued to an individual under the Long-Term Incentive
Plan. The award was subject to forfeiture or proration if the
individual terminated employment. Restrictions were
removed on the shares granted in May 2000, May 2001,
and February 2002. Earned awards are reflected as common
stock on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and as compensa-
tion expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income over
the period of required employment. At December 31, 2001,
4,000 shares of restricted stock remained.
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Tahle | Option activity is summarized below:
2001 2000 1998

Wid Avg Whd Avg Wid Avg
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding, beginning of year . ............ 4,076,244 $ 28.43 3,280,325 § 25.63 2,648,094 $§ 22.71
Granted . ..... .. ... 35,600 17.38 1,199,545 34.36 919,510 32.14
Exercised . ........ ... ... .. .. .. ..., 32,984 13.49 149,834 17.07 88,857 10.83
Cancelled . ........ .. .. ... .. .. ....... 1,051,313 27.75 253,792  26.88 98,422  24.08

QOutstanding, end of year

4,076,244 $§ 28.43

3,280,325 $ 25.63

3027447 § 2870

Effective with the February 15, 2002 sale of the utility operations, the number of options cancelled since the beginning of
2001 increased by 771,223 to 1,822,536 options. This resulted in 2,256,224 options outstanding at February 15, 2002.

Table Shares under option at December 31, 2001, are summarized below:
Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Wid Avg Wid Avg Wid Avg
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Exercise Price Range Shares Price Life Shares Price
$6.45 .. 6,000 $ 645 10 yrs - 3 -
$10.73t0%1429 ... ... 154,725 11.11 4 yrs 148,725 11.08
$1800t0$2466 ... ... ... ... .. ... ... 399,929 19.60 7 yrs 317,446 18.62
$2653t0%3250 ... ... ... 1,689,863 28.72 8yrs 1,194,039 27.67
$35.36t08$38692 ... .. ... 776,930 37.00 8yrs 394,930 35.36
3,027,447 2,055,140

Effective with the February 15, 2002 sale of the utility
operations, options outstanding at $6.45 remained the same
at 6,000 options, options in the $10.73 to $14.29 range
decreased by 56,017 to 98,708 options, options in the
$18.00 to $24.66 range decreased by 128,446 to 271,483
options, options in the $26.53 to $32.50 range decreased by
586,760 to 1,103,103 options and options in the $35.36 to
$38.69 range remained the same at 776,930 options, for a
total of 2,256,224 options outstanding.

The number of options exercisable in the $10.73 to
$14.29 range decreased to 92,708 options, options in the
$18.00 to $24.66 range decreased to 189,000 options, and
options in the $26.53 to $32.50 range decreased to 733,229
options exercisable. Accelerated vesting due to the sale of
the utility operations resulted in options in the $35.36 to
$38.69 range increasing to 776,930, for a total of 1,791,867
options exercisable at February 15, 2002.

As permitted by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation,” both MPC and Touch America have
elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25), and
related interpretations in accounting for employee stock
options. Under APB 25, because the exercise price of the
employee stock options equals the market price of the under-
lying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is
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recognized. Disclosure of pro forma information regarding net
income and earnings per share is required by SFAS No. 123.
This information has been determined as if we had accounted
for our employee stock options under the fair value method
of that statement. The weighted-average fair value of options
granted in 2001, 2000, and 1999 was $10.23, $16.35, and
$7.03 per share, respectively. We employed the binomial
option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of each option
grant on the date of grant. We used the following weighted-
average assumptions for grants in 2001, 2000, and 1993,
respectively: (1) risk-free interest rate of 5.07 percent, 6.05
percent, and 6.35 percent; (2) expected life of 7.0, 6.2, and
9.8 years; (3) expected volatility of 51.00 percent, 42.00 per-
cent, and 24.92 percent; and (4) a dividend yield of zero per-
cent, zero percent, and 5.97 percent. Had we elected to use
SFAS No. 123, compensation expense would have increased
$10,904,000 in 2001, $11,827,000 in 2000, and $5,280,000 in
1999. The 2001 pro forma net income would be $5,015,000
with basic earnings per common share of $0.05 and diluted
earnings per common share of $0.05. The 2000 pro forma net
income would be $188,632,000 with basic earnings per com-
mon share of $1.79 and diluted earnings per common share
of $1.77. The 1999 pro forma net income would be
$143,456,000 with basic earnings per common share of
$1.31 and diluted earnings per common share of $1.30.
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NOTE 7 - PREFERRED STOCK

At December 31, 2001, MPC had 5,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock. On February 13, 2002, all existing
shares of MPC preferred stock were converted into rights to receive our preferred stock. We cannot declare or pay dividends
on our common stock while we have not either declared and set apart cumulative dividends or paid dividends on any of our

preferred stock.

Table

MPC's preferred stock was in three series as detailed in the following table:

Stated and

Sheres Issued

Thousands

Liquidatien and Outstanding of Dollars
Series Price® 2083 208D 2001 2033
$ 6.875 $ 100 360,800 360,800 $ 36,080 $ 36,080
6.00 $ 100 159,589 159,589 15,959 15,959
4.20 $ 100 60,000 60,000 6,025 6,025
Discount - - 410) 410)
580,389 580,389 $ 57,654 $§ 57,654

* Plus accumulated dividends.

At a special meeting of MPC's shareholders held on Sep-
tember 21, 2001, shareholders representing more than two-
thirds of the outstanding common stock approved, among
others, the following proposals:

e Holders of MPC's Preferred Stock, $6.875 Series, will
receive one share of Touch America Holdings, inc.
Preferred Stock, $6.875 Series, for each share of MPC
Preferred Stock, $6.875 Series; and

e The redemption of MPC’s outstanding Preferred Stock,
$6.00 Series, and Preferred Stock, $4.20 Series.

On February 14, 2002, we funded two restricted bank
accounts, which will be used to redeem the $6.00 Series
and $4.20 Series preferred stock at $110 per share and
$103 per share, respectively, plus accumulated dividends.

Our $6.875 Series is redeemable in whole or in part with
the consent or affirmative vote of the holders of a majority
of common shares, at any time on or after November 1,
2003, for a price beginning at $103.438 per share, which
decreases annually through October 2013. After that time,
the redemption price is $100 per share.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERWM DEBT

Table

Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31,

2001 2000

(Thousands of Dollars)
$400 Million Senior Secured

Credit Facility . . .............. $254,100 $100,000
Capitallease .................. 1,100 1,339
Utilitydebt ... ................. - 377,178

255,200 478,517
Less: Portion due within

ONEYEAT ...t iiriant 255,200 169,054

$ - $309,463

On November 8, 2000, we entered into a Credit Facility
for use in our telecommunications operations. The Credit
Facility consisted of a $200,000,000 term loan and
$200,000,000 revolver, either of which could be used for
short- or long-term borrowing. At December 31, 2001 we
had $254,100,000 outstanding under the Credit Facility.

On February 15, 2002, we used a portion of the pro-
ceeds from the sale of the utility operations to repay the
entire $254,100,000 outstanding under the Credit Facility,
which was then cancelled. Based on financial performance
for the twelve-month period ending September 30, 2001,
we were not in compliance with certain financial covenants
under the Credit Facility. On November 14, 2001, we
received a 30-day waiver of the requirement to comply with
the financial covenants from the lending banks under the
Credit Facility. On December 14, 2001, we received an addi-
tional waiver through February 15, 2002. Our obligations
under the Credit Facility terminated with the repayment of
the Credit Facility on February 15, 2002.

NQOTE 9 - SHORT-TERV BORROQWING

Touch America, Inc. had no short-term borrowings out-
standing at December 31, 2001 or 2000. At December 37,
2000, our utility operations had $75,000,000 outstanding in
short-term borrowing.

NOTE 10 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

O RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Related party receivables primarily result from either
services we provide to, or payments we make on behalf of,
our unconsolidated investments. Related party payables pri-
marily result from services that we receive from our uncon-
solidated investments. We recognize receivables at their net
realizable value,




Touch America Holdings, Inc.

20079 Form 10-KX

Table

Related party receivables and payables consisted of the following:

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE:
Accounts and notes receivable - MPCS
Accounts and notes receivable — STA
Accounts and notes receivable - AFT
Accounts and notes receivable - TWW

Accounts and notes receivable — Northern Colorado Telecommunications, L.L.C. ..... ..

Accounts and notes receivable - FTV
Accounts and notes receivable — Other

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES PAYABLE:
Accounts payable — FTV

Accounts payable — Northern Colorado Telecommunications, L.L.C.

December 31,
2000

2001

(Thousands of Dallars)

$ 15,336 $ 17,365
8,230 474
6,980 6,809
4,457 3,209

352 3

60 35

- 5

$ 35415 $ 27,900

$ 1,650 $ -

................. 368 -
$ 2018 $ =

ORELATED PARTY REVENUES AND INTEREST

INCOME

For the three years ended December 31, 2001, revenues
from our unconsolidated investments were approximately
$14,500,000, $13,700,000, and $800,000, respectively. Pri-
mary sources of revenues included service agreements,
construction, switch, long-distance, and wholesale. During
these same periods, we earned approximately $1,100,000,
$900,000, and $600,000, respectively, of interest income
from outstanding notes receivables with our unconsoiidated
investments.

NOTE 11 - RETIREMENT PLANS

Between 1999 and 2001, MPC maintained a trusteed,
noncontributory retirement plan covering substantially all of
its employees. Retirement benefits under the MPC Pension
Plan (MPC Plan) were based on salary, age, and years of
service. The MPC Plan’s assets consisted primarily of
domestic and foreign corporate stocks, domestic corporate
bonds, and United States Government securities.

Effective with the sale of The Montana Power, LLC
(MPLLC) to NorthWestern, employees of Touch America were
no longer eligible to participate in the MPC Plan. Touch Amer-
ica does not sponsor a defined benefit pension plan. As a
result, participants in the MPC Plan employed by Touch Amer-
ica as of the closing date, received in March 2002, the accrued
value of their benefit under the MPC Plan in a single lump-sum
distribution or an annuity purchased by the MPC Plan.

As a result of the sale of MPC's electric generating
assets in December 1999, 4564 MPC Plan participants
related to electric generation operations were curtailed from
the MPC Plan and approximately $22,700,000 in assets
were transferred from the retirement plan trust in Decem-
ber 1998. Pursuant to the sales agreement, when the calcu-
lation was finalized in February 2000, approximately
$3,200,000 of additional assets were transferred to the pur-
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chaser’s pension plan trust. In accordance with SFAS No.
88, "Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtail-
ments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans,” MPC calculated a
curtailment gain of approximately $4,100,000 and a settle-
ment gain of approximately $7,800,000 in 1999. Due to reg-
ulatory accounting requirements, the gains were recorded
as regulatory liabilities or offsets to regulatory assets, result-
ing in no effect on the Consolidated Statement of Income.

MPC offered a Special Retirement Program (SRP) to cer-
tain eligible employees during 2000. The SFAS No. 88 special
termination charge resulting from 213 participants electing
the SRP amounted to approximately $10,500,000. Of that
amount, $661,000 was recorded as additional expense. Due
to regulatory accounting requirements, the remaining amount
was offset against regulatory liabilities, resulting in no effect
on the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Effective October 31, 2000, MPC sold its oil and natural
gas operations to PanCanadian Petroleum Limited and Pan-
Canadian Energy, Inc. (PanCanadian). In conjunction with the
sale, 90 participants were curtailed from the MPC Plan and
approximately $2,400,000 in MPC Plan assets were used to
purchase annuities for benefits accrued by those participants
through October 31, 2000. In accordance with SFAS No. 88,
a curtailment gain of approximately $108,000 and a settle-
ment gain of approximately $526,000 were calculated.

On April 30, 2001, MPC's coal division operations were
sold to Westmoreland. MPC transferred approximately
$15,300,000 in MPC Plan assets to the Westmoreland pen-
sion plan trust for accrued benefits relating to the 520 MPC
Plan participants transferred as a result of the coal sale. In
accordance with SFAS No. 88, MPC recognized a curtailment
gain of approximately $2,315,000 and a settlement gain of
approximately $770,000. Pursuant to the sale agreement
with Westmoreland, approximately $1,700,000 of additional
MPC Plan assets, representing the true-up calculation, were
transferred to the Westmoreland trust in February 2002.
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During 2001, approximately $514,000 of MPC Plan assets were used for funding relating to the addition of participants to
the pension annuity contract purchased in 2000. In addition, $12,000 of MPC Plan assets were used for the true-up calcula-
tion relating to the oil and natural gas operations sale agreement with PanCanadian.

MPC, together with most of its subsidiaries, also maintained certain health care and life insurance benefits payable until
age 65 for eligible retired employees. Effective February 15, 2002, Touch America no longer maintains such retiree benefits
on an ongoing basis. We have, however, undertaken to provide the same retiree benefits formerly available under the MPC
arrangements for twenty-seven current Touch America employees who would have been eligible under the MPC arrange-
ments if they had retired prior to February 15, 2002. These benefits are an unfunded expense, estimated in accordance with
SFAS No. 106 at $51,000 for 2002. -

Table | The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the MPC Plan's and the MPC retiree healthcare and life
insurance benefit obligations; changes in the fair value of pension and other benefit assets over the two-year period
ending December 31, 2001, and a statement of the funded status of the benefits as of December 31 of both years:

Pension Benefits Cther Benefits
2001 2000 2001 2000

{Thousands of Dollars}
CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION:

Benefit obligation at January 1 ............. . ... ... .. .. $ 267,716 $ 242,005 $ 25,601 $ 21,628

Service cost on benefitsearned ........... ... ... . ... 4,731 5,820 526 571
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation . ........... ... 19,785 18,292 2,018 1,741
Planamendments ............ ... .. . i 1,748 7,578 - -
Actuanal 10Ss ... . . 27,719 _ 588 3,689 4,773
Acquisitions/divestitures .. ...... ... .. - - (868) (337)
Curtailments ... .. ... .. 4,191) {462) - -
Settlements ... .. e (14,017) (2,429) - -
Special termination benefits ............ ... ... ... ..., - 10,476 - -
Adjustments for liability transfers . ...................... - (1,999 - -
Grossbenefitspaid ............ ... ... . ... (17,505) (12,153} {4,851} {2,775}
Benefit obligation at December31 .. ... ... ... .. ...... $ 285,986 $ 267,716 $ 26,115 $ 25601
CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS;
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 . ...... R ' $ 252,312 $ 276,248 $ 9,707 $ 9916
Actual return/(loss) on planassets .. ... .................. (6,107) (5,684) 106 328
Employer contributions .. ....... .. .. ... ... o 2,285 2,211 910 2,237
Divestitures . ......... . {15,842) (5,629) - -
Adjustments for asset transfers .. ............. ... ...... - (2,682) - -
Gross benefitspaid ... ... ... .. .. .. (17,505) (12,153} (4,851) (2,775)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 . .............. o $ 215,143 $ 252,311 $ 5872 $ 9706
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDED STATUS: ‘ ]
Funded statusatendofyear .......................... $ (70,843) $ (15,405) $ (20,243) $ (15,895)
Unrecognized net:
Actuarial (gain)foss . ... 28,444 (28,394) 3,104 {1,129)
Priorservice cost ... ... .. 21,367 23,310 1,386 1,593 i
Transition obligation fasset) ......................... (126) 121 9,443 10,554 ‘
Net amount recognized at December 31 ............... $ (21,158) $ (20,368) $ (6,310 $ 4877
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Table | The following table provides the amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31.
Amounts related to our discontinued utility operations are included in “Asset of discontinued operations” and “Lia-
bilities of discontinued operations.” ‘

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2001 2039 2081 2000
{Thousands of Dollars)
Prepaid benefitcost . ... ... ... .. $ - 3 942 $ - $ -
Accrued benefitcost ........ ... ... . .. (21,158) (21,310) {6,310} (4,877
Additional minimum liability ......... ... ... .. ... ... ... (41,473) (3,312) - -
Intangble asset ....... ... .. . ... .. ... . 21,367 - - -
Accumulated other comprehensive income .................. 2,008 - - -
Regulatory asset . ... .. ... .. e . 18,098 3,312 - -
Net amount recognized at December31 .................... $ {21,158) $ (20,368) $ (6,310} $ 4,877)

Table | The following tables provide the components of net periodic benefit cost for the pension and other postretirement
benefit plans, portions of which have been deferred or capitalized, for fiscal years 2001, 2000, and 1999:

Pension Benefits

2087 2008 1298
(Thousands of Dollars)

Service coston benefitsearned ... ............ .. . i $ 4,73 $ 5,820 $ 8719
interest cost on projected benefit obligation . ...... ... . .. .. L. 19,785 18,291 19,540
Expected return on plan assets . ... ... ... (20,547) (23,894) {25,650)
Amortization of: :

Transition obligation (@sset) . ... .. ... ... . (20) 44 43

Prior service Cost .. ... .. 2,094 1,826 1,741

Actuarial (gain) l0SS . .. ... 118 {3,166) {1,658)
Net periodic benefit cost {credit) .......... ... ... ... ..., S 6,161 {1,079) 2,735
Special termination benefitcharge . ....... ... . .. e - 10,476 -
Curtailment gain .. ... ... (2,315) (108) (3,751)
Settlement gain . .. .. e (770) (5626) (7,844)
Net periodic benefit cost (credit) after curtailments and settlements . ....... $ 3,076 $ 8763 $ (8,860)

Other Benefits
2001 2000 1339
(Thousands of Dollars)

Service coston benefitsearned . . ... ... .. $ 526 $ 571 $ 844
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation . ........ ... ... .. ... . .... 2,018 1,741 1,776
Expected return on plan assets . ........... . (7086) (818} (722)
Amortization of:

Transition obligation . . . ... .. ... 862 897 1,098

Prior service Cost . ... ... L 156 166 177

Actuarial gain .. ... - (186) {133)
Net periodic benefit cost ... ... ... ... . . ... .. 2,856 2,371 3,040
Curtailment gain . .. ... . - - (374}
Net periodic benefit cost after curtailments and settlements .. ........... $ 2,856 $ 2,371 $ 2,666
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In 2001, funding for pension costs was less than SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” pension expense
by $3,138,000. In 2000 and 1999, pension costs exceeded SFAS No. 87 pension expense by $3,078,000 and $1,631,000,
respectively. The Public Service Commission (PSC) allows recovery for the funding of pension costs through rates. Any differ-
ences between pension funding and expense are deferred for recognition in future periods. At December 31, 2001, the regu-

latory liability was $7,487,000.

Table

The following assumptions were used in the determination of actuarial present values of the projected benefit obligation:

Weighted average assumptions as of December 31:

Discountrate ...t
Expectedretumonplanassets ............ .. ... .. ......
Rate of compensationincrease . ........................

Pension Benefits Qther Benefits
2001 2080 200 2080

(Thousands of Dollars)

7.00% 7.50% 7.00% 7.50%
8.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.40%

Table

Assumed health care costs trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A
1 percent change. in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

Effect on total of service and interest cost component of

net periodic postretirement health care benefit cost .. ..

Effect on the health care component of the accumulated

postretirement benefit obligation .. ............ ... ..

1% Increase 1% Decrease

(Thousands of Dollars)

$ 106 $ (92)

747 {657}

The assumed 2002 health care cost trend rates used to measure the expected cost of benefits covered by the plans is
8.00 percent. The trend rate decreases through 2007 to 5.50 percent.

NOTE 12 - CONTINGENCIES

[ QWEST COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

We are involved in a material dispute with Qwest Com-
munications Corporations (Qwest) regarding a number of
revenue and expense issues related to our June 30, 2000
acquisition of the wholesale, private line, long-distance, and
other telecommunications services business in the former
U S WEST 14-state region. The dispute involves, among
other items, costs that Qwest has billed to us that we
believe are invalid as well as revenue that we believe Qwest
has not billed to customers or to itself on our behalf for
services we have provided.

We are currently involved in three separate legal actions
in three separate forums relating to our disputes with
Qwest. On August 8, 2001, Qwest initiated an arbitration
proceeding against us seeking damages that Qwest claims
to have incurred resuiting from two agreements entered
into with us as a result of the June 30, 2000 acquisition. The
Qwest demand for arbitration indicates Qwest is seeking an
amount in excess of $47,000,000.

We have answered and counterclaimed in the arbitration
proceeding. We have denied owing Qwest any sums at all,
including the $47,000,000 sought by Qwest. We have coun-
terclaimed against Qwest, seeking to recover: (i) all unpaid

and past due amounts owed by Qwest to us under our
Bilateral Wholesale Agreement (BWA) and Transition Ser-
vices Agreement (TSA), with allowable interest, which
aggregate amount we believe exceeds $75,000,000; (ii) any
good faith partial payments made by Touch America of dis-
puted amounts under the BWA that the arbitration panel
finds are in excess of the amounts actually owed to Qwest;
(iii} all amounts due to us resulting from Qwest’s failure to
properly bill our customers and/or properly remit revenues
from Touch America customers to Touch America; (iv) recov-
ery for all amounts due and owing to Touch America result-
ing from Qwest's failure to properly remit revenues for the
circuits transferred to Touch America; (v) all amounts due
and owing to Touch America resulting from Qwest'’s failure
to collect and/or properly remit revenues to Touch America
under the parties’ Global Service Provider Agreement; (vi)
recovery of all amounts due and owing under the parties’ Lit
IRU Agreement; and (vii) recovery of all amounts due and
unpaid under the BWA or the TSA as of the date the arbitra-
tor renders an award. We are also seeking a declaration of
the parties’ rights under the BWA and TSA. The amounts
Touch America believes Qwest owes to Touch America in (i)
through (vii) above exceeds by a substantial amount the
$47,000,000 claimed by Qwest. The arbitration claims are
set for hearing in September 2002.
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On August 10, 2001, Qwest also filed a lawsuit in Denver
County, Colorado District Court. This lawsuit addresses claims
not covered by the Qwest demand for arbitration and, in it,
Qwest is seeking unspecified damages to be determined at
trial. On August 27, 2001, Touch America moved the Col-
orado State Court action to the United States District Court
for the District of Colorado. On September 7, 2001, Touch
America filed an answer to Qwest’s complaint generally deny-
ing Qwest's accusations and filed a counterclaim against
Qwest. The amount of damages Touch America is seeking
from Qwest has not yet been quantified, but we expect this
will be determined as part of the discovery process.

On February 11, 2002, Touch America filed a complaint
with the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), ask-
ing the FCC to stop Qwest from selling long-distance serv-
ices in a 14-state region in the form of capacity or lit IRUs in
violation of the Telecommunications Act of 1996. On March
1, 2002, Touch America filed a second complaint with the
FCC, alleging that Qwest has violated the FCC Merger and
Divestiture orders that govern the Qwest/U S WEST Merger
and Qwest's divestiture to Touch America of Qwest's in-
region business.

We are unable to predict the ultimate outcome of these
matters or how the outcomes may affect our consolidated
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. Due
to a significant lack of information provided by Qwest relat-
ing to both revenues and expenses, it is difficult for us to
determine with certainty the amounts we owe to Qwest
and Qwest owes to us. Qwest has billed us approximately
$115,000,000, which we have disputed and have not recog-
nized as expense on our Consolidated Statement of Income.
We have invoiced Qwest for revenues that it also has dis-
puted. At December 31, 2001, we have recorded a receiv-
able of $157,000,000 from Qwest. Qwest has indicated that
it intends to offset its payment of the receivable with
amounts it is owed by Touch America. As of December 31,
2001 we estimate that Qwest owed us up to approximately
$70,000,000 more than we owed them.

T CLASS ACTION LAWSUIT

On August 16, 2001, eight individuals filed a lawsuit in
Montana State District Court, naming MPC, eleven mem-
bers of MPC’s Board of Directors, three officers of both
Touch America and Montana Power, and PPL Montana as
defendants. On September 14, 2001, the complaint was
amended to add one other current officer of Touch America,
one other current officer of Montana Power, and our invest-
ment banking consultants as additional defendants.

In their complaint, the plaintiffs allege that MPC and its
directors and officers had a legal obligation and a fiduciary
duty to obtain shareholder approval before the sale of our
former electric generation assets to PPL Montana. The
plaintiffs further allege that because shareholders did not

vote, the sale of the generation assets is void and PPL Mon- .

tana is holding these assets in constructive trust for the
shareholders. Alternatively, the plaintiffs allege that share-
holders should have been allowed to vote on the sale of the
generation assets and, if an appropriate majority vote was
obtained in favor of the sale, the shareholders should have
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been given dissenters’ rights. The plaintiffs alsc make vari-
ous claims of breaches of duty and negligence against the
MPC Board of Directors and the individual officers and the
other named defendants.

The plaintiffs have sought court approval to proceed with
this suit as a class action. Defendants have opposed the
plaintiffs’ request to proceed with this suit as a class action,
and that issue is pending.

MPC and the other defendants in the case have all filed
substantive motions to dismiss the complaint, which
motions are pending.

We believe that MPC and its directors and officers, and
Touch America’s officers, have fully complied with their
statutory and fiduciary duties. Accordingly, we are defending
the suit vigorously. At this early stage, however, we cannot
predict the ultimate outcome of this matter or how it may
affect our consolidated financial position, results of opera-
tions, or cash flows. :

Touch America is not a defendant, although the plaintiffs
have moved to amend the complaint to include Touch Amer-
ica Holdings, Inc. It is our position that because of the
merger between MPC and MPLLC, in which the obligations
of MPC vested in MPLLC by operation of law and the
merger documents, as long as MPC remains a defendant in
the case, both potential liability and insurance coverage for
the case remain with MPLLC.

COWILLIAMS COMMUNICATIONS, L.L.C./SIERRA
TOUCH AMERICA, L.L.C.

On July 20, 2001, Williams Communications, L.L.C.
(Williams) filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court
for the Northern District of Oklahoma alleging that Sierra
Touch America, L.L.C. {STA), a joint venture between Sierra
Pacific Communications and Touch America, failed to make
timely payments on invoices totaling approximately
$23,400,000 related to a construction agreement between
Williams and STA. In the third quarter 2001, Williams sub-
mitted additional invoices to STA in an attempt to increase
the amount demanded to approximately $34,300,000. STA
did not approve the additional work and cost overruns sub-
mitted by Williams, and STA disagrees with the amount of
Williams® claims. Pursuant to the construction agreement,
Williams is constructing a fiber optic telecommunications
route for STA from Verdi, Nevada to Sacramento, California.

We believe that our total exposure is less than the
amount that Williams is demanding. However, we are
unable to predict the ultimate outcome or how the matter
may affect our consolidated financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

For more information on STA, see Note 13, “Commit-
ments,” in the “Unconsolidated Investments” section.

OTCA BUILDING COMPANY

Our subsidiary, Entech, Inc. {Entech) and its former sub-
sidiary, Northwestern Resources, are defendants in litigation
initiated by TCA Building Company in 1995 in the 261st Judi-
cial District Court in Travis County, Texas. TCA has alleged
that Entech and Northwestern Resources breached obliga-
tions to assist it in mining its property, that alleged promises
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underlying these obligations were tainted by fraud, and that
Entech and Northwestern Resources wrongfully interfered
with a contract and a business opportunity for TCA to sell
lignite. TCA alleges that its damages, in addition to unspeci-
fied exemplary damages, are between $8,000,000 and
$13,500,000. Entech and Northwestern Resources have
asserted counterclaims that would substantially reduce
these alleged amounts.

The Texas District Court has granted motions filed by
Entech and Northwestern Resources for summary judgment
on all of TCA's claims, and TCA has appealed. The parties
have argued the case on appeal, but the court has not yet
issued a judgment. The appeal has been pending before the
appellate court since November 2000 and there has been no
activity relating to this case since then.

Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement that we
entered into with Westmoreland Coal Company, Westmore-
land has assumed responsibility for defending this litigation
relative to the claims against Northwestern Resources.
While Westmoreland is responsible for the claims against
Northwestern Resources, we will remain responsible for
defending this litigation relative to the claims against
Entech.

C SALE OF MPLLC/UTIUITY BUSINESS -

INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS

Pursuant to the provisions of the September 29, 2000
Unit Purchase Agreement with NorthWestern, we have
agreed to indemnify NorthWestern, or MPLLC under North-
Western ownership, for certain adverse consequences
which may arise followihg the sale. Such indemnity obliga-
tions are summarized below, but the specifics of such obli-
gations are set forth in, and subject to, the applicable
provisions of the Unit Purchase Agreement. We have no
obligation to indemnify NorthWestern/MPLLC for matters
other than those set forth in the Unit Purchase Agreement.
Therefore, except for such specified indemnity provisions,
obligations of MPC are now the obligations of MPLLC, and
are not our responsibility. ;

Under the Unit Purchase Agreement, we agreed to
indemnify NorthWestern/MPLLC for adverse consequences
with respect to:

o Taxes — any taxes relating to us, MPLLC, MPC, and
any member of MPC's affiliated group of subsidiaries,
for any tax year or portion of a tax year ending on or
before February 15, 2002,

o Restructuring - the reorganization of the corporate
structure of MPC;

o Divestiture — the completion of the sale of our former
oil and gas operations, Continental Energy, and coal
operations;

o PPL Montana Claim — a claim from PPL Montana in the
amount of approximately $3,900,000 relating to issues
under an electric supply agreement between PPL
Montana and MPC;

o Environmental - certain environmental losses as
specified in the Unit Purchase Agreement. The
obligations of MPLLC to indemnify PPL Montana for
environmental matters under the terms of the October
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31, 1998 Asset Purchase Agreement could, in turn, be
claimed by MPLLC as subject to our indemnity
obligation to MPLLC under the Unit Purchase
Agreement. However, the indemnity obligation is
subject to the following conditions: (i) it will not apply
until the total amount of the environmental losses
exceed $50,000,000; (i) we would be liable for the
next $25,000,000 of environmental losses; (iii) we
would also be liable for 50 percent of all environmental
losses in excess of $75,000,000 in the aggregate; and
(iv) in no event would we be obligated to pay in excess
of $100,000,000; that is, the indemnity obligation has a
“cap” of $100,000,000. This obligation continues for
five years after February 15, 2002, the closing date of
the sale; and

o Certain Litigation — certain litigation and claims listed in
a schedule to the Unit Purchase Agreement. Eight
matters are listed on that schedule, but some have
settled since the Unit Purchase Agreement was
signed, or are inactive cases; there are only
approximately four active matters to which the
indemnity obligation is applicable. Except for the
matters listed on the schedule, any litigation or claim
to which MPC is a party is the responsibility of
MPLLC, not us.

We are unable to predict the ultimate outcome of these
various indemnity obligations, or how these matters may
affect our consolidated financial position, results of opera-
tions, or cash flows.

{1 SALE CF COAL OPERATIONS

On April 30, 2001, MPC sold its coal operations to West-
moreland Coal Company. Westmoreland has disputed our
proposed post-closing adjustments, which would have
required Westmoreland to make an additional payment to us
of $9,003,000. Westmoreland submitted proposed post-
closing adjustments, which would require us to make a pay-
ment to Westmoreland of approximately $31,000,000.
Westmoreland subsequently filed on October 29, 2001 a
claim for indemnity under the Stock Purchase Agreement,
which reflects the above-noted post-closing adjustments
claim of $31,000,000. On November 21, 2001, we
responded to the indemnity claim and disputed all claims.
On November 26, 2001, Westmoreland filed a petition in
State Court in New York asserting that the matters in dis-
pute should be resolved under the arbitration process for
post-closing adjustments provided for in the September 15,
2000 Stock Purchase Agreement between Westmoreland
and Entech. On January 18, 2002, the New York State Court
entered an order granting Westmoreland’s petition. Entech
has appealed the order. Entech disagrees with Westmore-
land’s position regarding the post-closing adjustments and
the indemnity claims. We are currently unable to predict the
outcome of this dispute or how it may affect our consoli-
dated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

With respect to income taxes, because we file a consoli-
dated federal income tax return, we agreed to accept liability
for the coal operations’ income taxes for periods ending
prior to or on the closing of the sale of those operations.
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D SALE OF CONTINENTAL ENERGY

We agreed, because we file a consolidated federal income
tax return, to accept liability for the income taxes of Continen-
tal Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries for periods end-
ing prior to or on the closing of the sale of that business.

JSALE OF OIL AND NATURAL GAS

OPERATIONS

On October 31, 2000, MPC sold the oil and natural gas
operations to PanCanadian Petroleum Limited and PanCana-
dian Energy, Inc. On October 30, 2001, the purchasers pro-
vided MPC with a notice asserting claims of approximately
$10,000,000 for indemnity under terms of the August 25,
2000 Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement pertaining to
pre-closing environmental liabilities. The claims were
asserted under the terms of the August 25, 2000 Stock and
Asset Purchase Agreement between the purchasers and
Entech. The asserted claims are broadly stated, alleging
facts Entech’s representatives have not established through
investigation. Entech has disputed all of the claims, and
Entech’s response also advised the purchasers that the
notice was not valid under the terms of .the Stock and Asset
Purchase Agreement because the notice did not provide
information required to state a proper claim. At this early
stage, however, we cannot predict the outcome of this mat-
ter or how it may affect our consolidated position, financial
results of operations, or cash flows.

In addition, we agreed to indemnify the purchasers for
certain adverse environmental consequences relating to oil
and natural gas properties previously owned, leased or oper-
ated by us, but which were not owned by us at the time of
the sale of the oil and natural gas operations to the pur-
chasers. This indemnity obligation is not part of the
$10,000,000 indemnity claim discussed above.

With respect to taxes, we agreed to indemnify the pur-
chasers for certain adverse conseguences relating to
breaches of our obligations or representations under the tax
provisions of the purchase agreement.

OMISCELLANEQUS

We, together with our subsidiaries, are parties to various
other legal claims, actions, and complaints arising in the
ordinary course of business. We do not expect the conclu-
sion of any of these matters to have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position, results of oper-
ations, or cash flows. ‘

NQTE 13 - COMMITMENTS
O CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS
AT&T Corp

In October 1999, we entered into a contract to construct
a high-speed, fiber optic network for AT&T. The contract
allows us to install our own fiber optic network at the same
time and along the same routes we are constructing for
AT&T. The network will span more than 4,300 miles and will
cover six different routes in the West, Pacific Northwest,
Northern Rocky Mountains, and Midwest. The contract con-
tains capped performance incentives if we meet, and
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capped penalties if we do not meet, aggressive completion
targets. All routes are scheduled for completion by early
2003. We estimate the cost of the project at $600,300,000,
of which a total of $448,400,000 was expended in 2000 and
2001, and $151,900,000 is budgeted for 2002. We expect
AT&T and other third parties to reimburse us for approxi-
mately 50 percent of the total cost, as stages of the project
are completed.

Northern Telecom, inc.

We have contracted with Northern Telecom, Inc. to fur-
nish and install optical electronic equipment on certain fiber
optic networks. In 2000 and 2001, we paid a total of
$85,700,000 for these installations and expect to pay an
additional $6,800,000 in 2002.

(J SYSTEM INSTALLATION

Siemens Carrier Networks, L.L.C.

In February 2001, we contracted with Siemens Carrier
Networks, L.L.C. to implement Touch America Business
Solutions (TABS). TABS is our new provisioning, order entry,
and billing system, which is slated for completion by mid-
2002. We spent $11,900,000 in 2001 and expect to pay an
additional $9,800,000 in 2002 to install the system.

O UNCONSOLIDATED INVESTMENTS ‘

We have entered into various strategic alliances to
expand our network and increase revenues. In accordance
with the agreements governing these relationships, we are
committed to contribute capital at various times.

Northern Colorado Telecommunications, L.L.C.

In August 1999, we formed Northern Colorado Telecom-
munications, L.L.C., a 50-50 joint venture with NCE, a sub-
sidiary of Xcel, to provide a full range of telecommunication
services, including private line service, to enterprises in the
Denver metropolitan area. For this venture, NCE contributed
long-term IRUs of its existing fiber optic network in the Den-
ver metropolitan area and we will construct six miles of fiber
optic cable and install optical electronic equipment, at an
estimated cost of $9,300,000. Since the project’s inception,
we have contributed $5,100,000 and plan to contribute
$1,500,000 in both 2002 and 2003 and $1,100,000 in 2004.

TW Wireless, L.L.C.

We own a 49.9 percent interest in TWW, a joint venture
with Qwest Wireless, to provide “"one number” wireless
telephone service in an eight-state region of the Pacific
Northwest and Upper Midwest. This service provides a cus-
tomer with one directory number for cell phone and home
or business phone. Both companies contributed PCS
licenses to the venture, At December 31, 2001, we had con-
tributed approximately $39,900,000 toward the costs of the
wireless infrastructure and estimate that we will contribute
an additional $15,300,000 in 2002.

Sierra Touch America, L.L.C.

in May 2000, we formed STA, a 50-50 joint venture with
Sierra Pacific Communications, a subsidiary of Sierra Pacific,
to construct a fiber optic network between Sacramento and
Salt Lake City as a part of our AT&T construction project.
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We expect this network will make up 750 miles of the
4,300-mile build-out that we are constructing in tandem with
STA's construction of a fiber optic network for AT&T. STA
has begun construction of this route and expects to com-
plete the route in the fourth quarter 2002 at an estimated
cost of $189,000,000. Upon completion, we will own 4 of
the 6 conduits of the network and will transfer 3 to AT&T
and exchange another with a third party. STA will retain
ownership of the remaining 2 conduits and will distribute 1
to each partner. To date, each partner has contributed
approximately $10,700,000 to the joint venture, and we
have paid approximately $42,900,000 toward the purchase
of the 4 conduits. The terms of the joint venture agreement
give STA a partial interest in the metropolitan fiber networks
that Sierra Pacific Communications operates in Reno and
Las Vegas. For information regarding litigation against STA,
see Note 12, “Contingencies,” in the "Williams Communi-
cations, L.L.C./Sierra Touch America, L.L.C." section.

American Fiber Touch, L.L.C.

In January 2000, we formed AFT, a 50-50 joint venture
with AEP Communications, L.L..C., a subsidiary of American
Electric Power, to connect national and regional fiber optic
networks between Plano, lllinois and St. Louis, Missouri as
part of our AT&T construction project. We expect this net-
work will make up 296 miles of the 4,300-mile fiber optic
network discussed above. AFT has begun construction of
the Planc-St. Louis route and expects to complete it in the
second quarter 2002 at an estimated total cost of
$43,000,000. At the end of 2001, we had advanced approxi-
mately $18,200,000 for construction costs, and we plan to
contribute another $3,500,000 in 2002.

Minnescta PCS, L.

In January 2000, we signed a purchase agreement with
MPCS to acquire a 25 percent interest in MPCS' wireless
telephone business, which owns PCS licenses in North
Dakota, South Dakota, Minnesota, and Wisconsin. In accor-
dance with the agreement, we made an initial equity invest-
ment of $2,700,000 in MPCS. In 2000, we lcaned MPCS a
total of $12,000,000 in interest-bearing notes, payable on
October 1, 2002. In 2000 and 2001, we advanced MPCS
$9,000,000 for network construction and operating costs.
We also guaranteed the payment of $7,420,000 of a note
made by the Rural Telephone Finance Corporation (RTFC) to
MPCS. This guarantee was in the form of a cash collateral
account.

On July 31, 2001, however, MPCS defaulted on its note
with RTFC. Consequently, RTFC called all outstanding guaran-
tees and, in September 2001, withdrew $7,420,000 from our
collateral account. Following the unanimous decision of
MPCS partners to offer the assets of MPCS for sale, MPCS
received, in the third quarter 2001, letters of commitment
from four entities to purchase certain licenses and other
assets from MPCS. Because the expected proceeds from the
sales of MPCS' assets would not be sufficient to repay the
withdrawn collateral and MPCS' loan obligations to us, we
recorded a loss of $11,700,000 related to our MPCS invest-
ment and the MPCS note receivable. We anticipate additional
funding requirements prior to exiting this investment.
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CLEASES

Capital Lease

In January 2000, we entered into a Reciprocal IRU Lease
and Exchange Option Agreement with Velocita, formerly
PF.Net Construction Corp. This agreement is a 20-year IRU
lease with an option tc exchange the leased property at a
future date. Under the agreement, we will lease approxi-
mately 5,900 route miles from Velocita and Velocita will
lease approximately 4,400 miles of fiber from us. Prior to
commencement of the lease, we will prepay $48,500,000
for the difference in route miles. The prepayment will be
amortized to expense over the 20-year lease term. As of
December 31, 2001, approximately $18,600,000 had been
paid, and $14,400,000 is scheduled for payment in 2002
with $15,5600,000 scheduted in 2003.

Operating Leases

We have entered into operating lease agreements for
office space and communication sites, with varying termina-
tion dates, which we recorded as expense on the Consoli-
dated Statement of Income of approximately $6,500,000 in
2001, $2,800,000 in 2000, and $1,900,000 in 1999.

Table | The following is a schedule of future minimum
rental payments based on our operating lease
agreements that have initial or remaining non-can-

celable lease terms in excess of one year:

Thousands

For the Year of Dollars
2002 ... $ 5,580
2003 ... 5,320
2004 ... 4,623
2005 . ... 3,345
2008 ... 3,076
Remaining ............. ... .. ... ... .. 17,885
$39,829

The present value of these lease payments discounted at
our December 31, 2001 average borrowing rate of 5.45 per-
cent is $28,767,882.

© O MINIMUM ANNUAL COMMITMENTS

Table | The above construction projects, unconsolidated
investments, and capital lease obligate us to make

minimum annual payments as follows:

2002 2003 2004 Total

(Thousands of Dollars)

$198,871 $17,000 $1,1700  $216,971

The present value of these payments discounted at our
December 31, 2001 average borrowing rate of 5.45 percent
is $204,824,844.




Touch America Holdings, Inc.

2001 Form 10-K

NOTE 14 - NEW ACCQUNTING
PRONQOUNCEMENTS

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations.” SFAS No. 141 eliminates the use of the
pooling of interests method of accounting, and requires that
all mergers and acquisitions be accounted for using the pur-
chase method of accounting. SFAS No. 141 also establishes
specific criteria for the recognition of intangible assets sepa-
rately from goodwill and adds new disclosure requirements.
This statement is effective for all mergers and acquisitions
initiated after June 30, 2001. Adoption of this pronounce-
ment is not expected to have a material impact on our finan-
cial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill
and Other Intangibles.” SFAS No. 142 eliminates amortization
of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangibles. These assets
will now be assessed at least annually for impairment using a
fair value based test. Any intangible asset with a finite life will
continue to be amortized over that life. The amortization provi-
sions of SFAS No. 142 apply to goodwill and other intangibles
acquired after June 30, 2001. We will adopt the provisions of
SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter 2002. In connection with the
adoption of SFAS No. 142, we expect to reclassify
$3,100,000 of our intangible assets to goodwill. We expect
that we will no longer record $700,000 of amortization relat-
ing to the existing goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles, as
adjusted for the above reclassifications. We will also evaluate
the useful lives assigned to our intangible assets.

SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be tested annually
for impairment using a two-step process. The first step is to
identify a potential impairment and, in transition, this step
must be measured as of the beginning of the fiscal year.
However, a company has six months from the date of adop-
tion to complete the first step. We expect to complete this

NOTE 15 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

first step of the goodwill impairment test during the first
quarter 2002. The second step of the goodwill impairment
test measures the amount of the impairment loss {(meas-
ured as of the beginning of the year of adoption), if any, and
must be completed by the end of our fiscal year. Intangible
assets deemed to have indefinite lives will be tested for
impairment using a one-step process, which compares the
fair value to the carrying amount of the asset as of the
beginning of the fiscal year and, pursuant to the require-
ments of SFAS No. 142, will be completed during the first
quarter 2002. Any impairment loss resulting from the transi-
tional impairment tests will be reflected as the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle in the first quarter
2002. Adoption of this pronouncement is not expected to
have a material impact on our financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows. ‘

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "“Account-
ing for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143
requires entities to record the fair value of a legal liability for
an asset retirement obligation in the period it is incurred. The
asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying
amount of the long-lived asset. This statement is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. We are currently evaluating this pronounce-
ment, but we do not expect it to have a material impact on
our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.”

SFAS No. 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting
for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. This state-
ment is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001. Adoption of this
pronouncement is not expected to have a material impact on
our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Table

The following table provides the balances at December 31, 2001 and 2000 for “Assets of discontinued operations”
and “Liabilities of discontinued operations” as shown on the Consolidated Batance Sheet. The 2001 amounts repre-
sent discontinued utility operations and the 2000 amounts represent discontinued coal operations.

Assets of Discontinued Operations:
Current assets
Net plant, property, and equipment
Regulatory assets
Reclamation trust
Other noncurrent assets

Liabilities of Discontinued Operations:
Current liabilities
Long-term debt
Regulatory liabilities
Deferred reclamation
Other deferred credits

December 31,
2001

{Thousands of Dollars)

2000

$ 166,290 $ 51,160
1,091,235 115,544
203,305 -

- 46,043

60,224 69,603

$ 1,521,054 $ 282,350
$ 144,090 $ 39,645
507,680 2,911
274,526 -

- 137,014

188,943 8,910

$ 1,115,239 $ 188480
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O UTILITY OPERATIONS

Property, Plant, and Equipment

MPC capitalized the cost of plant additions and replace-
ments, including an allowance for funds used during con-
struction (AFUDC) of utility plant. The rate used to compute
AFUDC has been determined in accordance with a formula
established by FERC. This rate averaged 6.1 percent for
2001, 8.6 percent for 2000, and 7.1 percent for 1999.

MPC charged costs of utility depreciable units of prop-
erty retired, plus costs of removal less salvage, to accumu-
lated depreciation and recognized no gain or loss.
Maintenance and repairs of plant and property, as well as
replacements and renewals of items determined to be less

than established units of plant were charged to operating
expenses.

Included in the plant classifications are utility plant under
construction in the amounts of $13,493,000 and $2,637,000
for 2001 and 2000.

MPC recorded provisions for depreciation and depletion
at amounts substantially equivalent to calculations made on
straight-line and unit-of-production methods by applying vari-
ous rates based on useful lives of properties determined
from engineering studies. As a percentage of the deprecia-
ble and depletable utility plant at the beginning of the year,
the provisions for depreciation and depletion of utility plant
were approximately 3.4 percent for 2001, 3.5 percent for
2000, and 3.0 percent for 1993.

Table | The following table provides year-end balances of the major classifications of MPC’s property, plant, and equipment,
which were recorded at cost:
December 31,
2001 2030
{Thousands of Dollars)
Utility Plamt:
Electric:

Generation (including MPC's share of jointly owned) '
Transmission
Distribution
Other
Natural Gas:
Production and storage
Transmission
Distribution
Other
Other
Total Utility
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net Property, Plant, and Equipment

........................ $ 53,922 $ 54,341
........................ 414,886 412,885
........................ 629,296 604,070
........................ 136,740 135,477
........................ 72,616 71,681
........................ 173,751 - 167,416
........................ 164,451 161,039
........................ 38,882 39,841
........................ 6,203 6,401
........................ 1,680,747 1,643,151
........................ 589512 553,821
........................ $ 1,091,235 $ 1,089,330

intangibles

The excess of the January 2000 purchase price over the
net assets of One Call Locators, Ltd. was recorded as good-
will and is being amortized over 15 years. Intangibles at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 consisted of $8,559,000 of
goodwill. The associated amortization expense was
$1,141,000 and $570,000, respectively.

Regulatory Assets and Liabifities
For regulated operations, MPC followed SFAS No. 71,
"Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regula-

tion.” Pursuant to this pronouncement, certain expenses
and credits, normally reflected in incomie as incurred, are
recognized when included in rates and recovered from or
refunded to the customers. Accordingly, MPC recorded the
following major classifications of regulatory assets and lia-
bilities that will be recognized in expenses and revenues in
future periods when the matching revenues are collected
or refunded.
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Table Regulatory assets and liabilities

INCOME TAXES . . .. .o
Colstrip Unit 3 carrying charge
Conservation programs
Competitive transition charges (CTCs)
Generation net proceeds in excess of book value
Proceeds from ojl and natural gas sale
Investment tax credits
Other ... .
Subtotal
Less:
Current portions
Total

December 31,
2001 20008
Assats Liabilities Assets Liabibities
(Thousands of Dollars)
$ 27,280 $ - $ 58452 $ -
38,337 - 38,337 -
27,956 - 27,956 -
47,487 - 50,965 -
- 223,423 - 214,887
- 33,426 - 32,549
- 12,718 - 13,163
76,402 29,555 40,384 18,816
217,462 298,122 216,094 278,415
14,157 24,596 13,237 34,979
$ 203,305 $ 274526 $ 202,857 $ 244,436

Long-Term Debt

The Mortgage and Deed of Trust (Mortgage) imposes a
first mortgage lien on all physical properties owned, exclu-
sive of subsidiary company assets and certain property and
assets specifically excepted by our discontinued utility oper-
ations. The obligations collateralized are First Mortgage
Bonds, including those First Mortgage Bonds designated as
Secured Medium-Term Notes (MTNs) and those securing
Pollution Control Revenue Bonds.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, MPC had long-term
debt of $458,741 and $377,178 respectively.

Derivative Financial instruments

Effective January 1, 2001, MPC adopted SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activi-
ties,” as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain
Derivative Transactions and Hedging Activities.” These pro-
nouncements expand the definition of a derivative and
require that all derivative instruments be recorded as assets
or liabilities on an entity’s balance sheet at fair value.
Accounting for gains and losses resulting from changes in
the fair value of those derivatives is dependent on the use of
the derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting.

At January 1, 2001, MPC had derivative financial agree-
ments called “price swaps” that hedged its exposure to
variability in expected cash flows attributable to the com-
modity price risks of a long-term power supply agreement
and a natural gas sales agreement. In accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 133, MPC marked to market at Janu-
ary 1, 2001 its price swaps hedging these forecasted elec-
tric energy and natural gas sales, with a corresponding
‘credit entry to “Other comprehensive income” for approxi-
mately $11,300,000 after income taxes. That entry repre-

sented MPC’s cumulative transition adjustment in adopting
SFAS No. 133.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the hedged
electric energy sales resulted in an after-tax loss of
$25,300,000, and the price swaps hedging those sales in an
after-tax gain of approximately $7,200,000. Upon realizing
the electric energy sales and settling the price swaps, MPC
reclassified $7,200,000 of the January 2001 estimate from
other comprehensive income to net income in 2001. For the
same year, the hedged natural gas sales resulted in an after-
tax gain of approximately $2,500,000, and the price swap
hedging those sales in an after-tax loss of approximately
$1,400,000. MPC reclassified $1,400,000 of the January
2001 estimate from other comprehensive income to a regu-
latory liability, in accordance with SFAS No. 71, “Accounting
for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,” because it
will include the $1,100,000 net profit from these transac-
tions in a future natural gas rate case. This future natural gas
rate case will determine the method of recognizing the
deferred net profit.

Both the electric energy and natural gas price swaps
effectively hedged the related sales, because the price
swaps and related sales were based on the same market
indices and other primary characteristics. The $2,700,000
difference between the January 2001 $11,300,000 esti-
mated credit to other comprehensive income and the
$8,600,000 realized from the swaps was charged to other
comprehensive income and a corresponding credit was
made to receivable accounts.

At December 31, 2001, MPC had no financial derivative
instruments ocutstanding.
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QUARTERLY FINANGCIAL DATA
Operating revenues, operating income (loss), and net income (loss) from continuing operations; net income (loss) from dis-
continued operations; and basic and diluted consolidated net income (loss) per common share for the four quarters of 2001
and 2000 are shown in the tables below.
For additional information on the sales of the energy businesses and application of discontinued operations accounting for
the former utility operations, Continental Energy, coal operations and former oil and natural gas operations, see Note 2, “Deci-
sion to Sell Energy Businesses,” and the “Results of Operations” section of MD&A.

Quartsr Ended
Bec. 31, Sept. 30, June 33, fiarch 31,
2001 260 2001 2001

{Thousands of Dollars}
(except per-share amounts)

Continuing operating revenues . ... ove i $ 118,078 $ 145,478 $ 141,936 $ 144,440
Continuing operatingincome {loss) . . ... ........ .o (15,402) 4,571) 4,088 11,974
Continuing netincome (loss) ... ... {13,590) (14,821) (108} 4,902
Discontinued net income (loss)f" ... ... .. ... .. .. ... ..., $ 440 $ (12,674) $ (11,786) $ 55260
Consolidated net income (loss) available for common stock ... ... $  (9,149) $ (27,495) $ (11,804) $ 60,162
Basic earnings (loss) per share of commonstock . ............. $  (0.09 $ 027 $ (0 $ 0.58
Diluted earnings ({loss) per share of common stock . ........... $  {0.09) $ 027 § (011 $ 058

" Discontinued net income (loss) includes income (loss) from discontinued operations and gain (loss} on sales of
discontinued operations.

Quarter Ended
Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 38, RMarch 31,
2000 20090 2000 2000

{Thousands of Dollars)
(except per-share amounts)

Continuing operating revenues . . . ... $ 146,512 $ 123,273 $ 28,883 $ 24,659
Continuing operatingincome ........... ... ... 9,844 21,082 2,399 3,017
Continuing Net iNCOMe . ... .. o 5,067 10,661 663 2,250
Discontinued netincome™ ... ... ... .. . . $ 94,518 $ 19,704 $ 34,832 $ 28,106
Consolidated net income available for common stock .......... $ 99,585 $ 30,365 $ 35,495 $ 30,356
Basic earnings per share of common stock ........... ... .... $ 0.95 $ 0.29 $ 033 $ 029

Diluted earnings per share of common stock ................. $ 095 $ 029 $ 032 $ 028

™ Discontinued net income includes income from discontinued operations and gain on sale of discontinued operations.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND
DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
PART 0]
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF
THE REGISTRANT

DIRECTORS CF THE REGISTRANT

Tabie

The following table shows our current Board of
Directors, who were elected by our sole Stock-
holder for staggered terms effective February 13,
2002, their ages at December 31, 2001, and the year
they were elected. We expect the first class of direc-
tors listed helow, those whose terms expire in 2002,
to be elected to three-year terms at our annual
meeting. The annual meeting of our shareholders is
scheduled for September 24, 2002 in Minneapolis,
Minnesota. A brief description of the directors’
recent business experience is also included.

Name

Age at
December 31,
2001

Position/Business
Experience

Terms Expiring in 2002

Thomas Ashburn

58 Director since February 13,
2002. Mr. Ashburn is a resident
of Los Gatos, California, and is
President of Worldwide
Services for BEA Systems, Inc.,
a software applications
company in San Jose, California.

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from July 2001 to February
2002; Vice President and
General Manager of Hewlett-
Packard Services, a business-
transforming solutions and
services company from October
1998 until his retirement in
March 2001; and Hewlett-
Packard Services’ General
Manager, Customer Support
Business from August 1992 to
October 1998.
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Name

Age at
December
2001

3%, Position/Business

Experience

R. D. Corette

Kay Foster

61

60

Terms Expiring in 2003

Carl Lehrkind 11

63

Director since February 13,
2002. Mr. Corette is a resident
of Butte, Montana, and has
been an attorney, owner, and
employee for Corette, Pohlman
& Kebe, a law firm in Butte,
Montana, since 1966.

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from July 1990 to February
2002.

Director since February 13,
2002. Ms. Foster is a resident
of Billings, Montana, and has
been President of Planteriors
Unlimited, Inc., an interior
foliage plant sales and
maintenance business in Billings
and Missoula, Montana since
April 1999; and has owned this
business since December 1980.

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from January 1992 to February
2002.

Director since February 13,
2002. Mr. Lehrkind is a resident
of Bozeman, Montana; and has
been President of Lehrkind's,
Inc., a beverage bottler and
distributor in Bozeman,
Montana, since February 1970;
and President, Owner and
Operator of Yellowstone
Country Food and Beverage
restaurants in Livingston,
Montana and Miles City,
Montana since February 1993.

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from July 1984 to February
2002.
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Age at

December 37, Position/Business

Name

2001

Experience

Age at

December 31, Position/Business

Name

2001 Experience

Terms Expiring in 2003

John R. Jester

Deborah D.
McWhinney

Noble E. Voshurg

60
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60

Director since February 13,
2002. Mr. Jester is a resident of
Gig Harbor, Washington, and
has been President of Bargain
Street L.L.C., a retail firm, since
September 1997.

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from September 1995 to
February 2002; and President of
Muzak Limited Partnership, a
telecommunications-based
business, from January 1988 to
May 1997.

Director since February 13, 2002. '

Ms. McWhinney is a resident of
San Francisco, California, and
has been President, Services for
Investment Managers, for
Schwab, Inc., a provider of
financial services, since
February 2001.

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from August 1999 to February
2002; President of Internet
Profiles Corporation (I/PRO), a
provider of Web traffic
measurement, auditing, and
research from July 1999 to
January 2001; Executive Vice
President from May 1997 to
July 1999; and Senior Vice
President from 1995 to 1997 for
VISA International.

Other Directorships: Director,
Novadigm, Inc.

Director since February 13,
2002. Mr. Vosburg is a resident
of Great Falls, Montana, and has
been President and Chief
Executive Officer of Pacific
Steel & Recycling, a steel
service center and recycling
business in Great Falls,
Montana, since May 1982.

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from October 1988 to February
2002.
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Terms Expiring in 2004

Tucker Hart Adams

Alan F. Cain

63 Director since February 13,
2002. Dr. Adams is a resident of
Colorado Springs, Colorado, and
has been President and Chief
Executive Officer of The Adams
Group Inc., a consulting firm
specializing in economic
research, analysis, and
forecasting, since January 1989;
and publishes the newsletter,
“Today's Economy.”

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from September 1995 to
February 2002.

Other Directorships: Trustee,
Tax Free Fund of Colorado;,
Trustee, Aquila Rocky Mountain
Equity Fund; and Avista Labs.

62 Director since February 13,
2002. Mr. Cain is a resident of
Bigfork, Montana.

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from March 1989 to February
2002; and President and Chief
Executive Officer of BlueCross
BlueShield of Montana, a health
service corporation, in Helena,
Montana, from March 1986 until
his retirement in September
1999,
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Age at
December 31, Position/Business
Name 2001 Experience

Terms Expiring in 2004

Jerrold P. Pederson

Robert P. Gannon

58

57

Director since September 2000.
Mr. Pederson is a resident of
Butte, Montana, and has been
Vice Chairman of the Board
since February 2002, and Chief
Financial Officer since
September 2000.

Recent Positions: Vice President
for Touch America Holdings, Inc.
from September 2000 to
February 2002; Treasurer from
September 2000 to April 2001;
Director for The Montana Power
Company from July 1993 to
February 2002, Vice Chairman of
the Board from March 2000 to
February 2002; Chief Financial
Officer from May 1991 to
February 2002; Vice President
from May 1991 to March 2000;
and Chief information Officer
from May 1996 to May 1999 for
The Montana Power Company.

Director since September 2000.
Mr. Gannon is a resident of
Butte, Montana, and has been
Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive
Officer since September 2000.

Recent Positions: Director of
The Montana Power Company
from July 1990 to February
2002; Chairman of the Board of
Directors from January 1398 to
February 2002; Chief Executive
Officer from July 1997 to
February 2002; President from
1990 to February 2002; and Vice
Chairman of the Board of
Directors from January 1936 to
December 1997 for The
Montana Power Company.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Table

The following table shows our current Executive
Officers, who are elected or appointed annually by
the Board of Directors, their ages at December 31,
2001, and their areas of responsibility. A brief
description of their business experience during the
past five years is also included.

Name

Position/Business

Age Experience

R. P. Gannon

J. P. Pederson 59

83

57 Chairman of the Board,
President, and Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Gannon was elected
to the Board of Directors in '
September 2000; elected
Chairman of the Board of
Directors in September 2000;
and has served as Chief
Executive Officer since
September 2000. For The
Montana Power Company, he
served as a Director from July
1990 to February 2002;
Chairman of the Board of
Directors from January 1998 to
February 2002; Chief Executive
Officer from July 1997 to
February 2002, President from
1990 to February 2002; and Vice
Chairman of the Board of
Directors from January 1996 to
December 1997.

Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. Pederson was
elected to the Board of
Directors in September 2000;
Vice Chairman of the Board in
February 2002; and has been
Chief Financial Officer since
September 2000. He served as
Vice President from September
2000 to February 2002;
Treasurer from September 2000
to April 2001 for Touch America
Holdings, Inc. For The Montana
Power Company, he served as a
Director from July 1993 to
February 2002; Vice Chairman of
the Board from March 2000 to
February 2002; Chief Financial
Officer from May 1991 to
February 2002; Vice President
“from May 1981 to March 2000,
and Chief Information Officer
from May 1996 to May 1998.
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Name

Age

Position/Business
Experience

M. J. Meldahl

M. E. Zimmerman

P. T. Fleming

P. J. Cole

52

53

48

44

President and Chief Operating
Officer. Mr. Meldahl has held his
present position since April
2001. He served as the
Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer,
Technology Division from 1998
to 2002; Vice President,
Communication Services,
Energy and Communications
Division, from 1996 to 1998 for
The Montana Power Company;
and Vice President, Technology
Operations for Entech, from
1997 to 1999.

Vice President, Corporate
Development, since February
2002; Vice President and
General Counsel from
September 2000 to April 2001.
He was Vice President and
General Counsel for The
Montana Power Company from
1991 to February 2002.

Vice President, General Counse!
and Corporate Secretary. Mr.
Fleming has held his present
position since June 2000. For
The Montana Power Company,
he was an attorney from 1984
to February 2002 and Corporate
Secretary from December 2000
to February 2002.

Senior Vice President, Revenue.
Mr. Cole has held his present
position since April 2001, Mr.
Cole has indicated his intention
to resign. The effective date of
Mr. Cole's resignation has not
yet been determined. For The
Montana Power Company he
was Vice President, Corporate
Business Development, from
March 1999 to February 2002
and Vice President, Business
Development and Regulatory
Affairs from May 1996 to March
1999.
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SECTION 16{a) BENEFICIAL QWNERSHIP
REPORTING COMPLIANGCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
requires our Directors, certain officers, and shareholders
owning more than 10 percent of a class of shares to file
reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the New York
Stock Exchange and to furnish us with copies of all reports
filed. These reports must be filed by the tenth day of the
month following the month in which a transaction occurred.
Based solely on review of reports furnished to us and writ-
ten representations from our Directors and officers, we
believe that during 2001 all Directors and officers complied
with the reporting requirements except for one late report
filed by each of Mr. R.P. Gannon and Mr. J.D. Haffey.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

2007 Form 10-X

Table | The following table shows the compensation paid to the Chief Executive Officer, the next four most highly compen-
sated employees, and for an additional individual, Mr. Haffey, for whom compensation would have been reported
pursuant to ltem 402(a){3}(iii) for services rendered during fiscal years 2001, 2000, and 1999 even though Mr. Haffey
was no longer serving as an executive officer as of February 15, 2002. We refer to each of these officers as a
“named executive officer.”

Annual Leng-Term Compensation
Compensation Awards Payouts
All
Restricted Securities Other
Name and Stock Underlying LT Compen-
Principal Salary Bonus Award Options Payouts® sation”
Position Year ($) ($) ($) (#) ($) ($)

R.PGannon .............. 2001 500,000 100,682 _ - - 18,819

CEO & Chairman of 2000 483,654 272,142 - 191,100 - 6,800

the Board 1999 408,600 263,671° - 214,800 126,000 15,054

M.J. Meldahl ............. 2001 275,000 246,863% - - - 7,671

President & 2000 244,271 177,645 438,750 114,300 - 20,021

Chief Operating Officer 1999 194,616 177,165% - 130,300 - 27,585

J.PPederson ........ .. ... 2001 250,000 34,3750 - - - 6,154

Vice Chairman of the Board & 2000 234,736 117,398% - 103,600 - 28,435

Chief Financial Officer 1999 200,022 112,9169 - 144,000 60,000 6,400

M. E. Zimmerman .......... 2001 182,231 26,013% - - - 6,800

Vice President - 2000 181,230 53,9887 - 24,000 - 15,561

Corporate Development 1999. 171,436 60,791% - 24,000 45,000 9,736

PJCde ................ 2001 175,000 74,7249 - - - 13,798

Senior Vice President - 2000 167,262 77,3247 - 66,900 - 12,858

Revenue 1999 146,632 50,138° - 76,300 45,000 18,333

J.D. Haffey............... 2001 210,472 80,523¢ - - - 28,376

Executive VP & COQ, 2000 206,340 109,424 - 42,000 - 30,740

Energy Services Division 1999 195,190 115,356 - 42,000 84,000 25,400

@ Bonuses earned in 2000 and paid in 2001;
@ Awards earned in 1999 and paid in 2000 under the EVA® Bonus Plan;
®  Awards earned in 1998 and paid in 1999 under the EVA® Bonus Plan;
“  Awards earned in 2000 and paid in 2001 under the EVA® Bonus Plan;
® Mr. Meldahl's award of restricted stock was subject to forfeiture or proration in the event he should terminate
employment with the Company. The restrictions on 4,000 shares were removed on May 11, 2000, 4,000 shares on
May 11, 2001, and the remaining 4,000 shares on February 15, 2002. The market price on the date of grant was

$36.5625 per share;

® This column shows the dividend equivalent awards on options that were awarded in 1996 and 1995 and paid in 1999; and

@ This column shows:

®  The value of matching contributions of stock made by MPC and us under the MPC Savings Plan and the Touch

America Savings Plan; and

®  Compensation received for selling unused vacation time, which is available to all employees;
in 2001: Mr. Gannon — $12,019; Mr. Meldahl - $2,248; Mr. Cole — $8,413; Mr. Haffey — $21,576;
In 2000: Mr. Meldaht - $13,221; Mr. Pederson — $21,635; Mr. Zimmerman — $8,762; Mr. Cole - $8,654;

Mr. Haffey — $23,940; and

In 1999: Mr. Gannon — $8,654; Mr. Meldah! ~ $21,185; Mr. Zimmerman - $3,378; Mr. Cole - $12,555;
Mr. Haffey - $19,000.
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OPTION GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR
No options were granted to the named executive officers in 2001.

ACGREGATED CPTION EXERCISES IN 2007 AND FISCAL YEAR-END OPTION VALUES

Teblz | The following table provides information with respect to the named executive officers, concerning exercise of stock
options at fiscal year-end.

Value
Realized
{Aggregate
Market Price
at Enercise Number of Securities
Shares Less Underlying Unexercised Value of Unexercised
Acquired Aggregate Options at Fiscal In-the-Money-Options at
on Exercise Year-End Fiscal Year-End ($5.75)?
Exercise Price) (#) ($)
Name &) ($) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
R.P.Gannon ........ 4,284 28,007 261,150 228,750 - -
M. J. Meldahi ....... - -~ 114,150 154,450 - -
J.P Pederson.... ... - - 195,300 136,700 - - ‘
J.D.Haffey ........ ) - - 103,334 42,000 - - |
PJCole .......... - - 91,796 81,950 - -
M. E. Zimmerman . . . . - - 79,762 24,000 - -

™ Based on the closing price of MPC Common Stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite
Transaction Tape on the date of exercise.

@ Based on the closing price of MPC Common Stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite
Transaction Tape on December 31, 2001,

PENSION PLAN PLUS BENEFIT RESTORATION

The table below illustrates the estimated annual benefits payable to officers under the MPC Pension Plan, a qualified
defined benefit plan, and under the MPC Benefit Restoration Plan for Senior Management Executives {BRP), a non-qualified
defined benefit plan in effect on December 31, 2001. The estimated annual benefits displayed become payable upon normal
retirement at age 65 on January 1, 2002. These benefits will be reduced if the officer retires before reaching age 65. The
amounts presented assume the officer elects a single life annuity benefit payment.

Table Pension Plan Plus Benefit Restoration

Years of Service

Remuneration - 15 20 25 30 35
$ 150,000 $ 84,942 $ 95724 $ 106,589 $ 117,584 $ 128,982
$ 175,000 $ 100,378 $ 113,108 $ 125,900 $ 138,824 $ 152,209
$ 200,000 $113,814 $ 128,492 $ 143,210 $ 158,063 $ 173,436
$ 225,000 $ 129,250 $ 145,875 $ 162,521 $ 179,302 $ 196,662
$ 250,000 $ 142,686 $ 161,259 $ 179,831 $ 198,542 $ 217,888
$ 275,000 $ 158,122 $ 178,643 $199,142 $ 219,781 $ 241,115
$ 300,000 $ 171,658 $ 194,026 $ 216,463 $ 239,021 $ 262,342
$ 325,000 $ 186,994 $211,410 $ 235,763 $ 260,260 $ 285,568
$ 350,000 $ 202,429 $ 228,794 $ 255,073 $ 281,499 $ 308,795
$ 375,000 $ 215,865 $ 244178 $272,384 $ 300,739 $ 330,022
$ 400,000 $ 231,301 $ 262,561 $ 291,695 $ 321,978 $ 353,248
$ 425,000 $ 244,737 $ 276,945 $ 309,005 $ 341,218 $ 374,475
$ 450,000 $ 260,173 $ 294,328 $ 328,316 $ 362,457 $ 397,701
$ 475,000 $ 275,609 $ 311,712 $ 347,626 $ 383,697 $ 420,928
$ 500,000 $ 289,045 $ 327,096 $ 364,937 $ 402,936 $ 442,155
$ 550,000 $ 299,916 $ 341,856 $ 383,556 $ 425,412 $ 468,612

$ 600,000 $ 310,788 $ 356,628 $402,180 §$ 447,888 $ 495,060
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DOMPC QUALIFIED PENSION PLAN

Benefits provided by the MPC Pension Plan are deter-
mined by using a cash balance formula.

MPC's Plan cash balance method of benefit accrual
establishes a notional account for eligible participants. This
account is credited each year with the following Company
contributions:

o A fixed interest credit of 6 percent of the beginning
balance in the participant's account; plus

e A basic credit of 3 percent to 12 percent of the
participant’s eligible earnings for the year (eligible
earnings include base pay plus commissions not to
exceed 100 percent of base pay); and

e An additional credit of 1.5 percent to 6 percent of the
participant’s eligible earnings that are in excess of 50
percent of the current year's Social Security Wage
Base.

The above additional credits are predicated upon the
number of “points” a participant has at the beginning of the
year. Points are determined by adding a participant's age
and years of service. When an eligible participant elects to
- commence benefit payments, the participant’s accrued cash
balance account is converted to a monthly annuity payment.

The above table includes pension benefits that have
been calculated using the cash balance formula.

As of March 1, 2002, credited years of service and age
under the MPC Pension Plan for our top five executive offi-
cers are as follows: 28 years for Mr. Gannon, age 57, 20
years for Mr. Meldahl,-age 52; 36 years for Mr. Pederson,
age 59; 29 years for Mr. Haffey, age 56; 21 years for Mr.
Zimmerman, age 53; and 21 years for Mr. Cole, age 44.

Effective with the sale of MPLLC to NorthWestern,
employees of Touch America were no longer eligible to par-
ticipate in the MPC Pension Plan. Touch America does not
sponsor a defined benefit pension plan. As a result, partici-
pants in the MPC Pension Plan employed by Touch America
as of the closing date, including the named executive offi-
cers, received in March 2002, the accrued value of their
benefit under the Plan in a single lump-sum distribution or
an annuity purchased by the Plan.

U NCN-QUALIFIED PENSION PLAN FOR SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
The named executive officers, other than Mr. Meldahl
and certain other key employees, also participate in a BRP
maintained by MPC. Mr. Meldahl participates in a similar
BRP maintained by Entech. The BRP provides monthly ben-
_efit payments upon retirement to the participant over the
participant’s lifetime. In the event of the participant’s death,
the participant’s beneficiary receives a benefit for the
remainder of a 15-year period commencing on the date of
the participant’s retirement. This benefit is in addition to the
MPC Pension Plan benefit.
Life insurance carried on the BRP participants is owned
by a rabbi trust and helps fund the BRP. Participants in the
BRP contributed toward the funding of the BRP. All death
proceeds under the life insurance policies are specifically

directed to the BRP trust for the sole purpose of paying for
BRP benefits.

MPC's Board of Directors approved the curtailment of
the BRP effective December 31, 1998. All active partici-
pants, including the named executive officers, became
vested in the BRP immediately upon curtailment, and the
BRP was closed to additional participants. Existing BRP par-
ticipants are entitled to receive the benefit accrued as of the
date of curtailment with no further benefit accrual.

Benefit determination under the curtailed BRP includes a
“"make-up” amount equal to any decrease in the executive's
MPC Pension Plan benefit as a result of limitations imposed
on the Pension Plan by Sections 415 and 401(a){17) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The statutory
limitation “make-up” will be based on the officer’s actual
compensation and years of service at retirement.

The above pension benefit table includes accrued bene-
fits under the BRP as of the date of curtaiiment, as well as
benefits that have been calculated to represent the statutory
“make-up” amount for decreases in the executive's benefit
under the MPC Pension Plan.

Upon the sale of MPLLC to NorthWestern, the named
executive officers whom are no longer officers of MPC and
its affiliates, Messrs. Cole, Gannon, Meldahl, Pederson and
Zimmerman, are eligible to receive benefits under the BRP
when they meet the applicable age requirement.

COMIPENSATION QF DIRECTORS
In 2001, compensation for Non-employee Directors
included the following:

e An annual retainer of $35,000; and

e Non-employee Directors who chair the Personnel
Committee, the Committee on Directors’ Affairs, and
the Audit Committee receive $5,000 of additional
annual compensation.

Non-employee Directors also receive $850 for attending
each special meeting of the Board held in addition to the
regularly scheduled Board meetings. Two special meetings
of the Board were held in 2001.

On January 23, 2001, MPC'’s Board of Directors termi-
nated the Non-employee Directors’ Deferred Compensation
Plan that permitted deferral of annual retainer fees until the
Director retired from the Board. Continuing obligations
under this plan have been transferred to Touch America
Holdings, Inc. Deferred compensation under the plan earns
interest at the rate based on Moody's Average Baa Corpo-
rate Bond rates.

On January 23, 2001, MPC's Board of Directors termi-
nated the Non-employee Director Stock Compensation Plan
that provided for an annual grant of common stock to each
Director and also permitted Directors to receive any portion
of their annual retainer fee in MPC common stock. This plan
also provided for the Directors to defer receipt of the stock
payment until they ceased to be a Director of MPC or until
such other date as the Director elected. The deferred stock
payments have been credited as stock units to a separate
deferred compensation account. Touch America Holdings,
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Inc. has assumed continuing obligations under the plan. At

the end of the deferral period, Directors will be paid for the
stock units in the Company’s common stock or the equiva-

lent value in cash based upon the market value of the Com-
pany's common stock at that time.

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT AND CHANGE
OF CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS

MPC entered into individual severance benefit agree-
ments with thirty-three employees to provide benefits after
a change of corporate control, if their employment is subse-
quently terminated by MPC or its successor, without
“cause,” as defined in the agreements, or by the employ-
ees with “good reason,” as defined in the agreements.

Three different tiers of these agreements were in effect
on December 31, 2001. The agreements provided that, if
within three years after the occurrence of a change of con-
trol, the employee is terminated by MPC without cause, or
the employee terminates employment for “good reason,”
the employee is entitled to the following:

o 299.9 percent for a Tier 1 participant, 200 percent for a
Tier 2 participant, and 100 percent for a Tier 3
participant, of the sum of the highest annual rate of
base salary paid to the employee during the three-year
period immediately preceding the change of control
and the highest annual bonus paid to such individual
during such three-year period;

o 200 percent of the annual contribution to the
employee’s cash balance pension plan;

o The present value of the cost to provide welfare
benefits under our Company's life insurance, health, .
dental, disability, and other welfare plans for a period
of three years following termination; and

o A prorated portion of the target annual bonus in the
year in which the change of control occurred.

The definition of “good reason” in these agreements
includes any reduction in the named executive officer’s job
responsibilities, salary or benefits as well as the ability of the
named executive officer to terminate employment for any
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reason during the thirteenth month after the change of con-
trol. In addition, if any amounts paid to a Tier 1 participant
under his or her agreement, or otherwise in connection with
his or her termination, are subject to the excise tax imposed
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in
connection with a change of control, an additional amount
called a Gross-Up Payment equal to the amount of any such
excise taxes and any state or federal taxes on the Gross-Up
Payment shall be paid.

The Tier 2 and Tier 3 agreements address the situation in
which the amounts paid under his or her agreement, or oth-
erwise in connection with his or her termination, would be
subject to the excise tax imposed under the Internal Rev-
enue Code of 1986, as amended, in connection with the
change of control. If such payments or benefits less such
excise tax are less than the maximum amount of the pay-
ments or benefits which could otherwise be payable to the
individual without the imposition of the excise tax, then to
the extent necessary to eliminate the imposition of the
excise tax (a) such cash payment and benefits shall first be
reduced, if necessary, to zero and (b) all other non-cash pay-
ments and benefits shall not be reduced.

MPC had entered into Tier 1 agreements with each of
the named executive officers, Messrs. Cole, Gannon, Haf-
fey, Meldahl, Pederson, and Zimmerman.

The Company has now assumed the obligations of MPC
under these individual change of control severance agree-
ments for the named executive officers, other than Mr. Haf-
fey. The sale of MPLLC to NorthWestern constituted a
change of control for purposes of these named executive
officers’ agreements, but the transfer of a named executive
officer from MPC to Touch America did not constitute a ter-
mination of that named executive officer's employment for
purposes of these agreements. However, the payments
described above will be owed to each named executive offi-
cer that is employed by Touch America, if his employment is
subsequently terminated within 36 months of the change of
control, by Touch America without “cause” as defined in
such agreements or by the individual named executive offi-
cer with “good reason” as defined in such agreements.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL CWNERS
AND MANAGEMENT

{a) 5 PERCENT BENEFICIAL OWNERS

Table | The following table provides, as of February 15, 2002, information with respect to persons who are known to us to
beneficially own more than 5 percent of our $6.875 series preferred stock.

Name and Address of Amount and Nature Percent of
Beneficial Owner of Ownership Class
John Hancock Advisers, LLC™ 165,278 shares of $6.875 Series™ 28.5%
John Hancock Place

P O Box 111

Boston, MA 02117

@ John Hancock Advisers, LLC {JHA) has direct beneficial ownership of Preferred Stock ($6.875 Series). Through their
parent-subsidiary relationship to JHA, John Hancock Financial Services, Inc., John Hancock Life insurance Company,
John Hancock Subsidiaries, LLC, and The Berkeley Financial Group, LLC have indirect beneficial ownership of these

. same shares. ’

The Schedule 13G report filed on February 14, 2002 states that the securities were acquired in the ordinary course of busi-
ness and were not for the purpose of having an effect on changing or influencing the control of Touch America Holdings, Inc.
and were not acquired in connection with, or as a participant in, any transaction having such purpose or effect.

(b) DIRECTORS" AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ STOCK OWNERSHIP

Table | The following table shows the number of shares owned on March 22, 2002, by each of the directors and named
executive officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table and by all of the directors and executive officers as a

group.

Number of Shares Beneficially Owned
Name of Owner ‘ Commen Preferred % of Class
Tucker Hart Adams 4,723 - *
Thomas Ashburn . ... ... . - -
Alan F. Cain®® e 7,717 - *
Perry J. Cole®™® .. . . 146,984 - *
R. D, Corette . 14,369 - *
Kay Foster®m | 12,348 - *
Robert P. Gannon® e 454,884 - *
Jack D. Haffey®® | 112,665 - *
John R. Jester” ... .. 11,985 - *
Carl Lehrkind, H1® e 18,321 - *
Michael J. Meldahl®® . 230,832 - *
Deborah D. McWhinney™ . ... ... e 6,025 - *
Jerrold P. Pederson®® 304,187 - *
Noble E. Vosburg®™ . . . .. . . 10,222 - *
Michael E. Zimmerman®® . . . 117,944 - *
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (16 in Number)™ .. ... .. .. 1,362,628 - 1.313

* Less than one percent of each class of Common and Preferred.

® Includes 96 shares held by Dr. Adams’ spouse.

@ Includes 27 shares owned by Mr. Cain's spouse of which Mr. Cain disclaims beneficial ownership.
® Includes 324 shares held by Ms. Foster's spouse.

“ Includes 38,339 shares held by Mr. Gannon's spouse, 75 shares held by Mr. Gannon’s son, and 125 shares held by Mr.
Gannon's daughter, for all of which Mr. Gannon disclaims beneficial ownership.
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Includes 2,200 shares held by the Trustee for Lehrkind’s, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan #2 of which Mr. Lehrkind is a
beneficiary and with respect to which he has shared voting and investment power; and 9,129 shares held by
Lehrkind’s, Inc., with respect to which he has shared voting and investment power.

Includes 268 shares held by Mr. Vosburg's spouse of which Mr. Vosburg disclaims beneficial ownership.

Includes deferred stock units held in the Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Compensation Plan:

Dr. Adams - 4,541,

Mr. Cain - 5,742;

Mr. Corette - 5,643;

Ms. Foster - 5,182;

Mr. Jester - 8,985;

Ms. McWhinney - 960; and

Mr. Vosburg - 5,205.

The holders of these units have no voting or investment power.

Includes shares in the Touch America Savings Plan for the executive officers and directors, except Mr. Haffey, whose
shares are in the MPC Savings Plan, attributable to the employer and employee contributions as follows:
Mr. Gannon - 18,988;

Mr. Meldah! - 10,394;

Mr. Pederson - 18,187,

Mr. Zimmerman - 8,491;

Mr. Cole ~ 9,106; and

Mr. Haffey — 16,139 shares.

Includes option shares exercisable within 60 days:
Mr. Gannon - 328,800;

Mr. Meldah! - 204,300;

Mr. Pederson - 278,400,

Mr. Zimmerman - 103,762,

Mr. Cole - 130,846; and

Mr. Haffey — 84,000.

Includes 70,309 shares held in the Touch America Savings Plan for the executive officers and directors, except Mr.
Haffey, whose shares are in the MPC Savings Plan, and 1,116,251 option shares exercisable within 60 days.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

None.

PART IV

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS

ON FORM 8-K

Please refer to Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” for a complete listing of all consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedules.
We filed the following reports on Form 8-K:

Bate Subject

November 18, 2001 item 5. Other Events. To update and amend the Report of Independent Accountants, Consoli-

dated Financial Statements, and related Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations (2000 MD&A) contained in MPC's 2000 Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2000 (2000 Form 10-K).

December 18, 2001 ltem 5. Other Events. Excerpts from Press Release dated December 14, 2001, "Touch America

Receives Waiver for Credit Facility Compliance.”
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ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS

{c)
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4())
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4
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10(a)i)

10(a)ii)
10(aliii}

10fal(iv)

10(a) (v}

10(@)tvi)

ON FORM 8-K (continued)

Exhibits

Certificate of Incorporation of Touch America Holdings, Inc.,
dated September 27, 2000

By-laws of Touch America Holdings, Inc. dated September 28, 2000

Mortgage and Deed of Trust

First Supplemental Indenture
Second Supplemental Indenture
Third Supplemental Indenture
Fourth Supplemental Indenture
Fifth Supplemental Indenture

Sixth Supplemental Indenture
Seventh Supplermental Indenture
Eighth Supplemental Indenture
Ninth Supplemental Indenture
Tenth Supplemental Indenture
Eleventh Supplemental Indenture
Twelfth Supplemental Indenture
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture
Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture
Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture
Seventeenth Supplemental Indenture
Eighteenth Supplemental Indenture
Nineteenth Supplemental Indenture

Benefit Restoration Plan for Senior Management
Executives and Board of Directors

Deferred Compensation Pian for Non-Employee Directors
Long-Term Incentive Stock Ownership Plan

Asset Purchase Agreement

Colstrip Unit #3 Wholesale Transmission Service Agreement
(Exhibit F-1 to the Asset Purchase Agreement)

Non-Colstrip Unit #3 Wholesale Transmission Service Agreement
(Exhibit F-2 to the Asset Purchase Agreement)
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Generation Interconnection Agreement
(Exhibit G to the Asset Purchase Agreement)

Equity Contribution Agreement

Amendment No. 1 to the Asset Purchase Agreement

Amendment No. 2 to the Asset Purchase Agreement

Unit Purchase Agreement dated September 29, 2000, by and among
Touch America Holdings, Inc., The Montana Power Company
and NorthWestern Corporation.

Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement (relating to the divestiture of MPC's
oil and natural gas businesses) dated as of August 25, 2000 among

Entech, Inc., a Montana corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Registrant; Altana Exploration Company, a Montana corporation and a wholly
owned subsidiary of Entech, PanCanadian Petroleum Limited, a Canadian
corporation; and PanCanadian Energy, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a
wholly owned subsidiary of PanCanadian Pstroleum.

Stock and Asset Purchase (relating to the divestiture of MPC's coal
operations) dated as of September 15, 2000 between Entech, Inc.,

a Montana corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Registrant;
and Westmoreland Coal Company, a Delaware corporation.

Stock and Asset Purchase (relating to the divestiture of Continental Energy)
dated as of September 19, 2000 between Entech, Inc., a Montana
corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Registrant; and

BBI Power Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

Unit Purchase Agreement (relating to the divestiture of MPC's

electric and natural gas utility operations) dated as of

September 29, 2000 among the Registrant, a Montana corporation;
Touch America Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation and an affiliate

of the Registrant; and NorthWestern Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 20, 2001, by
and among Touch America Holdings, Inc., The Montana Power, L.L.C.,
and The Montana Power Company.

Participation Agreements among United States Trust Company of New York,
Burnham Leasing Corporation, and SGE (New York) Associates,

Certain Institutions, The Montana Power Company and Bankers Trust
Company.
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63




2007 Form 10- | Touch America Holdings, Inc.

TOUCH AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Column A Column Cofumn C Column B Column E
Additions

Balance &t Charged to Charged to Balance

beginning costs and otfier at close

Description of peried EXPERSES accounts Deductions of peried

(Thousands of Dollars)

Year Ended:
December 31, 2001
Doubtful accounts and sales credits
Telecommunications . ............. - $10,292 $ 35,913 $ 16,691 $ 40,823 $ 21,973
Utility operations . ................ 1,164 113 32 85 1,224
Total ..................... $ 11,456 $ 36,026 $ 16,623 $40,908 $ 23,197
December 31, 2000
Doubtful accounts and sales credits
Telecommunications . ............. $ 743 $ 9245 $ 3219 $ 2915 $ 10,292
Utility operations . ................ 1,362 261 - 459 1,164
Total ............... ... ... $ 2,105 $§ 9506 § 3219 $ 3374 - $ 11,466

December 31, 1889
Doubtful accounts and sales credits

Telecommunicatjons .............. $ 565 $ 133 $ - $ (45) $ 743
Utility operations ................. 1,341 2,064 {10) 2,033 1,362
Total .......... ... .. ... ... $ 1,906 $ 2197 3 (10) $ 1,988 $ 2105
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TOUCH AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC.
(Registrant)

Dated: March 26, 2002

By /s/ Robert P._Gannon

Robert P. Gannon

(Chairman of the Board)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

Title

Date

/3/ Robert P. Gannon

Robert P. Gannon
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ J. P. Pederson

J. P. Pederson
Vice Chairman and Chief
Financial Officer

/s/ Tucker Hart Adams

Tucker Hart Adams

/s/ T. Ashburn

T. Ashburn

/s/ Alan F. Cain

Alan F Cain

/s/ R. D. Corette

R. D. Corette

/s/ Kay Foster

Kay Foster

/s/ John R. Jester

John R. Jester

/sf Carl Lehrkind I

Carl Lehrkind 11l

/s/ Deborah D. McWhinney

Deborah D. McWhinney

/s/ N. E. Vosburg

N. E. Vosburg

Principal Executive
Officer and Director

Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer and

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002
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DIVIDEND PAVIVIERTTS

Dividends on $6.875 preferred stock are expected to be paid
quarterly. To avoid delayed or lost mail, and to reduce costs,
we encourage you to request direct deposit of dividend pay-
ments to your bank account. To enroll in the Direct Deposit
Plan, telephone the Company’s Corporate & Shareholder
Services Department at (800) 245-6767.

O $6.875 preferred dividend payment dates tentatively
scheduled for the next four quarters are:

I Preferred Stock — $5.875

November 1, 2002

l May 1, 2002 '
February 1, 2003

August 1, 2002

LOST OR DESTROYED CERTIFICATES OR GHECKS

Should your stock certificates or dividend checks be lost or
destroyed, please notify the Corporate & Shareholder Ser-
vices Department immediately, so the lost certificate or
check can be canceled and a replacement issued promptiy.

STOGK PURCKASE PLAR

Our stock purchase plan provides investors with a simple,
cost-effective and convenient method of acquiring shares of
our common stock through an optional cash payment fea-
ture. Those eligible to enroll are current shareholders and
investors in California, Colorado, Georgig, lllinois, Louisiana,
Minnesota, Montana, New Mexico, New York, North Car-
olina, Ohio, Oregon, Pennsylvania, South Dakota, Ten-
nessee, Texas and Wisconsin. Participants may deposit their
common stock and preferred stock certificates into their
plan accounts for safekeeping. Enrollment and safekeeping
forms may be obtained from our Corporate & Shareholder
Services Department.

STOCK EXCHANGE USTINGS AND TRADING REPORTS

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange and Pacific Exchange, Inc. The New York Stock
Exchange symbol is "TAA."

Our preferred stock is traded over the counter. Information
on current prices is available from most brokerage firms and
also is reported in the National Daily Quotation Service.
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STOCK REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

Corporate & Shareholder Services Department, Touch America
Holdings, Inc., 130 North Main St., Butte, MT 59701-9332.
Transfer agent: Common and preferred stocks.

Registrar: Common and preferred stocks.

FOR MORE INFORMATION

For information related to your ownership of Touch America
Holdings, Inc. securities, phone our Corporate &
Shareholder Services Department’s 24-hour toli-free
number: (800) 245-6767 or (406) 497-5447.

Or, write to: Rose Marie Ralph, Senior Assistant Secretary
and Director of Corporate & Shareholder Services, 130
North Main St., Butte, MT 59701; or phone (406) 497-5447
or FAX (406) 497-5469.

Security analysts, portfolic managers, and other representatives of
the investment community should contact:

O Linda McGillen, Director of lnvestor Relations

(406) 497-56211, or FAX (406} 497-5240.

U Harry Freebourn, Treasurer

(408} 497-5389, or FAX (406} 497-5194.

O Jerry Pederson, Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

(406) 497-5422, or FAX (406) 497-5240.

O Cort Freeman, Vice President of Corporate Communications
{408) 497-5464, or FAX {406} 497-5368.

TOUCHAMERICA's Internet address is:
http://mwww.tamerica.com.

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
QOur annual meeting of shareholders is scheduled for
September 24, 2002 in Minneapolis, Minnesota.

[ This report was produced by our Corporate
Communications Department with financial information
produced by our Financial Reporting Department.
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